
Last Name First Name Organization 

Arnold Tom Tucson Water 

Atkins Lisa CAP 

Avery Christopher Tucson Water 

Bauer Mary 

Beadnell Jim U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 

Benemelis Perri CAP 

Betcher Brian MSIDD 

Bevins Orson 

Blegen Ron 

Block Mike Metro Water 

Braun Eric Mesa;-Ci.t.\L.Qi 101,t'J, oi r. , , I b c7e7 
Brooks George u 
Brothers Kay Las Vegas Valley Water District 

Buma Grant CRIT 

Burns Gayle CAP 

Buschatzke Tom ADWR 

Bushner Greg Vidler Water 

Cannon-Etie Pamela 

Capps Gregg Chandler, City of 

Carlson Andrea 

Carpenter Guy CAP 

Chandler Randy USBOR 

Chappell Barbara Avondale, City of 

Commandeur Leo Global Water Resources 

Cooke Ted CAP 

Crockett David Flowing Wells Irrigation District 

Cullom Chuck CAP 

Culp Peter Squire Sanders 

Curtis 

Damas Wayne Sunbelt Holdings 

Danos Val AMWUA 

DeMarco Tony CAP 

Dent Patrick CAP 

Dishlip Herb Herb Dishlip Consulting 

Donnnely David Las Vegas Valley Water District 

Downing James 

Dunham Doug ADWR 

Dunlap Doug CAP 

Ehlers Jeff SRP 

Entsminger John Las Vegas Valley Water District 

Erlandsen Evelyn ADWR 

Fabritz-Whitne Sandra Freeport McMoRan 

Fairbanks Frank CAP 

Farley Tom 

Farmer Scott 

Ferguson Dan 

Ferris Kathy AMWUA 

Flores Nan 

Forbes Denise Ryley Carlock & Applewhite 

Fowler Ron 

Franzoy Gene Franzoy Consulting 

Fuerst Dee CAP 

Garrick Dustin 

George Maureen 

George Maureen 

Gin Gary Phoenix, City of 

Given Gary CAP 

Goddard Terry CAP 

Gray Jeff R&R Partners 

Griffin Gail Arizona Senate 

Grignano Laura CAP 

Gross Don ADWR 

Haberman 

Harbour Tom CAP 

Harkins Jayne Colorado River Commission of Nevada 

Harrell Tom 

Harris Christophe1 Colorado River Board of California 

Hartdegen Jim The Hartdegen Group 

Hartdegen Jim The Hartdegen Group 

Hartdegen Jim CAP 

Haws Mitch USBOR 

Hendricks Paul Consultant 

Hendrix Mike Mohave County 

Henley Tim AWBA 

Henning Brian CAP 

Holler Eric USBOR 

Holway Jim CAP 

lkeya Deanna ADWR 

E-Mail Address

tarnoldl@ci.tucson.az.us 

laatkins@gmail.com 

ChristoQher.Avery@tucsonaz.gov 

marycbauer@gmail.com 

jbeadnell@usbr.gov 

Qbenemelis@caQ-az.com 

brian@msidd.com 

orson.bevins@gmail.com 

rblegen@golder.com 

mblock@metrowater.com 

edc.bi:a"' -
-- �(..,lbu•f1,;_7 

editor@theebonycactus.com 

Kay.Brothers@lvvwd.com 

grant.buma@crit-nsn.gov 

gburnsaz@cox.net 

tbu schatzke@azwater.gov 

GBushner@vidlerwater.com 

12amelacetie@cox.net 

Gregg.Cai:ms@chandleraz.gov 

alcarlson@ca12-az.com 

guy@arizonawaterguy.com 

rchandler@usbr.gov 

bcha QQell@avondale.org 

Leo.Commandeur@gwresources.com 

tcooke@caQ-az.com 

dcrockett@fwid.org 

ccullom@ca12-az.com 

QCul12@ssd.com 

MCURTIS401@aol.com 

wdames@sunbeltholdings.com 

vdanos@amwua.org 

ademarco@ca12-az.com 

12dent@ca12-az.com 

herbdishliQ@cox.net 

david.donnelly@lvvwd.com 

Jim@ha rcuva rco.com 

dwdunham@azwater.gov 

ddunlaQ@CaQ-az.com 

jwehlers@sr12net.com 

John.Entsminger@lvvwd.com 

ejerlandsen@azwater.gov 

sandra fabritzwhitney@fmi.com 

frank.fairbanks@cox.net 

tomfarley@aaronline.com 

scott@land-homes.com 

dferg@email.arizona.edu 

kferris@amwua.org 

nxf@cox.net 

dforbes@rcalaw.com 

Ronald.W.Fowler@usace.army.mil 

Franzoyconsulting@cox.net 

dfuerst@caQ-az.com 

dustingarrick@gmail.com 

mrglawl@frontier.com 

georgemaureen373@gmail.com 

gary.gin@12hoenix.gov 

ggiven@ca12-az.com 

terry@terrygoddard.com 

jeff.gray@rr12artners.com 

ggriffin@azleg.gov 

lgrignano@ca12-az.com 

djgross@azwater.gov 

mhaberman@lrlaw.com 

tharbour@ca12-az.com 

jharkins@trc.nv.gov 

tharrell@azwater.com 

csharris@crb.ca.gov 

jim@jv85194.com 

jim@ed-3.org 

jim@jv85194.com 

mhaws@usbr.gov 

Qhendricks@cox.net 

mike.hendrix@mohavecounty.us 

tjhenley@azwater.gov 

bhenning@ca12-az.com 

eholler@usbr.gov 

HolwayforCAWCD@gmail.com 

dkikeya@azwater.gov 

Attended 

June 18, 2014 

Meeting 

� -
'·:Xt'?r , . 

u 

/:,;�"17/'ll. /J r_ • .  �· ,..,,... .., 

C1 OU 
''Ii'IZ;

'.,J 
7 

/ 

"J.•/ ' 
, /t,{/ ,v 

,/.-,/�-�, ..
..

.. 

.il' 
,/¥1--Q_ 

I 

� 
�r 

_;, 

,s:. t �.:J� 

I•.
· 

; 

<l/.z.ttJ...,£-
! 

..... � (' 

;/'� {l pit., 
(I 

11 

0-liJ 
V 

··''"t.., ,,- ... !---

hv\ 



Attended 

June 18, 2014 

Last Name First Name Organization E-Mail Address Meeting 

Jacobs Pat CAP lmjiv@lion-1.com 

Jardee jhardee@cox.net 

Jesser MJ CAP mjesser@ca12-az.com 

Johanson Hakon Gilbert, Town of hakon.Johanson@gilbert.gov 

Johnson Theresa ADWR tjohnson@azwater.gov 

Johnson Jeff Las Vegas Valley Water District jeff.johnson@lvvwd.com 

Kai Herb Kai Farms herb@kaifarms.com 

Kamienski Eric Tempe, City of eric kamienski@tem12e.gov 

Kash Gina Arizona Legislature gkash@azleg.gov 

Klobas Nicole AWBA staff ndklobas@azwater.gov (i,i'DV)) 
Knox Kathi Knox Consulting kathiknox@cox.net 

-

Korich Dee Tucson Water Dee.Korich@tucsonaz.gov 

Kupel Doug Glendale, City of DKui::1el@GLENDALEAZ.COM 

Kusel Diane ADWR djkusel@azwater.gov 

Lacey Michael ADWR mjlacey@azwater.gov 

Lacey Mike ADWR mjlacey@azwater.gov 

Lane Colleen ADWR cklane@azwater.gov 

Lea Harold Active Water Markets haroldlea@activewatermarkets.com 

Leary Jason Brown and Caldwell jleary@brwncald.com 

Lenderking Jake Epcor jlenderking@e12cor.com 

Lew Mark NPVA mark@nQva.net 

Lewis Mark CAP ma rk@marklewis.com 

Little Val vlittle@ag.arizona.edu 

Macre Heather CAP Heathermacre4CAWCD@gmail.com 

Maguire Rita Maguire & Pearce rmaguire@mi::1waterlaw.com 

Maher Thomas SNWA thomas.maher@snwa.com �,rr..1rlv-· 
Malara Mike Greenstone mmalano@greenstoner12.com 

Maniccia Peter Qmaniccia@homebfc.com 

Marquez Lawrence USBOR lrmarguez@usbr.gov 

Mawhinney John jtm012@comcast.net 

McCann Tom CAP tmccann@caQ-az.com �;� 

McEachern Ron CAIDD manager@caidd.com 

McJunkin Christa SRP christa.mcjunkin@srQnet.com 

McKenna Juliet Errol Montgomery jmckenna@elmontgomery.com 

McMullen Patrick Qatrick.mcmullen@itcaonline.com 

Megdal Sharon CAP smegdal@cals.arizona.edu 

Merrill Dave Vidler Water dmerrill@vidlerwater.com 

Micetic Donna CAP dmicetic@caQ-az.com 

Miller Adam City of Phoenix adam.miller@Qhoenix.gov 

Mitchell Kim Consultant krmitchell@cox.net 

· iviour ColPttP ��nr" r: •. _, -nlett_.&rM@9f:_= ,-._:.--.
1 -

. � 

Moore Colette SRP colette.moore@sr12net.com f;,,,h/l \ 
Moreno Michelle ADWR mamoreno@azwater.gov 

- , 

Morrison Richard rnm@slwQlc.com 

Moulton Cynthia CAP cyterleegrace7@it:ahoo.com 

Moyes Jay jimoyes@lawms.com 

Myers MHMYERS@aol.com 

Nally Karen knallylaw@cox.net 

Neal Cliff Phoenix, City of cliff.neal@Qhoenix.gov C..-��---� 
Nelson Doug DougCNelson@cox.net 

Newlin dmnewlin@aol.com 

Nunez Christine Surprise, City of Christine.Nunez@surQriseaz.com 

O'Connell Virginia AWBA voconnell@azwater.gov 

Olszak Nathan singlemn21@hotmail.com 
, 

Orme Paul Salmon, Lewis & Weldon Qro@slwQlc.com v-
Ozomaro Jack CAP jozomaro@caQ-az.com 

Parker Gary GRIDD GLParker@griidd.com 

Pearce Mike Maguire & Pearce mQea rce@mQwaterlaw.com 

Perone Carol L. Colorado River Commission of Nevada clQerone@crc.nv.gov 

Philbin Asia Tucson Water asia.Qhilbin@tucsonaz.gov 

Pickard Pamela CAP !;!Qickard@cox.net 

Pierson Timothy GRIC tim.Qierson@gric.nsn.us 

Purcell Larry SDCWA IQurcell@sdcwa.org 

Quigley Andrew Tucson Water andrew.guigley@tucsonaz.gov 

Ray mrait:@azleg.gov 

Reece Mary USBOR mreece@usbr.gov 

Renner George georenner@aol.com 

Roberts Dave SRP dcrobert@sr12net.com 

Roos mroos@water.ca.gov 

Rossi Terri Sue AWBA tsrossi@azwater.gov 

Rot Stephen Scottsdale, City of srot@scottsdaleaz.gov 

Rule Dennis CAGRD drule@ca12-az.com 

Rupprecht Candice candicer@cals.arizona.edu 

Ruzgerian Harry hruzgerian@mwdh2o.com 

Saletta Phil Oro Valley, Town of QSaletta@orovalleyaz.gov 

Schehuber mschlehuber@greenstonerQ.com 

Schmidt Sheila sschmidt@gustlaw.com 

Schmitt Kathryn CAP kschm itt@caQ-az.com 



Last Name 

Schwartz-Mane 

Sea sh oles 

Sejkora 

Sharpe 

Sherrill 

Shipman 

Siegel 

Silvani 

Simon 

Singelton 

Sinkey 

Slowinski 

Snider 

Spatton 

Stewart 

Stinnett 

Stirling 

Stowe 

Strosnider 

Sullivan 

Swan 

Sweeney 

Tamashiro 

Tannler 

Tenney 

Thompson 

Thorley 

Timian-Palmer 

Tobin 

Tosline 

Toy 

Turkett 

Udall 

van Allen 

VanQuathem 

Vasquez 

Vick 

Walker 

Ward 

Whitler 

Widmark 

Williams 

Williams 

Wilson 

Wilson 

Wilson 

Woner 

Wong 

Zimmerman 

Cos-\� 
0Pr!Y917°1h-- -

First Name 

Bridgette 

Ken 

Bob 

Chip 

Taylor 

Rich 

Gerard 

Benjamin 

Joe 

Erica 

Ken 

David 

Annie 

Robin 

Scott 

Tami 

Scott 

William 

Sheryl 

Larry 

jeff 

Warren 

Crystal 

Matthew 

Dorothy 

Andrew 

Deborah 

Doug 

Warren 

Chris 

Bill 

Michele 

Suzanne 

Margaret 

Shelly 

Grant 

Ron 

Derrick 

John 

Roger 

Richard 

Walley 

Jeff 

Ron 

Carol 

�o,.. 
l,r?t�s 

Organization 

CAP 

CAP 

Arizona State Parks 

Pico Holdings 

MCWA 

Errol Montgomery 

SRP 

Phoenix, City of 

PCWAA 

Vidler Water 

ADWR 

Pinal County 

Fennemore Craig 

SRP 

Arizona House of Representatives 

Tucson Water 

Ryley Carlock & Applewhite 

Las Vegas Valley Water District 

ADWR 

CAP 

CAP 

Las Vegas Valley Water District 

Vidler 

Arizona House of Representatives 

U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 

Chandler, City of 

CRCN 

Agribusiness Council 

New Magma 

Ryley Carlock & Applewhite 

Phoenix, City of 

ITCA 

MSIDD 

MSIDD 

Buckeye, Town of 

SRP 

Tucson Water 

Tonopah Irrigation District 

BKW Famrs 

CAP 

CAIDD 

CMID 

c A-P 
,l�1l -

\ 
' 

-
�Jµ(Uf")K 

. - -

� '--\_ l\ \ V 0\.{\ \l 1 8'_ 'v\ 
f{ t! V k_ 0 F (Ze f S

Attended 

June 18, 2014 

E-Mail Address Meeting 

bschwartzmanock@ca12-az.com 

kseasholes@ca12-az.com . � - -
� --

rds2@azstateQarks.gov / ,r.. p .C...:, ;� /.<'n • ,,, 

rshar12e@Qicoholdings.com ,fl 

azmcwa@gmail.com 

tshiQman@elmontgomery.com 

rssiegel@sr12net.com 

gerard.silvani@Qhoenix.gov 

Benjamin Simon@ios.doi.gov 

jsingleton@Qcwaa-az.org 

esinkey@vidlerwater.com 

kcslowinski@azwater.gov 

davidsnider@cybertrails.com --
dsgatton@aol.com 

ASTEWART@FCLAW.com 

robin.stinnett@sr[!net.com /-§PSrS_ 
sstirling@beusgilbert.com 

, 

tstowe@azleg.gov 

scott.strosnider@tucsonaz.gov �<:""" ·-.. 
wsullivan@cgsuslaw.com 

whswan@aol.com 

ssweeney@rcalaw.com 

larry.tamashiro@lvvwd.com 

jmtannler@azwater.gov ::JT" 
wtenney@metrowater.com 

cthomQson@cag-az.com 

matthew.thorley@lvvwd.com 

dorothy@vidlerwater.com 

atobin@azleg.gov 

dtosline@usbr.gov 

doug.toy@chandleraz.gov 

wturkett@crc.nv.gov 

chris@agribusinessarizona.org 

bvanallennewmagma@mchsi.com 

mvanguathem@rcalaw.com 

suzanne.vasguez@Qhoenix.gov 

margaret. vick@mvicklaw.com 

shelly@msidd.com 

grant@msidd.com 

rwhitler@buckeyeaz.gov 

info@diablotrust.org 

mflowe@srgnet.com 

rwilliams@torrentresources.com 

wilsonwater@aol.com 

wally.wilson@tucsonaz.gov 

mwi1son21@cox.net 

TIDDistrictAdmin@krsaline.com 

ron@bkwfarms.com 

carol@zimmermancom.com 

Glinda@caidd.com 

cmid122S3@comcast.net 

a12arizona@a12.org 

hlhSl@aol.com 

no4son@earthlink.net 

glummernw@aol.com 

12osmon@azleg.gov 

rburnsaz@cox.net 

robinson@gilanet.net 

UmHani@aol.com 

waterllc@earthlink.net 

wbaldo@azleg.gov 

yqliu@hwr.arizona.edu 

,.-,. \ (/". -r- )5�,.q, (c,n-c-,7 c01 r\..... -, 
C (\_.P,�C-�'f'J \\ ..\J�·r{-w),PJ) �1Jf - � nm c� ,u) 

- .. - \ 

Q s vi [( ViAV\e A z le fj- ·f th/



Arizona Water Banking Authority 
3550 N. Central Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

Telephone 602-771-8487 
Fax 602-771-8686 

Web Page: www.azwaterbank.gov 

_NOTICE AND FINAL AGENDA OF MEETING OF THE 
ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY COMMISSION 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given that there will be a meeting of the 
Arizona Water Banking Authority Commission on June 18, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. at the Arizona 
Department of Water Resources, 3550 North Central Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona 85012, 
Upper/Middle Verde conference room on the 2nd floor. The meeting is open to the general 
public. Members of the Commission will attend either in person or by teleconference. 

The agenda for the meeting is as follows: 

I. Welcome/Opening Remarks

II. Approval of Minutes
• April 16, 2014 regular quarterly meeting

111. Water Banking Staff Activities
• Monthly deliveries through April
• Colorado River developments
• CAWCD 4¢ ad valorem tax levy and Board resolution
• Inter-AMA storage proposal
• Gila River Indian Community firming discussions
• Other

IV. 2013 Annual Report
• Overview of 2013 Annual Report
• Discussion regarding Ten-Year Plan 2015-2024
• Action Planning Summary and Year-One Accomplishments
• Potential approval of 2013 Annual Report and Ten-Year Plan

V. Request for General Fund Appropriation
• Discussion of potential request for a General Fund Appropriation for Indian

firming
• Potential action to approve a submittal for a General Fund appropriation for

Indian firming

VI. Fiscal Year 2015 Administrative Budget
• Review of FY 2014 administrative buaget
• Overview and potential adoption of FY 2015 administrative budget



AWBA 
Page2 

VI I. Call to the Public 

Future Meeting Dates: 
Wednesday, September 17, 2014 
Wednesday, December 3, 2014 

Dated this 17th day of June, 2014 

* This is a tentative agenda that is subject to change prior to the scheduled meeting date. Please contact the
AWBA at (602) 771-8487 24 hrs in advance of meeting for final agenda.

All visitors must use the south elevators; please stop at the 2
nd 

floor to sign-in and receive a visitor's badge. 
Badges are to be displayed at all times. Visitors are also required to sign out and return their badges. Thank 
you for your assistance. 

Persons with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign language interpreter, by 
contacting Michelle Moreno at 602-771-8530 or 602-771-8501 (TDD). Requests should be made as early as 
possible to allow time to arrange the accommodation. 



I. Welcome/Opening Remarks

NOTES: 



11. Approval of Minutes of Meeting

NOTES: 

Move approval of April 16, 2014 A WBA meeting minutes 

ACTION: 

Approve the minutes with any needed corrections. 



ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 
Draft Minutes 

April 16, 2014 
Arizona Department of Water Resources 

Welcome/Openin-g Remarks 
Chair Michael Lacy welcomed the attendees. All members of the 
Authority were present. Ex-officio members, Senator Gail Griffin 
and Speaker of the House Andy Tobin, were not in attendance. 

Approval of Minutes 
Chair Lacey asked tor a motion to approve minutes from tour 

AUTHORITY MEMBERS 
Michaei J. Lacey, Chairman 
Maureen R. George, Vice-Chairman 
Clifford A. Neal, Secretary 
Jim Hartdegen 
John Mawhinney 

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS 
The Honorable Andy Tobin 
The Honorable Gail Grtffin 

separate meetings conducted since the last regular quarterly AWBA meeting. Vice
Chair Maureen George moved to approve the minutes from the December 4, 2013 
regular quarterly meeting, the February 4, 2014 Joint Recovery Plan Workshop and the 
February 14, 2014 and March 7, 2014 special meetings. Clift Neal seconded the 
motion and the minutes were approved. 

Water Banking Staff Activities 
Monthly Deliveries. Ms. O'Connell gave an overview of deliveries in 2013 stating the 
AWBA started the year expecting to store around 52,000 acre-feet and finished the 
year storing a little over 77,000 acre-feet. In June, the AWBA received an additional 
8,000 acre-feet storing 6,500 acre-feet in Tucson AMA and the remainder in the 
Phoenix AMA. In November, there was an additional 19,000 acre-feet of turn back 
water available. The AWBA was able to store 17,000 acre-feet. Of that amount, 3,300 
acre-feet was stored, using the remaining capacity, in the Tucson AMA. Roughly 
14,000 acre-feet were stored in the Phoenix AMA. By year end, the AWBA delivered 
31,000 acre-feet to the Phoenix AMA, slightly under 20,000 acre-feet to the Pinal AMA 
and just less than 27,000 acre-feet to the Tucson AMA. 

Ms. O'Connell explained that Arizona did not use its full entitlement in 2013 leaving 
approximately 23,000 acre-feet in Lake Mead. Mr. Mawhinney asked it this unused 
water is placed in an Arizona account or if it became system water. He also asked it 
this is the first time Arizona has left water in Lake Mead since 2005. Ms. O'Connell 
responded saying that it became system water. Because of how the River is operated 
there is uncertainty about the actual volume of water still available at the end of the 
year. In recent years however, the lower basin states have agreed to leave water in 
Lake Mead in order to benefit the system as a whole. Tom McCann, CAWCD, 
explained further that because of potential shortage conditions, CAWCD did not make 
heroic efforts to get all the water off the river last year. He stated that CAWCD 
consciously operated with the anticipation that 20,000 to 30,000 acre-feet would be left 
in the system. He explained that even though the water does not go into an account tor 
Arizona, it does help protect specifically Arizona and others against future shortage. In 
this case, the water becomes unused apportionment. Over the last several years, 
CAWCD joined with the Southern Nevada Water Authority (SNWA) and the 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) to ask the Secretary not to 
make unused apportionment available to other states. To date, the Secretary has 
granted that request. The result of these efforts is about 1 toot of elevation increase in 



Lake Mead. 

Regarding 2014 deliveries, Ms. O'Connell indicated the AWBA is scheduled to store 
about 60,000 acre-feet. Overall deliveries through March are close to projected except 
that deliveries to the Pinal AMA are a little behind because the Gila River Indian 
Irrigation Drainage District (GRIIDD) decided to take the Southside Replenishment 
Bank (SSR�) deliveries at a rate of 1,000 acre-feet per month over five months_instead 
of the full 5,000 acre-feet in February. Deliveries to the Tucson AMA are slightly behind 
due to maintenance at the Tucson facility. Ms. O'Connell explained that she does not 
anticipate any issues, but will inform the Authority if any should arise. 

Meetings. Ms. O'Connell described two meetings of interest attended by staff: ADWR's 
February 19, 2014 Enhanced Aquifer Management (EAM) meeting and CAWCD's Rate 
Setting Workshop. The EAM meeting focused on the types of storage and recovery, 
including AWBA activities that are included in the proposal. Ms. O'Connell described the 
purposes of the EAM proposal and explained the proposal only applies to future credits. In 
summary, the proposal envisions a 0% cut to the aquifer for recovery within the area of 
impact of a recharge facility or within the boundaries of a groundwater savings facility 
(GSF), a 10% cut for recovery outside the area of impact or outside the GSF boundary but 
inside the same sub-basin and a 20% cut for recovery outside the area of impact or outside 
the GSF boundary but outside the same sub-basin. The Arizona Municipal Water Users 
Association (AMWUA) has a similar concept but applies only to the Phoenix AMA. This 
proposal includes the concept of Special Enhancement Areas (SEAs) designated by 
ADWR. Under the AMWUA proposal, recovering outside a SEA would continue to have a 
5% cut to the aquifer for recovery within the same sub-basin and a 20% cut for recovery 
outside the sub-basin. Both proposals have incentives for storing in areas of need. For 
example, under the AMWUA proposal, storing inside a SEA and recovering outside that 
same SEA would allow recovery up to 115% of the volume stored. ADWR's proposal 
indicates some allowance for those storing and recovering for drought purposes. 

Ms. O'Connell requested the AWBA be exempt from the EAM proposal for the reasons she 
noted in her letter to ADWR December 18, 2012 in addition to other reasons. She noted 
that the AWBA is not a water utility or municipal water provider. The AWBA's goals are to 
provide back-up supplies during shortages. While the AWBA supports recovery in the area 
of impact and holds an intention to do so, the AWBA is not authorized to recover water and 
must rely on others to do the recovery. Consequently, there may be occasions when 
flexibility is needed. 

Ms. O'Connell also told ADWR that a goal of the AWBA is to assist ADWR in meeting 
water management objectives through, for example, extinguishment of credits in key 
areas. Given that credits are limited, the AWBA could also agree that credits would not 
be recovered in certain areas, having them recovered instead in areas that would not 
impact physical availability. She offered that AMWUA's proposal accounts for this 
second alternative somewhat under the SEAs, but there could be locations not 
identified as a SEA that could still benefit or where recovery would be undesirable. 

Ms. O'Connell continued saying the AWBA's recovery agents would be encouraged to 
recover within the area of impact (AOI) to preserve the AWBA's credits. However, this 
may not always be the best course of action. For example, there could be water levels 

2 



issues within the AOI of a GSF since they encompass a large area. In those cases, the 
AWBA may want recovery of some of that water to occur remotely from areas where 
more water is available. Ms. O'Connell explained that depending on where recovery 
occurs, additional credits may be required stretching resources further. She noted that 
while there have been comments suggesting the proposal will have limited impact on 
the AWBA because excess CAP water supplies are dwindling, things could turn around. 
lncre�sing rates could potentially result in additional supplies. There couJd also be 
opportunities for the AWBA to store water for interstate purposes using Nevada's 
unused apportionment. 

Ms. O'Connell further pointed out that under the Storage and Interstate Release 
Agreement, the AWBA needs to report how many credits it accrues. If the number of 
credits cannot be known until recovery, then the AWBA cannot accurately report the 
number of credits accrued to the USBOR. Moreover, Nevada will want certainty on this 
point as well. 

Ms. O'Connell explained that the AWBA is already providing a significant water 
management benefit. She added that the topic of water storage locations comes up in 
various discussions and while the AWBA is also concerned about storage location, she 
reminded everyone that the AWBA has always been last in line in terms of priority for 
storage facilities. She explained that CAWCD adopted a new policy that gives the 
AWBA higher priority at CAWCD facilities. Still, the AWBA does not want to be in 
competition with others for storage capacity as those entities also want to store and 
recover in the area of impact. For example in Tucson, the AWBA wants to do more 
storage at the Tucson Water's facilities, but capacity is limited. The AWBA has met 
with Tucson area interests. As a result of those discussions, the parties established a 
strategy for storing water according to a priority system where storage at Tucson's 
facilities is first and storage at LSCRP is last. Mr. Neal offered that the Southern 
Arizona Water Users Association submitted a proposal; he thinks this proposal will 
address some of the AWBA's concerns about storing at Tucson facilities. Ms. 
O'Connell concluded her remarks saying ADWR is evaluating the comments received 
and the AWBA is waiting to hear back: 

Ms. O'Connell stated that on April 10th
, staff also attended CAWCD's recent Preliminary 

2015-2020 Rates: Customer Workshop. This year's rate is $166 per acre-foot. 
CAWCD reported that the proposed rate for 2015 will increase by 8% to $179. Starting 
in 2016, rates will increase at roughly 3% per year until 2020 when rates will take 
another significant increase of 11 % up to $221 per acre-foot. According to Ms. 
O'Connell increases are due primarily to energy and Navajo Generating Station cost 
impacts. She described what these increases mean to the AWBA is fewer credits for 
the same dollar. She informed the members that the rates would be presented to the 
Finance, Audit & Power Committee on April 17, 2014. This Committee will make a 
recommendation to the Board where action will be taken at the regular CAWCD Board 
meeting in May. 

Colorado River Status. Ms. O'Connell explained that the USBOR's August 24 Month 
Study, published in 2013, projected a significant chance that a shortage could be 
declared for 2016. While such a declaration was not expected to trigger a firming 
requirement, under such conditions the Bank would not have water available for 

3 



storage. However, based on the most current information also from the USBOR, Lake 
Mead elevations are projected to be above the 1,075 foot elevation level in January of 
2015 and 2016 and consequently no shortage declarations are anticipated in those 
years. Ms. O'Connell also mentioned that snowpack in the basin (mostly the upper 
basin) is slightly better than average at 111 %. 

_ With regards to the impact on the AWBA's Ten-Year Plan, Ms. O'Qonnell explained that 
CAWCD staff has provided water supplies projections for the AWBA's Ten-Year Plan. 
The cumulative amount for the 10 years is a little over 520,000 acre-feet, which is about 
168,000 acre-feet less than last year's projections of approximately 690,000 acre-feet. 
She reminded the members that the numbers in the Ten-Year Plan are long-term 
projections. The AWBA would continue to look at short-term projections like the 
USBOR 24 Month Study data. If this data shows there will be a shortage, then the 
AWBA would address that in the annual Plan of Operation process. If the AWBA has 
the ability to purchase credits, the members could decide at that juncture whether or not 
to purchase credits. 

Mr. Neal asked why the total volume available in the Ten Year Plan dropped 20% from 
the number CAWCD provided for the Ten-Year Plan last year. Ken Seasholes, 
CAWCD, explained that the data and the assumptions have remained the same 
between the two sets of projections except CAWCD has updated the three-year 
projections from its customers and they have incorporated some use assumptions 
associated with customers taking Non-Indian Agricultural water. 

Mr. Mawhinney commented that the water availability is getting more limited, price is 
going up and the AWBA's obligations are staying firm if not increasing. He expressed 
concern about Mr. McCann's statements regarding leaving 23,000 acre-feet of water on 
the River indicating that such a volume represents 50% of the entire amount the AWBA 
was provided to store last year. He recognized there are external pressures to keep the 
level in Lake Mead up. At the same time, however, he was reminded that the original 
purpose of the AWBA was to take Arizona's remaining entitlement off the river. He 
suggested the AWBA send a message to CAWCD saying the 23,000 represents a 
significant loss to the AWBA and that perhaps steps should be taken in the future to 
ensure full use of Arizona's entitlement. 

While Ms. George agreed with much of what Mr. Mawhinney said, she described the 
situation as having two options: leave water on the River and help delay a shortage or 
take 100% of the entitlement and perhaps risk bringing shortage on sooner. Between 
the two less than desirable options, she would favor keeping the water in Lake Mead. 
She concluded her remarks saying the importance of not going into shortage outweighs 
the need to get more credits in the ground. 

Action Planning. Ms. O'Connell explained the AWBA started an action planning 
process last year as a result of last year's Ten Year Plan. There were two items 
identified for immediate action: seek legislation authorizing AWBA to purchase long
term storage credits and request a general fund appropriation for meeting Indian 
settlement obligations. 

Regarding the legislation, SB 1478 passed third read in the house. The bill has been 

4 



forwarded to the Senate for concurrence. Regarding the general fund appropriation, 
the $664,000 request to pay for delivery of 4,000 acre-feet to the Southside 
Replenishment Bank was not included in the Fiscal Year 2015 budget signed by 
Governor. Staff will instead use Pinal AMA withdrawal fees carried over from last year 
to offset these costs. Because carryover funds will be exhausted this year, any 
withdrawal fees used for this purpose in 2015 will reduce the amount that can be used 
for water storage. 

The Commission members discussed the appropriation process used last year, how 
well it worked, or failed to work, and what other potential options the AWBA has for 
seeking an appropriation. Ms. O'Connell offered the AWBA has the authority to seek 
an appropriation outside ADWR's budget. The Commission members indicated the 
AWBA should attempt to secure a general appropriation for Indian firming again in the 
next legislative session and to start that process sooner. 

Regarding continued work with the Gila River Indian Community, Ms. O'Connell 
indicated that the two staffs are a little behind but progress is being made and staff is 
working toward having draft IGA language for the June meeting. 

Ms. O'Connell asked Terri Sue Rossi to describe the focused implementation and 
stakeholder review step of the action planning process. Ms. Rossi described two work 
products: a summary of the AWBA's action planning process and a table of one-year 
accomplishments linked to the AWBA's strategic commitments. She explained that 
staff would like to seek feedback from stakeholders on these two items. Mr. Neal had 
questions on the timing of the one-year accomplishment. Ms. Rossi explained the 
action planning envisioned the one-year accomplishment clock starting at the beginning 
of the upcoming fiscal year consistent with the Annual Report and budget. Because 
many of the actions items have already been started, there is more of a ragged edge. 

Ms. George stated that the documentation is ready to go out. She expressed her 
appreciation for the efforts and stated that it is good to have a written plan to keep us 
on focus. Mr. Neal expressed concern about one of the success indicators regarding 
the 4¢ tax being extended beyond 2016. His concerns were two-fold: has the 
Commission made a policy decision on this point and if so what is the timing for staff 
action on this action item. Staff responded saying the commitment is to participate in 
discussions with CAWCD and others on extension of the 4¢ tax levy. Through the 
course of these discussions, the AWBA will decide its position on extending the tax. 

Staff was directed to send the documentation to stakeholders for feedback and to bring 
it back for further consideration in June. 

Joint Draft Recovery Plan 
Ms. O'Connell described the status of the draft Joint Recovery Plan indicating the draft 
was first made available to the public on January 23

rd
• On February 4

th, CAWCD,
ADWR, and the AWBA held a joint workshop where CAWCD staff presented the plan 
and the members of the lnteragency Recovery Planning Group responded to questions. 
The deadline•for submitting comments was March 7, 2014. Five formal letters were 
received and posted to the CAWCD and AWBA websites. Several verbal and 
electronic comments were also received. There were a number of comments 

5 



supporting the accomplishments that have been made toward developing a recovery 
plan. In general, the following comments were made: 

• coordinate storage and recovery efforts

• move forward on developing agreements with recovery partners

• include stakeholders in any infrastructure decisions, particularly in the Pinal AMA

• have more detail on implementation and costs -

• RWCD also stated its interest in being a recovery partner

The interagency group reviewed and incorporated the comments where applicable. A 
red-line and clean copy of the draft are posted on the CAWCD and AWBA websites. 
Ms. O'Connell described the plan as providing a basic framework for recovery that will 
be updated as things move forward. As an example, she referred members to a 
proposal from Phoenix and Tucson AMA entities on inter-AMA firming. Based on the 
outcome of this proposal, there could be changes to the Joint Recovery Plan. She also 
indicated there are still procedures that will need to be fine-tuned and policies 
developed. Several members expressed their appreciation for the work product. 

Ms. O'Connell then directed members to the draft preface of the Joint Recovery Plan 
noting that the members had asked the lnteragency Group to work with legal staff on 
recommending a vehicle that recognizes the Recovery Plan. Based on those 
discussions, the Group proposed the formal approval of a preface to the Joint Recovery 
Plan that sets forth the purpose of the Plan and acknowledges that it meets the 
objectives of the IGA among ADWR, the AWBA, and CAWCD to develop a coordinated 
and cooperative process for recovering the AWBA's long-term storage credits. She 
pointed out that the Commission would not be adopting the Joint Recovery Plan, but 
rather recognizing that staff will follow the procedures in the Plan and the IGA. 

Members expressed concerns about the binding nature of the preface and whether the 
Joint Recovery Plan is a guideline or a law. Nicole Klobas, attorney for the AWBA, 
responded describing the Joint Recovery Plan as a guideline suitable for adaption over" 
time. Members indicated that the Plan should not be put on shelf and that when the 
AWBA staff deviates from the Plan the Commission should be informed. After further 
discussion, the Commission members described the Joint Recovery Plan as a 
guidepost for recovery activities going forward and as an indication of the willingness 
and ability for the three agencies to work together providing more stability to everyone 
involved. 

Mr. Mawhinney made a motion to authorize the chair to sign the preface. Mr. Neal 
seconded the motion, and the motion passed. 

Updated AMA Firming Goals 
Mr. Henley gave a presentation on the AWBA Firming Goals and Obligations relative to 
the changes made to modeling and actual operation of the Colorado River. A copy of 
his presentation can be found on the AWBA website. He presented three scenarios: 

Case 1: This scenario uses Arizona demand schedules for upper basin and on-river 
Indian demand and a CAP build-out of 2045. This scenario assumes the Interim 

6 



......... 

Surplus Guidelines continue indefinitely and uses the ADWR Director's Recommended 
Shortage Sharing Formula . 

Case 2: This scenario uses the same demand schedules as Case1, but replaces the 
Interim Surplus Guidelines with the 80P1050 operating criteria after 2026 and assumes 
the pro-rata shortage sharing formula replaces the Director's recommendation after 
2026. 

Case 3: This scenario uses the Upper Colorado River Commission demands and the 
Ten Tribes Demand Schedule instead of Arizona's schedules. This scenario also 
assumes a CAP build-out in 2035 instead of 2045. This scenario replaces the Interim 
Surplus Guidelines with the 80P1050 operating criteria after 2026 and assumes the 
pro-rata shortage sharing formula replaces the Director's recommendation after 2026 
as well. 

Mr. Henley then described the results of the study. The probability of shortage under 
Case 1 was 45-50%. For Case 2, the probability of shortage was around 30% and for 
Case 3, the probability of shortage started around 60% and leveled out at around 85%. 

Mr. Henley reminded the members of how the AWBA goals were established indicating 
the AWBA was required to identify a reasonable amount of water for On-River users. In 
the course of establishing what was eventually a volume of 420,000 acre-feet, goals for 
other responsibilities were quantified including 2.7 million acre-feet for M&I firming and 
550,000 acre-feet for the Indian firming, for a combined total of 3.6 million acre-feet. 

Mr. Henley presented a comparison of the three cases relative to the original goals. 
Case 1 came in at a combined 1.3 million acre-feet with the goal for M&I firming being 
substantially lower than the original goal. Case 2 results were comparable and Case 3 
showed markedly higher results for a combined total of over 9 million acre-feet. Mr. 
Henley explained some details of the analysis and described a fourth scenario called 
Trace 95 that takes climate into account by representing a particularly poor hydrology. 
Under Trace 95, the combined total was approximately 1 .9 million acre-feet. 

Ms. George asked for clarification on the number of years used in this analysis versus 
the 1997 modeling. Mr. Henley indicated that this analysis assumes 85 years instead of 
100, but because the 1997 modeling results did not show any shortages until the 2017 
timeframe about the same number of years was used in both cases. Mr. Neal asked if 
the 20% cap on M&I firming was a factor in any of the cases. Mr. Henley responded 
that it was not a factor in case 1 . Because the 80P operation criteria was used in cases 
2 and 3, the 20% was a factor. Commission members expressed concern about the 
modeling understating the demands of M&I subcontractors by capping demands at the 
20% level. Mr. Henley cautioned members not to get too concerned about the 
assumption to shift to the 80P operating criteria. The River has never been operated 
according to that criteria and there are operating strategies can be done three years out 
to manage against those shortages. 

Mr. Neal asked Mr. Henley if there·was a run that included the Interim Surplus 
Guidelines, the optimistic Upper Colorado RLver Commission demands and the Ten 
Tribes Demand Schedule instead of Arizona's schedules. Mr. Henley responded yes 

7 



and that he would make that information available to members and added that the 
probability would likely fall between the Case 1 and Case 3 levels. 

Mr. Neal asked for clarification about what the AWBA was hoping to do with this 
information. Mr. Mawhinney asked if the idea here was to evaluate the models and 
examine them against our firming goals and obligations with the idea of either 
authenticating our goals or changing thef'!l. Mr. Henley reminded the members that the 
AWBA was only supposed to identify a reasonable number of credits for on-river and 
not for any other obligation because the real goal is if the AWBA has money, capacity 
and water, then keep storing water. The members can decide to change their goals or 
not based on this new information. Mr. Mawhinney responded saying the AWBA is 
looking to see if the numbers are in the ballpark, and at least one of them appears very 
close. Ms. George indicated her objective was to see where our goals are relative to 
the new modeling and whether we need to adjust if our goals large enough to cover the 
shortage given our current reality. 

Mr. Hartdegen suggested we should keep the 4<,t tax in place, but keeping the tax will 
take a lot of effort. Mr. Lacey indicated we would participate in those discussion, but 
there are many participants and we need a strategy for working with others. Ms. 
George recommended that topic be placed on the next agenda. 

Call to the Public 

There were no comments from the public. Chair Lacey announced the next meeting 
dates and asked for a motion to adjourn. The meeting adjourned at 11 :48 a.m. 

8 



III. Water Bank Staff Activities

NOTES: (No action required, agenda item for discussion only) 

• Call on Virginia O'Connell to update members on monthly water deliveries

• Call on Chuck Cullom to give presentation on Colorado River developments

Call on Tom Buschatzke to give follow-up discussion

• Call on Virginia O'Connell to provide updates on the following:

o CA WCD 4¢ ad valorem tax levy resolution

o Inter-AMA storage proposal

o Gila River Indian Community firming discussions

ACTION: No action 



70 

60 

! 50 
I!! "
<t 

g 40 

"

� 
30 

i 20 
::, 

0 

10 

�" 
IL 

30 

25 

e 20 
.:;; 

� 15 " 
> 

� 
'S 
E 10 
E 
0 

0 

0 
jan 

Jan 

feb mar 

2014 Plan of Operation - INTRASTATE 

DELIVERIES • ALL AMAs 

Planned vs. Actual 

-� � � � �
apr may jun Jul 

DELIVERIES - PINAL AMA 

Planned vs. Actual 

aug sep act 

07] D Cil------.CI 

12 

10 

8 

6 

4 

� 

2 

0 
nav dee 

12 

10 

8 

6 

4 

2 

Cl 0 

30 

25 

20 I 

15 

10 

5 

0 
jan feb mar 

30 

25 

20 

15 

10 

: I 

DELIVERIES - PHOENIX AMA 

Planned vs. Actual 

□ D
apr may jun jul aug 

DELIVERIES - TUCSON AMA 

Planned vs. Actual 

j o D □

□-□
sep act nav dee 

0 �-·� � 
feb mar apr may Jun Jul aug sep act nav dee jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep oct nov dee 

I ............... ,., (MONTI<l.Y) -ICTlML(Motmfl.Y) -PIN<IJtED {CUM) -ACTUN..(CUMJ I 

12 

10 

8 � 
" 
.... 

"
<t 

6 .. 
.. 
.. � 

I 4 

I 2 

0 

12 

10 

0 � 

�
8 ,:'. 

I!! 

� 
6 g 

� 
>, :c <:4 0 
:E 

2 

0 



Actual Deliveries 2014 18-Jun-14 
Plan of Operation jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep oct nov dee total 

Phoenix AMA 

HIEROGLYPHIC MTNSf 1,32.0 sae - - - - - - 2,000 
500 500 500 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,000 

AGUA FRIA� 548 
- - - - - -

548 - - - -
500 500 500 500 1_,_500 647 0 - 0 - 0 0 0 0 4,147 

TONOPAH DESERT; 
-

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
SUPERSTITION MTNS. 1,92f 1,921 1;5'59 

- - - - - - - -
4,500 - - - - -

1,000 1
_,_

000 1
_,_

000 1
_,_

50() 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,500 
QCID� 

- - - - -
0 - - - -

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,230 2,000 1,000 1,000 0 5,230 
Subtotal 0 1,568 3,241 2,239 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,048 
Total to date 0 1,568 4,809 7,048 7,048 7,048 7,048 7,048 7,048 7,048 7,048 7,048 7,048 
Projected total to date 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,500 1,500 647 0 1,230 2,000 1,000 1,000 0 15,877 

Pinal AMA 
CAIDD: 0 

- - - - - - -

0 0 3
.:..

000 2
.:..

000 700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,700 
- - ---HIDD 0 - - -

0 0 0 0 0 2,000 2,000 1,700 0 0 0 0 5,700 
MSIDD 1 400 500 ,a'oo~ §cg, �00 -

3,600 
400 500 900 900 900 500 200 200 400 400 300 100 5,700 

SSRB - 3,�s_i 1,5j'g 5,000 
0 5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,000 

Subtotal 400 500 900 4,261 2,539 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,600 
Total to date 400 900 1,800 6,061 8,600 8,600 8,600 8,600 8,600 8,600 8,600 8,600 8,600 
Projected total to date 400 5,500 3,900 2,900 1,600 2,500 2,200 1,900 400 400 300 100 22,100 

Tucson AMA 
AVRA VALLEY 1 0 - - - - - - - -

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 300 700 1,000 
LOWER SANTA CRUZ 1,006 .!,_clQ:( 

- - - - -
2,000 - - - - -

1,000 1,000 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 �,_ooo 1
.,_

500 0 6,500 
PIMA MINE ROAD 

- - - - - 0 - - - - -

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
_,_

000 500 544 2,044 
CAVSARPI - - - - - - - 0 

- - -

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
SAVSARPi 2,0QQ_ 1,000 1,0QO :f[o1 )� 

- - -
10,000 

- - -

�._ooo 2.,_ 000 .2,000 2,000 0 0 0 0 1
_,_

000 1
_,_

000 2
.,_

000 2,_000 14,000 
CMID! ?_fr_ 211 

0 0 0 0 482 1
_,_

000 1,_000 750 0 0 0 0 3,232 
- - - - - -KAI FARMS - Red Rock 0 - - - - - - - -

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
" - - - - - - - - - - -BKW FARMS 0 - - - - - -

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Subtotal 3,000 2,000 1,000 3,000 3,211 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,211 
Total to date 3,000 5,000 6,000 9,000 12,211 12,211 12,211 12,211 12,211 12,211 12,211 12,211 12,211 
Projected total to date 3,000 3,000 3,000 2,000 482 1,000 1,000 750 2,000 3,000 4,300 3,244 26,776 

TOTAL 3,400 4,068 5,141 9,500 5,750 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 27,859 
Total to date 3,400 7,468 12,609 22,109 27,859 27,859 27,859 27,859 27,859 27,859 27,859 27,859 27,859 
Projected total to date 5,400 10,500 8,900 7,400 3,582 4,147 3,200 3,880 4,400 4,400 5,600 3,344 64,753 



Colorado River System Storage 

Total System Capacity 

60MAF 

lake Mead - 26 MAF 

Lake Powell - 24 MAF 

Colorado River System Storage 
87% Full 
(21.3MAF) 

\ 
\ 

43%Full 
(10.4MAF 

91% Full --------, 
(25 MAF) 1/1/2000 

41%Full 
(10.BMAF) 

lake Mead 

lake Powell 

5/27/2014 �---� 
I s, ... ,. Dtpl-• I 
Powell• 10.9 MAF 
Mud· 14.2MAF 
Total=-25.1MAF 

1/1/2000 

I 
5/27/2014 

· CAP�---

6/18/2014 

1 



The Current Drought in Perspective 
Annu•I (CY) I.HI f.,,y f1ow 

11_,_.ot.._,.lollowflooo.20101 

+- -- - ------

Lake Mead Since 2000 

J_�tY MAE) 

Shortage Sharing - '07 Guidelines 

• Arizona and Nevada share Lower Basin shortages

under the 2007 Guidelines

• Mexico voluntarily agreed in Minute 319 to accept

reductions in its deliveries at the same elevations

..... M91!11 Adlalm ...... 

..... ......... ..... 

1075' 320,000AF 13,000AF 50,000AF 

1050' 400,000AF 17,000AF 70,000AF 

1025' 480,000AF 20,000AF 125,000 AF 

• No reductions to California under 2007 Guidelines

CAP 
liiiij, __ _ 

6/18/2014 

2 



Shortage Impacts Under Guidelines 

• No water for AWBA and other excess users

• Significant impacts to Ag Settlement Pool

Reduced under early shortages 

Eliminated when shortage deepens and long-term 
CAP uses grow 

• Some impact to NIA priority deliveries in deeper

shortages as long-term CAP uses grow

• No anticipated Impact to CAP M&I or Indian

priority

• Possible recovery for on-river M&I or Indian NIA

2017 level 1 Shortage 
----"------ - - -

0.5MAF 

lake Mead Since 2000 

!, 
• 

CAP 

CAP 

6/18/2014 

3 



Impact of Structural Deficit 

• Results in a decline of 12+ feet in Lake Mead 

every year when releases from Powell are 

"normal" (8.23 MAF)

• Undermines effectiveness of the 2007 Guidelines 

• Drives Lower Basin to shortage

• CAP forced to bear obligations of others

• Evaporation and other system losses 

Lower Basin's half of Mexican Treaty obligation 

• US failure to operate YDP 

Near-Term Outlook 

6/18/2014 

4 



Longer-Term Outlook 

Median Lale Mead January Elewtion(BaselineCRSS Run) 

i :: j �
:-

----:--�-�--�-��-:.. 
� 1040 --·-+--- - --

1030 ___ ,_ 

1020 i ---� - ----
1010 j - -
1000 

2015 2020 2025 2030 2035
Ye

lr2040 2045 2050 2055 

Risk to All Colorado River Users 

'°'' 

• Without equalization or corrective action, Lake 

Mead will fall below elevation 1000 in 5-8 years

• If Lake Mead is below elevation 1000:

• Impacts SNWA ability to withdraw water

Less than 4.5 MAF left in storage in lake Mead 

• Reduced power generation and efficiency at Hoover 

Dam, potential cavitation or vibration damage

• What will the Secretary of the Interior do?

Chances for Equalization 

• Equalization trigger under the 2007 Guidelines

goes up every year

• For 2015, requires 17 MAF in storage in Lake Powell 

By 2019, almost 18 MAF 

By 2026, more than 19 MAF 

• Current storage in Lake Powell is 10.8 MAF

• Powell inflow required for equalization in 2015:

• 6.2 MAF (storage increase)+ 9.0 MAF (release to 

Lower Basin) ='tS.1 MAI 

6/18/2014 

5 



Powell Inflows (1964- 2013) 
------

Lake Powell Unregulamd Inflow 

Generatn Equ;!liµ'(ion 111 2019•2021if61'J 

Genentei £quaDutlon in 2015116%) 

When Lake Mead is at 1,000' 

• Lake Mead storage ~ 4.4 MAF

• Lake Powell

• < 3490' 75¾ of time {below power pool)

• < 3525' 84¾ of time {at or near power pool)

• Storage~ 4.0 to~ 5.93 MAF respectively

• Requires significant volumes, > 20 MAF, to

reach equalization elevations

Lake Mead Elevation Response-

After Fallin Below 1 000' 

Observed 

CffmateO,anae 

1,D_2S_ft 

7.1 

1,050ft 

14.3 

12.5 

1,075ft 

15.2 
14.6 

Observed 18/105 = 17" 0 s 6 

CllmateChan1e 46/112•41" 14 2, 31 
Combined 64/217 = 2911 14 29 37 ��AE

6/18/2014 

6 



Current Baseline Projections·--
Obs. + Climate Chan e 

What will the Secretary Do? 

Option 1 

Allow Lake Mead to continue falling below 

elevation 1000, potentially to dead pool 

OptionZ 

-M-<1,DOO' 

Take emergency action to protect elevation 1000 

Option 1-Allow Lake Mead to Fall 

• Secretary continues making all scheduled deliveries 

until there is insufficient water available 

• When orders exceed available supply, Secretary 

follows Law of the River priority system 

• CAP and post-1968 users reduced first

• Pre-1968, non-PPR users reduced next

• PPRs and federal reserved rights reduced last

• When Lake Mead reaches dead pool, deliveries are

limited to run of the river-Le., annual inflow

CAP 
---

6/18/2014 

7 



Option 1 - Allow Lake Mead to Fall 

Baseline: 10th Percentile 
-Me.idE!ev;i,ion 
••••lower 8-sln Short.ice .JiS Oid�ted by the Interim Guldelioes 
-Totallow•rBnln Shortaa• (lnctudlfl1Malcol 

--- ----1--'--...... -----=--

1,075' ! I 

----i---r-"'cr-:,.,..c:::�,,,....,_,,.._,_:::,,._.� 
u, 

"" ZOU 1640 
You 

Option 1 - Consequences ------
• Southern Nevada may be unable to withdraw any 

water below elevation 1000 

• Diversions for CAP M&I and Indian users are 
reduced to zero, along with on-river P4 users 

• Mead reaches dead pool in at least 10% of traces,

forcing additional reductions of 1 MAF or more

• Hoover powerplant capacity is reduced from
installed rating of 2079 MW to: 

• 1046 MW at elevation 1000 

• 696 MW at elevation 950

Option 2 - Protect Elevation 1000 

• Secretary intervenes to protect level of Lake Mead,

reducing Lower Basin diversions as needed

• Secretary applies discretion in determining who
gets water, regardless of priority, e.g.:

Nevada allotted 230 KAF to meet health and safety 

needs 

• CAP allotted 950 KAF to meet core municipal needs and

U.S. tribal responsibilities

• Other uses reduced as necessary

6/18/2014 

8 



Protection Volume Analyses: 

nAbsolute Protect" 1.000' 

.......... ""''- - ........ --

� ... ,... .... ttnq:tl 20l6 � ... - thot throuah20M 

IMAfl ......... IMN'l (MAI) ......... IMAIJ 
au.,, 

°""""" 2.1 2019 0.74 2019 0.49 

�- Ll 2025 1.7 2025 1.0 

Combln,d L1 2025 1.5 2025 1.6 

1Volumn are In addition to Shorta1n per the 2007 lriter!m G11ldellnes 

Option 2 - Consequences 

• Secretarial discretion has replaced the Law of the

River

• Diversions by users other than SNWA and CAP are 

reduced by 2 to 6 MAF

• Primary reductions to agricultural users 

• Additional reductions to Mexico lead to increased 

international tension

Proactive Alternative 
• Based on principal that all Colorado River water

and power users share risk

• Structural deficit must be reduced by 600-900 KAF

per year to "bend the curve"

• Potential components:

• Target volume (e.g., 600 KAF)

• Funding mechanism ($100M+ per year) 

• Joint system conservation/augmentation projects 

States backstop if joint projects do not meet target 

• U.S. action to reduce system losses (100-200 KAF) 

liic�� 

6/18/2014 

9 



Potential Cost of Proactive Plan 

• Annual CAP diversions reduced
• Impacts CAP Excess Water, potentially NIA 

• Increased fixed OM&R rates for all CAP customers 

• Annual funding for conservation/augmentation
projects ($20M+) 

• For comparison purposes, $20M per year might be 
sufficient to generate
• 10,000 AF from ocean desalination 

• 65,000 AF from brackish desalination 

Benefits of Proactive Plan 

• Preserves the Law of the River 
• Provides greater certainty and predictability to all 

water and power users 
• Reduces probability of Mead falling below 

elevation 1000 by 2026 from 29% to 12% 
• Reduces likelihood of non-hydrologic supply 

reductions to CAP
• Increases chances of success when new operating

guidelines are negotiated with Upper Basin in
2020 

• Reduces likelihood of protracted litigation 
'..,,CAP�---

Benefits of Proactive Plan 

100 -------- -----� 

.. 

7D 

__ / .. , ..
.. 

--........ ______________ ,. ___ :-··--------- ----

1-
-- ---- � 48" Reduction 

56" Reduction 

201S 2016 2017 2CIUI 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 

.... 

---•B;iseline:LB 

""""•· 

- 600 �+US action: 

LBShorta11 

- 600 bf+ us action: 

Mead<•1,CQO' 

6/18/2014 

10 



Current Status 

• CAP and ADWR are working with Basin States

and Reclamation to prepare a "Drought

Response and Sustainability Plan"

• Ongoing efforts

Expand weather modification and tamarisk removal 

• System conservation pilot agreement 

• Long-term augmentation studies 

• Basin States report to Secretary of the Interior

anticipated in July

6/18/2014 

11 



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
REGARDING AD V ALOREM TAX FOR WATER STORAGE 

(June 5, 2014) 

WHEREAS, House Bill 2494 adopted by the Arizona Legislature in 1996 (Chapter 308, 

Laws of Arizona 1996, Forty-second Legislature, Second Regular Session) established the 

Arizona Water Bank and amended A.R.S. § 48-3715.02 relating to the tax levy for water storage; 

and 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. § 48-3715.02, subsection B, provides that the Board of Directors (the 

"Board") of the Central Arizona Water Conservation District (the "District") shall fix the amount 

to be raised by direct taxation pursuant to its provisions, which amount shall not exceed four 

cents per one hundred dollars of assessed valuation; and 

WHEREAS, the Board by separate action has fixed the tax rate pursuant to A.RS. § 48-

3715.02, subsection B, for the 2014/2015 tax year at four cents per one hundred dollars of 

assessed valuation; and 

WHEREAS, A.RS. § 48-3715.03 further provides that the Board shall determine 

annually by resolution whether any or all of the tax levied pursuant to A.RS. § 48-3715.02, 

subsections B and C, shall be applied to the repayment of the construction costs of the Central 

Arizona Project ("CAP" or the "Project") or to the annual operation, maintenance, and 

replacement costs of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. § 48-3715.03 further provides that those monies specified in such 

resolution for repayment of the construction costs or payment of the annual operation, 



maintenance, and replacement costs of the Project shall be deposited in the District fund

established pursuant to A.RS.§ 48-3712, subsection A, paragraph 5; and

WHEREAS, A.R.S. § 48-3715.03 further provides that a certified copy of such resolution

shall be delivered to the Arizona Department of Water Resources;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Central

Arizona Water Conservation District, as follows:

1. That all of the taxes levied pursuant to A.R.S. § 48-3715.02, subsections B and C, in
the 2014/2015 tax year shall be applied to repayment of the construction costs or payment of
the annual operation, maintenance, and replacement costs of the Project; and
2. That all taxes levied pursuant to A.RS. § 48-3715.02, subsections B and C, in the
2014/2015 tax year be deposited in a designated District account in the District fund established
pursuant to A.RS.§ 48-3712, subsection A, paragraph 5; and
3. That a certified copy of this resolution be delivered to the Arizona Department of Water
Resources.

I, the undersigned, as Secretary of the Central Arizona Water Conservation District,
hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolutions duly adopted by the
Board of Directors of the Central Arizona Water Conservation District at a meeting thereof, duly
called and held on June 5, 2014, at which a quorum was present and acting throughout. I further
certify that said resolutions have not been modified or revoked since their adoption and are still
in full force and effect.

SIGNED THIS 5th DAY OF JUNE 2014.
r-Y. : /l_ /) l1 � 

By: __ \../ __ .)f"7._'tJ....U' ___ � ______ _
Lisa A. Atkins
Secretary



.. 

February 10, 2014 

Tom Buschatzke
Assistant Director 
Arizona Department of 
Water Resources 
3550 N. Central Avenue 
Phoenix, AZ 85012 

Virginia O'Connell 
Manager 
Arizona Water Banking 
Authority 
3550 N. Central Avenue 
Phoenix, AZ 85012 

Dear Mr. Buschatzke, Ms. O'Connell, and Mr. Mccann: 

Tom Mccann 
Assistant General Manager 
Central Arizona Project 
PO Box43020 
Phoenix AZ 85080-3020 

Attached, for your information and review, is a document titled "Inter-AMA Water Storage and 
Firming Concepts." These concepts were developed jointly by the Arizona Municipal Water 
Users Association (AMWUA) and the Southern Arizona Water Users Association (SAWUA). 

We believe that successful implementation of these concepts will result in additional water 
management flexibility for CAP M&I subcontractors in both the Phoenix and Tucson Active 
Management Areas who elect to participate in the proposed program. Clearly, however, the 
Arizona Department of Water Resources, the Arizona Water Banking Authority, and the Central 
Arizona Water Conservation District also have critical roles to play in ensuring the future 
viability of a successful program. 

Those subcontractors interested in participating in the Phase 1 Pilot Program described in the 
document will be contacting you directly to discuss future actions required to implement the 
proposed pilot program. 

Sincerely, 

� 
Kathleen Ferris, Executive Director 
AMWUA 

3003 N. Central Avenue, Suite 1550 
Phoenix, AZ 85012 
(602) 248-8482

am\1\/aa 
ONE FOR WATER .. 
Arh:ona Munlclp&f Watf'f U1cr, Anodatlon 

Sheila Bowen, President 
SAWUA 

PO Box35481 
Tucson, AZ 85740-5481 
(520) 344-7109



I. GOALS

INTER-AMA WATER STORAGE AND FIRMING CONCEPTS 

February 7, 2014 

1. - Provide CAP M&I subcontractors located In Maricopa County with the ability to store
water in Pima county and obtain long term storage credits for the stored water. 

2. Increase AWBA's ability and flexibility to store more water for use by M&I
subcontractors In times of shortages of CAP water.

11. WATER STORAGE

1. Phase 1 Pilot Program

Phase 1 would be a pilot program that would recharge up to 5,000 AF in one year
using the existing infrastructure located in the Tucson AMA. A Maricopa County
M&I subcontractor(s) that is not using its entire CAP entitlement would have water
delivered for storage in Pima County, and then call for the recovery of that stored
water after DWR notification that the credits have been accrued. Participating Pima
County M&l subcontractors would accept storage credits for direct delivery in-lieu of
CAP water. In exchange, CAP water would be directly delivered to Maricopa County
M&I subcontractors via the CAP canal.

The intent of the pilot program Is to determine how or if a Phase 2 program
consisting of larger volumes of water should be implemented. DWR and the CAWCD
would need to agree that any unused entitlement could be delivered, stored and
later recovered.

2. Phase 2 Program

a. Based on the successful operation of the pilot program, including both storage
and recovery, a second phase would be implemented. Phase 2 would be
directed to providing a Maricopa County M&I subcontractor(s) that is not using
its entire CAP entitlement with the ability to have a total of 50,000 af/yr for up to
20 years delivered for storage in Pima County, and then call for delivery of any
stored water at any time after OWR notification that the credits have been
accrued.

b. In any year, when a participating Maricopa County subcontractor wanted to call
on water stored in Pima County, participating Pima County subcontractors would
agree to accept the credits in lieu of a like amount of CAP water they would have
otherwise been entitled to receive in that year, and the CAWCO would deliver
that amount of CAP water to th·e participating Maricopa County subcontractor.



c. Payment for, and ownership and maintenance of, any delivery and storage

facilities located in Pima County, and the procedures for the delivery of water for

storage in Pima County and the delivery of forborn water in Maricopa County,

would be based on terms and conditions agreed to by the part�ipating Maricopa

County and Pima County subcontractors and the CAWCD.

Ill. M&I FIRMING 

AWBA may participate in the Phase 2 program for the purposes of shortage year and 

emergency operation firming. 

1. Expansion Facilities

a. At AWBA's direction, CAWCD would use monies collected from the four-cent

water storage tax In Maricopa County to fund the construction of needed

infrastructure as an expansion of capacity at Tucson Water's existing SAVSARP

and the Metro Water District's (Metro) recharge facilities (Expansion).

b. CAWCD would own the Expansion Infrastructure, but Tucson Water would

operate and maintain it in conjunction with the existing capacity at SAVSARP,

and Metro would maintain and operate its portion of the Expansion

Infrastructure in conjunction with Its recharge facility.

c. CAWCD would hold a priority right to use the storage capacity created in the

Expansion. (If others partlclpate In the funding of the Expansion, they would

have a pro-rated joint ownership and an equal priority-right to store water at the

facility.) Tucson Water and Metro, in consultation with CAWCD, would establish

and collect storage fees required to cover the cost of operating and maintaining

the Expansion.

d. AWBA would have the first priority to use CAWCD's share of the Expansion to 

store water in the Expansion on behalf of M&I subcontractors in Maricopa

County.

e. To the extent AWBA cannot use the available Extension storage capacity In any

year, any Maricopa County M&I subcontractor could enter into an agreement to

store water in the Expansion under CAWCD's recharge priority policy, similar to a

state demonstration project.

f. As an alternative to expending monies collected from the four-cent water

storage tax in Maricopa County on expanded facilities, Tucson Water and Metro

could expand the facilities and charge as appropriate for the expansion and

2 



storage in the facilities. AWBA would then use the tax monies to pay the 
appropriate charges as storage occurs. 

2. AWBA Storage at the Expansion

a. AWBA may use monies collected from the four-cent water storage tax in
Maricopa County to store water in the Expansion for the benefit of M&I
subcontractors in the Phoenix AMA. It is expected that there is a significant
benefit to Maricopa County subcontractors by virtue of ensuring the continued

delivery of water to water treatment plants constructed and operated in
Maricopa County that would otherwise not be operated in whole or in part
during a shortage year or during an emergency shortage. It is also anticipated

that there would be a deferral or avoidance of significant capital costs in
Maricopa County for the construction of recovery infrastructure.

b. AWBA will use its best efforts to accrue at least __ AF of credits at the
Expansion between 2014 and 2023.

3. Recovery of Water Stored by AWBA at the Expansion

a. During years of shortages to CAP M&I subcontract water or during extraordinary
CAP system outages, AWBA may call on Maricopa county credits stored in the
Expansion to offset reductions in water deliveries to Maricopa County M&I
subcontractors.

b. In such case, participating Pima County M&I subcontractors would agree to
accept those credits in lieu of a like amount of CAP water that the Pima County
subcontractors would otherwise have been entitled to receive in that year, and
the water forbQrn by the Pima County subcontractors would be delivered by the
CAWCD to Maricopa County subcontractors.

4. Other Provisions

a. Any exchange/forebearance in any CAP shortage year shall not change the pro
rated share of the shortage between the Phoenix and Tucson AMAs in that year.

b. Agreements will be necessary among the parties to ensure that all parties are

fully protected.

3 



BACKGROUND - AWBA TEN-YEAR PLAN PROJECTIONS 

PHOENIX AMA 

- 334,590 AF stored in Phoenix AMA with 4-cent tax revenues from 2014-2023
- 1,671,505 AF stored for M&I firming through 2023 using 4-cent tax revenues
- Excess of 105,505 AF above M&I firming target at the end of 2023
- $75M (approximately) of Maricopa County 4-cent tax money remains in CAWCD's account at

the end of 2023

TUCSON AMA 
- 96,442 AF stored in Tucson AMA with 4-cent tax revenues from 2014-2023
- 17,489 AF stored in Tucson AMA with GW W/0 fee revenues from 2014-2023
- 603,100 AF stored for M&I firming through 2023 using both 4-cent tax and GW W/0 fee

revenues
- Shortfall of 260,900 AF below M&I firmlns target at the end of 2023
- $0 of Pima County 4-cent tax money remains in CAWCD's account at the end of 2023

4 



IV. 2013 Annual Report

NOTES:

Call on Virginia O'Connell to give an overview of the Annual Report (Powerpoint

presentation)

Call on Terri Sue Rossi to present the Ten-Year Plan (Powerpoint presentation) and

Action Planning activities.

ACTION: 

Move approval of the 2013 Annual Report and Ten-Year Plan as submitted or with 

minor or technical changes, based on discussion and direct staff to submit to 

Governor, Speaker of the House, and President of the Senate pursuant to statute. 



#BAN� 
,¾� 0� 

. 
� 

� � = 
a . § 
� �

� 1996 

2013 Annual Report 

and Ten-Vear Plan 

AWBA Quarterly Meeting 

June 18, 2014 

Presented by 

Virginia O'Connell, AWBA Manager 

Terri Sue Rossi, Technical Administrator 



Annual Report Requirements 

• Accounting of AWBA transactions and

proceedings for previous year - 2013

• All monies expended from Banking Fund and
• • • 

monies rema1n1ng

• Amount of water stored

• Number of long-term storage credits distributed

or extinguished

• Ten�Year Plan



201.3 Plan of Operation 

• Initial Plan - 52,546 AF

- 51,546 AF storage

- 1,000 AF Southside Replenishment Bank

- No Interstate storage

- • Final Deliveries - 78,230 AF

- includes 1,000 AF to SSRB

• Arizona Consumptive Use - 2. 78 MAF

- On-river 1.13 MAF
•



Interstate Banking 

• Draft_ Third Amended and Restated

Agreement presented in December 2013

• Public comment' perio·d

• Final Draft presented March 2014

• Agreement executed May 20, 2014



Interstate Banking 

• Agreement Highlights:

- AWBA is no longer obligated to accrue 1.25 MAF

credits

- SNWA and AWBA can agree to future storage,

including storing Nevada's unused apportionment

- Future storage is on a "pay-as-you-go" basis

- Administrative costs - 15% of actual or $20,000 in

years when AWBA does not store for SNWA



Interstate Banking 

• Term of agreement cha·nges:

- Agreement terminates when all existing and
future credits are recovered

- Existing credits must be recovered by December
31,2063

- Future credits_ must be recovered within 50 years
of date of storage

- Existing credits are recovered first

• Any opportunities to reduce recovery costs
w,ill n.ot. burden Arizona water users



Indian Firming Program 

•· Gila River Indian Community

- Firm up to 15,000 AF/yr when CAP NIA Priority

supplies are insufficient to meet demand

- Agreement between the Secretary and State

executed November 15, 2007

• Defines AWBA's responsibilities as the State's agent

• Allows for separate firming agreements

- Initiated discussions with the Community to

deve-lop an agreement for a firming plan



Indian Firming Program 

• Hualap·ai Tribe

• White Mountain Apache Tribe

- 3,750 AF firming obligation

- Enforceability date April 30, 2021

• Conform WMAT Water Rights Quantification

Agreement to Federal legislation

• Approval of Quantification Agreement by Gila River

and Little Colorado River adjudication courts

• State contribution of $2 milli·on toward construction of

MAT RuraJ Wate_r System 



Indian Firming Program 

• Navajo ·Nation/Ho,pi Tribe

- Legislation introduced to Congress Feb. 14, 2012

authorizing Little Colorado River Settlement

- 3,205.5 AF firming obligation

- Hopi Tribal Council rejected the legislation in

June

- Navajo Nation Council rejected settlement in July

- Navajo Nation filed amended complaint with U.S.

District Court for Arizona on June 3, 2013



Southside Replenishment Bank 

• AWBA Required to Deliver 15,000 AF to Gila River Indian Community

to Establish Southside Replenishment Bank

• Requires Minimum Delivery of 1,000 AF per Vear

• Can Be Used to Offset a Replenishment Obligation in Protection

Zones

Southside Replenishment 

Activities 

2013 Deliveries (AF} Cumulative Deliveries (AF} 

Replenishment Obligations 

Replenishment Bank 

Total Direct Deliveries 

0 

1,000 

1,000 

0 

5,000 

5,000 



Action Planning 

• Ten-Year Plan Projections

- Decreasing Excess CAP Water availability
(1.2 MAF in 2012 vs. 690,000 AF in 2013)

- Increasing water delivery costs

- AWBA effectively put further behind in achieving

its firming goals

- Multiple AWBA objectives competing for same

limited resources



Action Planning 

• Developed Special Action Planni·ng

Process:

- Prioritize competing responsibilities

- Identify actions to be implemented

• Two Solutions for Immediate Attention

1. Evaluate ability to purchase credits

accrued by others

2. Evaluate use of general fund appropriation

for Indian firming



Action Planning 
• Bureau of Reclamation Releases August 24-

Month Study

- Indicates release from Lake Powell for
water year 2·014 would be 7 .48 MAF

• With two consecutive releases of 7 .48 MAF,
elevations in Lake Mead could reach 1,050
feet, triggering a Tier 1 shortage {320 KAF) ,
by 2016

• No Excess CAP water available. to the

WBA 



Action Planning 

• In September, AWBA approved a

proposal to pursue legislation allowing

the AWBA to purchase credits using any

funds in the Arizona Water Banking Fund

• In October, AWBA approved the

submittal of a request for an

appropriation of $664,000 to pay- for the

delivery of 4,000 AF to the Southside

Replenishment Bank



Action Planning 

• Initiated 4-Step Facilitate.d Process to

Further Priorit.ize Responsi.bilities:

1. Environmental Scan

2. Vision and Commitments

3. Stakeholder Feedback and Focused

Implementation

4. Final Decisions



Action Planning 

• Environmental Scan

- Answered the question: "What are the ,

actions, trends, paradigms and

approaches emerging for the AWBA and

others relative to protecting against the

impact of shortages?"

- From four perspectives: On the Horizon,

Emerging, Established, and Dying

concepts



Action Planning 

•; Highlights of Environm·ental Scan: 

- Increasing.competition for diminishing

resources

- Possibility of near-term shortages

- Falling below the 1,025 ft elevation

- Recovery, component must still be

accomplished

- Need for public outreach



Action Planning 

• Focus questio·n for en·t•ire Action Planning

Process

"What potential roles, responsibilities and functions 

should the AWBA pursue in the future to assist the 

water community in managing water resources in 

Arizona?" 

• Vision - What does the AWBA want to see

in place in 3-5 years?



Action Planning 

• Vision Elements:

- New water supplies acquired

- Access to and .flexibility of funding

- Indian firming agreements finalized

- Adopted, implementable recovery plan

- Improved storage plan

- Alternative shortage management strategies

- Decision on AWBA statewide role

- Outr.each efforts incorporate_d in an.oual reports



Modeling 

• ADWR, CAWCD, and AWBA staff workgroup

continued work on developing consistent

baseline assumptions for the Arizona CRSS,

model that all agencies would use

• A planning tool for determining when

shortages might occur

• Collaborative effort that will continue over

time



Re-evaluation of AWBA Firming Goals 

• Goals originally developed in 1997

•· Changes in Co.lora.do River

operations 

• Changes in m.odeling

• Staff asked to re-evaluate firming

goals based on new criteria



Re-evaluation of AWBA Firming Goals 

• Two Modeling Scenarios:

1. Interim Guidelines Extended

• Extending current operating rules beyond 2026

2. Interim Guidelines Preferred Alternative

• Interim guidelines through 2026, followed by 80 P

1050 operating criteria

• Two Variable-s Each:

· 1. Director's Shortage Sharing Guidelines
2 - . . .



Joint Recovery Plan 

• ADWR, CAWCD, and AWBA staff continued to

work collaboratively to develop a recovery

plan

• Objective is to provide framework for

recovering AWBA credits in the future

• Feedback solicited from ad hoc stakeholder

group

• Sections were presented to the public as they

were completed



Joint Recovery Plan 

• Roles and responsibilities of various groups

• Types of cre.dit's accrued and where they are

l'ocated

• Methods of recovery and cost components

• When recovery may be needed, to what

extent, and opportunities for recovery

• Implementation and activities that need to

be ·a .. ccomplished



Joint Recovery Plan 

• Highlights

- Recovery in near and mid-term is primarily for
Indian and on-River firming

- Less than a 35· % chance for recovery before 2024

- Recovery for CAP M&I firming not expected
before 2035

- Recovery for SNWA a key factor

- Majority of credits are in the Pinal AMA, but

recovery methods are limited



2014 Plan of ,O�eration 

• Total Supplies Available to Pool - 84,4.08 AF

- CAGRD Reserve 8,274 AF

- Federal 11,381 AF

•· Projected AWBA Deliveries

- 59,753 AF deliveries for storage (no interstate)

- 5,000 AF Southside Replenishment Bank

·1 bl ,,, · 
. 

- ■ .. ::.....:T .Am� ■ ■ rllllT _.. ........ a 



15:ir:SI 

Monies Collected and Expended in 2·013 

Source of Funds Money Collected Money Expended 

General Funds ·1

MCWA Prepayments 

Interstate 

Shortage Reparation 

4-centTax I 
Maricopa County 

Pinal County 

Pima County 

Withdrawal Fees -11
Phoenix AMA 

Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA 

TOTAL 

$0 j 

$124,590 

$6,1�11
$1,500,000 

I 
-

- [ 
-

$4,129,&so 11 
$2,106,520 

$1,619,020 

$404,110 

$5,760,370 

$0 
-

$124,590 
-

$0 

$1,500,000 

$7,508,740 

$3,903,720 

$1,305,480 

$2,299,540 

$2,099,150 

$728,000 

$997,600 

$373,550 

$11,232,480 

G-"ii9 

Arizona Water 

Banking Authority 



Number and Location of Long-Term 

Storage Credits Accrued in 2013 {AF) 

Funding Source 

4-Cent Tax
- --- --

Withdrawal Fees 
---

General Fund 
- -

Phoenix AMA 

24,560 
- --L---- ----

4,798 
------- - --

Shortage Reparation -

,------� - -

Intrastate Total I 
---'l - -

Interstate - Nevada 

TOTAL 

29,358 11 

29,358 

Pinal AMA 

10,881 II 

7,258 

-

18,139 Ii 

18,139 

Tucson AMA 

13,987 

2,199 

8,846 

25,032 

25,032 



Monies Collected and Expended through 2013 
Source of Funds Collected 

General Funds II $11,100,s10 JI 

MCWA Prepayments $4,859,660 

State Indian Firming -11 $2,338,17011 
Interstate Water Banking $109,317,260 

Shortage R;paration -�C_ $4,499,750 ]I 

Maricopa County 

Pinal County 

Pima County 

Withdrawal Fees 

Phoenix AMA 

Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA 

TOTAL 

I 

II 

$283,316,660 11
$266,518,370 

$10,949,140 

$45,849,150 

$47,233,420 JI
$21,071,720 

$17,814,330 

$8,347,370 

$462,665,790 

Expended 

$11,100,s10 11
$4,859,660 

$2,338,110 J 

$109,087,820 

$4,499,75011 
$144,237 ,ooo ll

$91,334,970 

$10,450,160 

$42,451,870 

$44,956,�o JI ____
$19,648,240 

$16,993,890 

$8,314,710 

Available 

$0 
.._ ___ --

$0 

$0 

$229,440 

$0 

$94,079,660 

$90,183,400 

$498,980 

$3,397,280 

$2,276,580 

$1,423,480 

$820,440 

$321,080,110 $96,585,680 



.... 

Identified U.se of AWBA. Credits through 2013 

Objective Funding Source 

M&I Firming 11 J�
Phoenix AMA 

Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA 

Groundwater Mgm-t - 1! 

Phoenix AMA 

Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA 

On-River M&I Firming II

� 

� 

Arizona Water 

Banking Authority 

Maricopa 4¢ 

Pinal 4¢ 

Pima 4¢ 

- �- - -

Withdrawal Fees 

Withdraw a I Fees 

Withdrawal Fees 

General Fund 

Goal (AF) 

II II 

1,566,000 

243,000 

864,000 

I.
- - - 71·· 

-.--

_ ___ . .___ 

420,000 

Credits 

Accrued 

(AF) 

1,354,480 

198,350 

404,320 

. ----

121,800 

368,000 

95,370 

Ii 

Progress 

Toward 

Goals/Oblig. 

86% 

82% 
- ---

47% 

W/Fees 58% 

96% 

I 

Estimated 

Remaining 

Costs 
($ Million) 

$39 
-
-

--

$2.4 
---

$92.5 

{$4.2, $10.3} 

a. LI



Identified Use of AWBA Credits through 2013 

Objective 

Indian Settlements: 
-

�RIC Firming 

Future 
Settlements 

Federal 
Assistance 

� 

Southside 
Replenishment .. 

Bank 

Obligation 

up to 15,000 
AF/YR 

up to 8,724 l] 
AF/YR 

_II 
$3,000,000 

15,000 AF �I[ 
Direct 

Delivery 

Goal 
(AF) 

350,000 

200,000 

ll 

If 

Non- LTS 
Credit 

Obligation 
Achieved 

$3,000,000 

5,000 

I 
II 

Credits 
Accrued 

(AF) 

105,390 

0 

34,102 

II 

�, 

I 

Progress 
Toward 

Goals/Oblig. 

I 

30% 

0% 

100% 

27% 

I· 

Estimated 
Remaining 

Costs 
($ Million) 

-

$10.4 

-

$15.6 

$0 

� -

$1.7 



Identified Use of AWBA Cred:its thro.ugh 2013 

Objective 

Interstate Water 

Banking- NV 

Other: 

Shortage 

Reparation 

Pinal Redirect 

Credits 

II 

Obligation 

600,651 

- -

Goal (AF) 

$8,000,000 

Non-Credit 

Obligation 

Achieved 

$4,500,000 

I 

Credits 

Accrued 

(AF) 

600,651 II 

91,220 

14,125 

Progress 

Toward 

Goals/Oblig. 

100% 

-

56% 

Estimated 

Remaining 

Costs 

($ Million) 

$0 

----

$3.5 



Credits Distributed or Extinguished 

• Cumulative Credits 3.897 MAF

- Arizona Uses 3.296 MAF

- Nevada .601 MAF

• No Credits Distributed during 2013

• No Credits Extinguished during 2013

• No development of Intentionally Created

Unused Apportionment





Ten-Vear Plan: Today's Agenda 

• Background

- Purpose of Plan

- Guiding principles

- Plan components

• Ten-Vear Pl·an

• Results
Action 

• Conclusion� Planning

• Recommended Actions

��
l\AN

�� � T
e. 

� -- ; 
� ' i 
� ¥ 

� 19% 



Pur�ose of Ten-Vear Plan 

• Support develo·pm_ent of

Annual Plan of Operation

governing AWBA annual

activities

• Support policy development

• Create strategy for meeting

goals over time

e
Arizona Water 

Banking Authority 

2--- --

��
BAN

�O 
� -� ?�

. 

� 
� � = 
a i 
� ' ¥ 

� 1996 



Key Guiding Principles 

• Covers 2015 to 2024

• Incorporates CAWCD 2014-2015 rate schedule

• Assumes a 3% increase in rates from

through 2024

• Maximizes storage in Tucson

• No fund transfers

• 4C: tax expires at end of 2016

• 4C: tax monies available for water storage

#1\AN� 
�� 0� 

�
i � = 
a . § 
� �� 

• Continues CAWCD policies related to AWBA operation

• Assumes Excess CAP water will be available
,. . 



"'
 

.....
 

C
 

GJ
 

�l)1'B
0

Iq
�J,-

C
 

(;
 

0
 

{
.' 

E
 

i
 

. 
I/

 
�

�
Y

N�
 

0
 

u
 

C
 

C
 

C
 

ra
 

ra
(I)

 
ra

-
-

-

C.
....,

C.
 

c..
 

C
 

�
(U

 
�

(I)
 

ra
 

ra
 

....,
 

�
C

 
�

C
 

0
 

(U
 

I 

0.
 

I 

C
 

C
 

C
 

�
E
 

�
0

 
0

 
C.

>�
u

 
·-

E
 

a,
 

.c
 

>
u

...,
 

0
 

·-
0

 
a,

 
'I-

u
·-

...,
 

C
 

u
 

C
 

·-
(U

 
u·-

0
 

-c
 

0.
�·-

E
 

C
 

V)
u

:::I
 

I 
a,

E
 

0
 

C
 

C.
LL

 
ra

 
V)

0
 

I
-

I 
u

�

•
•
 



Plan Components 

• Common Components

iii'! 

� 

\iJIJ 

- Components found in every

Ten-Vear Plan

• Water available to AWBA

• Funding

• Storage Capacity

Arizona Water 

Banking Authority 

■ 
-I + e C:11 -

;.� lWV�O 
� "'e. 

� -� e

\" '! 
� 1996

-; 1-■-:1 ,-



Plan Com�onents 

• Plan-Specific Components

- Components specific to this

Ten-Year Plan

• Re-evaluation of firming targets

• Indian settlements

• Shortages and surplus

• Intrastate recovery and ICUA

• Water management objectives

• Interstate banking

#-SAN� 

�� "'� 
�

� � = 
a . § 
� '- �

� 1996



Ten-Vear Plan 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY - Ten-Year Plan 
2015-2024 I 

(Acre-feet) 

(a) {b) (C) (d) (e) (f) (g) 

CAP Water CAP M&I Firmilt!I Water Management Appropriation from Shortage 
YEAR Available for Reparations ($8 Indian Settlement Interstate Banking 

AWBA {4¢tax) (Witbdrawal fees) General Fund 
Million) 

Deivery Credits Deivery Credits Oeillery Ciedils Deivery Credits Deivery Credits 
Waler 

Oeivery Credits ICUA REininlg 

Av.ialile 0. 

Pre-Pkw,(t,l nia t.9m.£ I 51'9�1 'OJ.&l: �.981 ZJ6.� 600,&St �.651 
2015 54.100 ll,!!fJJ 34,372 5.(Dl 0 0 0 5,113 4.755 7,028 6:5--li 0 0 0 0 lnl,651 
2016 38,lnl 27.793 25,847 0 0 0 0 4,973 4,625 5,834 5,426 0 0 • 0 lnl,651 

I 
2017 87,900 56,716 52,746 6,818 6,341 0 0 0 0 24,366 22,660 0 0 0 0 lnl,651 
2018 77.IIOO 53,338 49.li04 1,868 1,737 0 0 0 0 22,594 21,012 0 0 0 I lnl,651 
2019 64,700 43,017 40.(Nl6 1,838 1,709 0 0 0 0 19,845 18,456 0 0 0 8 lnl,651 
2020 51,800 33,691 31,332 1,665 1,549 0 0 0 0 16,444 15,293 0 0 0 0 lnl,651 
2021 39,100 23,821 22,154 1,611 1,1\98 0 0 0 0 13,668 12 .. 711 • 0 0 0 600,651 
2022 29,700 16,571 15.411 1.560 1,451 0 0 0 11 11,569 10,759 • 0 0 0 lnl,651 
2023 14,200 4,422 4,112 1,512 1,406 0 0 0 e 8,2fl6 7,fifl 0 0 0 0 lnl,651 
2024 64,Dl 44,736 41,605 1,467 1,365 0 0 0 0 18.097 16.flll 0 0 0 0 lnl.651 

TOTAL mD I lllli.B I 9!15..111 r e.n I a.Iii [ 3'1•:291 a.e1 C 
-.- ---

- - - --



Water Available to AWBA 

• _522,000 acre-.feet available

during Ten-Year Plan

• Volume of water available

tightens until 2017

• Then gradu.ally decreases again

unti"I 2024

• Expect variability



Water Available to AWBA 

• Assumes 50% of water available

can be stored in Tucson

• Assumes 2.5% of water

availab,le can be stored in

Pinal and Phoen.ix each

• Assumes unused water

cascades down Tucson-



YEAR I CAP M&I firming
(4¢tax) 

CAP M&I firming
• Assumes $13.S million collected per year inMaricopa County

• Assumes $850,000
collected per year inPinal County

• Assumes $3 million
collected per year in
Pima. Cou_nty



(b) 

YEAR 
I 

CAP M&I firming 
(4¢tax) 

CAP M&I Firming
• Assumes 4C tax monies are used after shortage,

reparation funds in TucsonAMA 

• Assumes 4C tax monies areused before• withdrawal
tees in Tucson and PinalAMAs 



(b) 
■ 

CAP M&lfirming IIYEAR I (4¢ tax) 
I 

CAP M&I Firming
• Assumes 80% of water 

available to store in
Maricopa uses 4C tax

• 

monies
7 

31.3321 • Assumes 20% of water 
i1

available to store in
Maricopa uses
withdrawal fees



(b) 

YEAR I 
CAP M&I Firming 

(4¢tax) 

iver/

CAP M&I Firming
• 4C tax monies exhausted inTucson and Pinal by 2017(includes interest)

• Nearly $70 million availablein Phoenix AMA after 2024 • Expect around 320,000 acrefeet of credits accrued with4C tax monies



Water Management 

• Assumes $1.7 milli·on
collected. per year in
Maricopa County

• Assumes $1.5 million
coll,ected per year in
Pinal Co·unty

• Assumes $400,000
colle·cted per year in

· a.Co.u .. nt

er 
,..,a,,ilJle 10,a,,.,,aJ F.



Water Management 

• Carry-over withdrawals fees
exhausted in Pinal and
Tucson AMAs by 2017

• Carry-over withdrawal fees
available in Phoenix AMA
throughout Pla,n

• $3.8 million in withdrawal
fees will remain in
Phoenix at the end

1r r4a11age 
'tlra�,t. 



Water Management 

• Assumes- withdrawal fee

credits accrued in Tucson

used for M&I fir.ming

• Assumes withdrawal fee

credits accrued in Pinal

and Phoenix AMAs

to be used for

Indian firming

iter ,i"anage 
ithdra""ai F. 



Water Management 

• Expect just over

17,000 acre.-feet of

credits accrued for

Tucson M&I firming

er 'Fta11age1 

'd,a""al i 



General Appropriation 

• A_ssumes no general

fund approp.riation



Shortage Reparations 

• Assumes remaining

. shortage reparation

monies will be used to 

store water in Tucson 

• Expect over 9,000

acre-feet of credits

accrued

YEAR Shortage 
Reoarations ($8 

illio11J 



Indian Settlement 

• Pre-plan credits:

- 28,000 acre-feet federal

assistance credits

- 208,000 acre-feet of existing

withdrawal fee credits

• Assumes Phoenix and Pinal

AMA withdrawal fee credits

accrued used for Indian firming

• Exnect- over .,137 .... 00.0_ acre-f��·· 



\ntetstate sanYln«J 

Interstate Banking 

• Assumes no

storage for

interstate

• Assum"es no

requ·ests for ICUA

du.ring this

planning period



Jen-Year Plan Results
Table 8. AWBA Pen::entaEe of Goals Achieved tbrouzh 2024 

lOQtionandObjective 

CAP Mal Firminc 

PhoenixAMA: 
PinalAMA" 

FunctincSot,mt 

Water Storace Tax 
(4CAdwlormt} 

colfectedby 

EstimattiSGoaJ Obliption

1,566,000 Af 
243,000 AF, 

==�rmioC ........... , ... Ge:;:nd ---1---· == .. :
lndianSettlementObliptions:6 

GIUC firmin.s 

Phoenix 
Pint•I 

Withdrawal Fees 350,000 AFI 
upto 15,000 

Af/VR 

Non-Cnlclit 
GNI/Oblic

Achifted 

. 
I 

upto8724 

::::::::: 
.......... -··--··-.. ··

1
· Wathdrawal

.
Fees ·1 ......... 200,000 

Af "s3.=000
1
.... __ S3,000,000

r�c:sonAMA. Appropriation $2,338,1.71 

... -.. -......... ___ ,, ___ ........ _____ ,, 

Southside Replenishment Bank 

oenixAMA 
PirtalAMA" 

Withdrawal Fees. 

Cost of Services 

PinalAl'.!fA 
Withdrawal Fees 

Withdrawal Fees 
collected by AMA 

A&reementwith 
Nevada 

15,000Af 
Direct 

Oelive 

ss.000.000 

Credits1 

Accrued (AF) 

Percent 
GoaJ/Oblia
Achieved 



■. I 

Results: M&·1 Firming 

Table 8. AW,BA Pementage of Goals Adlieved � 202, 

11.ocation and Objectille 

CAP 'Mlll F:"mni 
Phoe:nitx AMA.% 

funamgSolaa! I Estimated Goal I Obrlgiition 

Water Storage Tax 
i4eAdvaloram· I 1S,66000 AF

,- I 

cofl ec:ted by 243 000 Af , County 

Non-Oreart
Goal/Obfrg.
Adrlieit:ed 

·········------·-·--------- ----------- ----------------------- ········- ·----------•---------------•-------------------
.sonNiM"' 

I 
864.,000 AF 

IOn-!Riva ,Mlll lFi;rmini? General Fund 4.20,000 

f)
Arizona Water

Banking Authority

Orearts
1 

PeKemt 
Goal/Olbl;g,.



Re.suits: Indian Firming 
Table 8. AWBA IPerrentage of Goals Adlievecl 1hmug!h 2024 

ilocation and Objedirle 

lilnSett� Obr1p1� 

GRl.C Frrmrng 

Prna1J 

fund"�Sour<ie 

Wi1thdrawa,I Fees 

Eitinated Goal I OJJrl§ltioln 

350 ... 000 AFfLIP to l!.5,.000 

Af./VR 

INon-Ored"'lt 
Goill/Obrg. 

Adliewed 

:::::::-············ 
................ , .. Witbdrav,al.� .. J ......... 200,

lm 

.... AFI-::.=.;: ·r ... ..... $3
)01)01

Tiucson/JIMA 

Southside Reptenishment Bar, 

� 

� 

□ 

Arizona Water 

Banking Authority 

Appro,pru.at[on

Withdrav.raO Fees; 

Cost ofSe
r

viices 
...................................... 

PonalAMA 
Wi"thdrav,:a.[ Fees 

iia(] I■ 

ll5))00AF 
0rrect: 

Os�iv.e 

·. �

S2
_.
33B

_.
171 

c.-earts1 

Al!:aued(AF) Adhieved 



Results: Oth·er 

Table 8. AWBA� of Goals Adlieved tbouglb 2024 

Groundwater IManagjement 

Phoenix AMA 

Pi'nal J; 

TLIC:50.n AMA� 

Other: 

Shorta!le ReparatK>ns-Nevada 

Pinal RednrectCrediits 

Withdrawal Fees 
coUected by AMA 

�reement with 
Nevada 

n/a 

$8,.000�000 



"'
 

C
 

0
 

·
-"'
 

:::::s
 

-

u
 

C
 

0
 

u



Conclusions 

Current 

volume is 

43% of water 

CAP Water CAPWater ·CAP Water

Available for Availabl'e for Available for 

AWBA AWBA AWBA 

(2011 1·0-YR Plan) (201210-YR Plan) (201310-YR Plan) 

Current 

volume is 

76% of water 

78,230 

64,753 

54
a
100 

38,600 

87,900 

,800 

64,700 

51
1
800 

39,100 

29,700 



Conclusions 
CAP Water 

AvaHabl'e for 

AWBA 

CAPWater 

AvaHabl:e for 

AWBA 

CAPWater 

Available for 

AWBA 

(2011 10-YR Plan) I (2012 10-YR Plan) I (201310-YR Pl:an)

Expect to produce 
around 480,000 acre-

I r-::rt mfeet of credits L -- - ---

Current 

volume is 

43% of water 

available in 

2011 

Current 

volume is 

76% of water 

available in 

2012 

78,230 

64,753 

54,100 

38,600 

87,900 

77,800 

64JOO 

51,800 

39.100

29,700 



Cone I usions ... 

• Region is moving closer to. shortage

conditions

• High likelihood of shortage as early a·s 2017

• If shortage is declared AWBA will be without

water to store

• If recovery is triggered, then Indian

obligations are expected to be. affected first
-
n• ••• - •■--�- ....... . 



• Numerically

defined goals ...

Met in Phoenix in 

2021 

Attainable in Pinal 

if withdrawal fee 

credits used 

Not attainable in 

Tucson even if 

withdrawal fee 

credits used 

.... more conclusions 

2,200,000 

2,000,000 +-

1,800,000 

Phoenix AMA 2,200,000 

2,000,000 

1,800,000 

1,600,000 1,600,000 

1,400,000 I 11 

1,200,000 I 11 

1,000,000 I 11 

11 I 1,400,000 

Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA 11,200,000 

1,000,000 

I I 
-- I 800,000 I 11 11 I I 800,000 

600,000 I 11 

400,000 I 11 

200,000 

0 

Withdrawal Fee Credits 

, I I 600,000 

400,000 

200,000 

0 



... more conclusions 

• Southside Replenishment Bank. fully

subscribed for initial deposit of 1-5,000 a,cre

feet

• Indian firming goals can be met if withdrawal

fee credits from Phoenix and Pi'nal AMAs are

. us,ed 

• 275,000 acre-feet of withdrawal fee credits to

address· water m.anagement issues



... more conclusions 

• Absent approp.riations, withdrawal fees will
become primary source of funding for Indian
firming

• Funding impacts:
- Nearly 90% of funding currently generated in

Maricopa and Pima counties and around 35% of
funding currently generated in Pinal county are
water storage tax (i.e. 4C tax) funds

- Water storage tax expected to be exhausted in Pinal
and Pima counties by 2017

- Water storage tax will be available to Maricopa
D:uabo.ut tbi.s. Dian 



� 

� 

"31 

... last conclusions 

• Firming goal re-evaluation:

-M&I goals fit within newly

defined ranges

-. 

-Indian firming below the newly

defined .range of 778,000 acre

feet to 1.3 million acre-feet

I .._ 

Arizona Water 

Banking Authority 

1.-.i 



Segway to Action 

Planning 



Cl)
 

C
 

0·-
a,

 
...,

 

E
 

�
 

0
 

"'C
.c

 
QJ

 
C

 
"'C

 
0

 
C

 
...,

cu
 

·-
E
 

C
 

E
·t:

 
0

 
cc

 
u

 • ••



R·ecommended actions ... 

• Focus on ln:dian firming goals

- Develop agreements for satisfying

Indian firming obligations

- Complete deliveries to SSRB

- Seek general fund appropriations to

support Indian firming



... more recommended actions 

• Implement next step i.n Joint Recovery

Plan

• Decide if numeric goals should be

adJusted and if so how

• Establish policy on use of shortage

reparation credits

• Apply Tucson AMA withdrawal fee

cre:dits to .M&I firming



... a few more 

• Continu,e evaluati·ng Inter-AMA

storage

• Supplement deliveries of Excess CAP

water with purchase of LTSCs to

leverage lower priced water today

• Pursue continuation of water storage

tax beyond 2016



.. .last recommended actions 

• Develop public outreach

program

• Revise Action Plan Year-One

Accomplishments to align

with Ten-Year Plan



��
BAN

�� 
� '7e,

� � ; 

\. , I 
� 1996 

2013 Annual Report 

and Ten-Year Plan 

AWBA Quarterly Meeting 

June 19, 2013 

Presented by 

Virginia O'Connell, AWBA Manager 

Terri Sue Rossi, Technical Administrator 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

ANNUAL REPORT 

2013 

1996 -¥ 

Submitted 

July 1, 2014 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Arizona Water Banking Authority 

Annual Report 
2013 

Honorable Janice K. Brewer 

Governor of Arizona 

Members 

Michael J. Lacey 
Chair 

Maureen R. George 
Vice-chair 

Clifford A. Neal 
Secretary 

Jim Hartdegen 
Member 

John Mawhinney 
Member 

Ex officio 
Speaker Andy Tobin 
Senator Gail Griffin 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Table of Contents 

Acronyms and Abbreviations .•...••..•..•..•.••..•....••••.•..................•.....•..••••••••.•••.......•..•................•.••••...• 6 

Summary ................................................................................................................................................ 7 

Annual Report Requirements ••...•..•....•....•.•.......•..........•....•....••••••.•••••...•••••••.••••...•.•....•.•...•.•.••••.•••..•. 8 

AWBA 2013 Organizational Chart .••.•••••••••••.•.•.•••.•....•.••••••••••••••.•••••••••••.•..••.•••...•.••••......•••.•..•••••••••••• 9 

Update .••..••••••••••.•••••••••••.•••••••.•.•••••.••....••••••••••••••••••••.••••..••.•.•••••••••••.•••••••••••••••••.••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 1 O 

Activities and Projects - 2013 •••••.....•.•.•.............•..•....•...•...•••••••.•..••.....•....•..••••.•.•..•.•...•.•..••.•..••••••••. 11 

Monies Expended from the Banking Fund ..................................................................................... 18 

Long-term Storage Credits •••••••••..•..••.••••.•..•...••.•..•....................•...•...•.•.........••........•.........•.......•.••.. 19 

Long-term Storage Credits Distributed or Extinguished by the Authority .................................. 24 

Ten-Year Plan .•••••••••••••••••••.•••••••••....•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••.•••••••••.•••••..•••••••••••.•.••.••.•••.•.•••..•.•.•••••.•••••••••• 25 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

List of Tables 

Table 1. Monies Collected and Expended in 2013 by Sou_rce of Funds ..................................... 19 

Table 2. Monies Collected and Expended through December 2013 for Water Banking 
Activities and Monies Remaining Available ................................................................... 19 

Table 3. Number and Location of Long-term Storage Credits Accrued in 2013 (AF) ............... 20 

Table 4. Cumulative Long-term Storage Credits Accrued through December 2013 (AF) ........ 20 

Table S. Identified Uses of Long-term Storage Credits Accrued through December 2013 and 
Percentage of AWBA Goals Achieved ............................................................................ 22 

Table &a. Average Annual Cost for the AWBA to Obtain a Long-term Storage Credit for 
lnffastate Storage ............................................................................................................. 23 

Table 6b. Average Annual Cost for the AWBA to Obtain a Long-term Storage Credit for 
Storage on Behalf of Nevada ........................................................................................... 23 

Table 7. Ten-Year Plan ................................................................................................................... 26 

Table 8. AWBA Percentage of Goals Achieved through 2024 .................................................... 27 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Acronyms and Abbreviations 

ADWR Arizona Department of Water Resources 
Agreement to Firm Agreement to Firm Future Supplies executed February 4, 

2005 between the Arizona Water Banking Authority and the 
- Mohave County Water Authority 

Amended Agreement to Amended Agreement to Firm Future Supplies executed March 
Firm 17, 2010. 
AMA Active Management Area 
AWBA Arizona Water BankinQ Authoritv 
AWB Fund Arizona Water BankinQ Fund 
AWSA Arizona Water Settlements Act 
CAGRD Central Arizona Groundwater Replenishment District 
CAP Central Arizona Project 
CAWCD Central Arizona Water Conservation District 
CRCN Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Credits Lone-term storace credits 
CASS Colorado River Svstem Simulation Model 
Decree Consolidated Decree of the U.S. Supreme Court in Arizona v.

California 

GRIC Gila River Indian Communitv 
GRIIDD Gila River Indian lrriaation and Drainage District 
GSF Groundwater Savinas Facilitv 
ICUA Intentionally Created Unused Apportionment 
lnteragency Group lnteragency Recovery Planning Group 
IGA Intergovernmental Agreement 
JLBC Joint Legislative Budget Committee 
M&I Municipal and Industrial 
MAF Million Acre-feet 
MCWA Mohave Countv Water Authoritv 
Metropolitan Metrooolitan Water District of Southern California 
NIA Non-Indian Agricultural 
Plan Annual Plan of Operation 
Quantification White Mountain Apache Tribe Water Rights Settlement 
Agreement Aareement 
Reclamation U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 
SIRA Storage and Interstate Release Agreement 
SNWA Southern Nevada Water Authoritv 
SSAB Southside Replenishment Bank 
USF Underaround Storaae Facilitv 

6 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Summary 

The role of the AWBA has changed considerably since i1 was first established in 1996. The initial 
objective of the AWBA was to store Excess CAP water to mitigate the effects of future Colorado River 
shortages on municipal and industrial water users, provide groundwater management benefits, assist 
the State in the settlement of Indian water rights -claims, and assist both California and Nevada 
through interstate banking arrangements. In time, what began as opportunities to beneficially utilize 
the state's full entitlement of Colorado River water ultimately grew in certain cases into obligations the 
AWBA must fulfill. 

Through 2013, the AWBA has accrued approximately 3.9 million acre-feet (MAF) of long-tenn storage 
credits (credits) toward achieving its various goals. Of this amount, nearly 3.3 MAF of credits are for 
Arizona uses and 600,651 are for interstate purposes accrued on behalf of Nevada. While this has 
been a major accomplishment, the AWBA has not yet met all of its goals, and will be challenged to do 
so in the future with diminishing water supplies and financial resources. 

In May of 2013, the AWBA executed the Third Amended and Restated Interstate Water Banking 
Agreement with the Southern Nevada Water Authority (SNWA) and the Colorado River Commission 
of Nevada (CRCN). Discussions were initiated by the parties in 2011 to evaluate alternative ways to 
structure the existing agreement so that all parties could benefit. The new agreement releases the 
AWBA from its obligation to accrue a specified amount of credits for SNWA, yet keeps in place a 
framework for future storage and more importantly, maintains the relationship that has been forged 
between the states. 

In 2013, the volume of water that was available to the AWBA was the lowest since its operations 
began, starting the year with just over 52,500 acre-feet of water. In addition, the ten-year planning 
projections showed that future water availability was nearly half (690 KAF) of what had been 
projected in 2012 (1.2 MAF). Even these projections may be optimistic given the current status of 
Colorado River conditions. Last year, was the first year that the Secretary declared that releases from 
Lake Powell would be limited to 7.48 MAF for the following water year rather than the normal 8.23 
MAF. Projections had also indicated that if drought conditions linger, Arizona coulcf experience its 
first shortage by 2016. 

These revelations prompted the AWBA to initiate a special action planning process to prioritize its 
competing responsibilities and identify actions to be implemented to address the pressing issues 
facing the AWBA. Two items emerged for immediate attention: 1) pursuing legislation to allow the 
AWBA to purchase long-term storage credits using funds in the Arizona Water Banking Fund and, 2) 
requesting a general fund appropriation to assist in meeting the State's Indian settlement obligations. 
The AWBA Commission participated in a facilitated process to develop additional elements of the 
action plan. 

During 2013, AWBA staff continued to work with staff from ADWR and CAWCD as part of the 
lnteragency Recovery Planning Group to develop a plan for recovering AWBA credits in the future, an 
integral component for firming water supplies. The group, with the involvement of an ad hoc 
stakeholder group, achieved major strides toward completion of the plan. The recovery plan will be 
essential for providing the fram�work for how recovery will be accomplished in the future. 

7 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Annual Report Requirements 

Arizona Revised Statutes§ 45-2426 mandates that the AWBA file an annual report with the 
Governor, President of the Senate, and Speaker of the House of Representatives on or before July 1 
of each year for the previous calendar year. The report is required to be a full and complete account 
of the AWBA's transactions and proceedings and must include the following: 

1. An accounting of all monies expended from the banking fund.

2. An accounting of all monies in the banking fund remaining available to the AWBA.

3. The amount of water stored by the AWBA.

4. The number of long-term storage credits distributed or extinguished by the AWBA.

5. The purposes for which long-term storage credits were distributed or extinguished by the
AWBA.

6. A description of the water banking services and interstate water banking to be undertaken by
the AWBA during the following ten-year period and a projection of the capacity of the AWBA
during that period to undertake those activities in addition to storing Colorado River water
brought into the state through the CAP for all of the following purposes:

a. Protecting this state's municipal and industrial (M&I) water users against future water
shortages on the Colorado River and disruptions of operation of the CAP.

b. Fulfilling the water management objectives of the state.

c. Making water available to implement the settlement of water rights claims by Indian
communities within Arizona.

7. Any other matter determined by the authority to be relevant to the policy and purposes of the
AWBA.

8 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

ADWR Support 

AWBA 2013 Organizational Chart 

Sandra Fabritz-Whitney 
Chair 

Maureen R. George 
Vice-Chair 

Lisa A. Atkins/ Clifford A. Neal 
Secretary 

Jim Hartdegen (Designee) John Mawhinney 

Ex officio Members 
Speaker Andy Tobin Senator Gait Griffin (Designee) 

Virginia O'Connell 
Manager 

Terri Sue C. Rossi 
Technical 

Administrator 

Tim Henley 
Contract 

Consultant 

Ken Slowinski and Nicole Klobas 
Legal Counsel 

CAWCD Support 

There were several membership changes to the AWBA Commission in 2013. On February 7th, Ms. 
Pamela Pickard, President of the CAWCD Board of Directors, designated Director Jim Hartdegen to 
represent CAWCD on the AWBA Commission replacing Director Lisa A Atkins. On February 9th

, the 
·Legislature confirmed Clifford A. Neal's appointment to the Commission on September 28, 2012. In
March, Senate President Andy Biggs designated Senator Gail Griffin to serve as the Senate ex officio

member. In addition, Commission member Neal was elected Secretary replacing Commission
member Atkins and Commission member Maureen R. George was re-elected as Vice-Chair. There
was also one change to AWBA staff. In January, Ms. Ajita Athalye, Accountant, retired from her part
time position. Her responsibilities have been assumed by the Arizona Department of Water
Resources (ADWR).

9 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Update 

In 2013, the AWBA continued to experience limitations in water availability. The amount of excess 
CAP water available to the AWBA and other lower priority users has steadily decreased due to an 
increase in demand by higher priority users. This trend is anticipated to continue and may in fact 
worsen if current hydrologic conditions in the Colorado River watershed persist. Based on the 
projections of the Bureau of Reclamation's 2013 August 24 Month Study, the Secretary of the Interior 
(Secretary) for the first time, declared that the release volume from Lake Powell for the following 
water year would be 7 .48 million acre-feet (MAF) instead of the normal water release volume of 8.23 
MAF. Projections also indicated that with the likelihood of two consecutive years of 7.48 MAF release 
volumes, there was a high probability that the water level elevation in Lake Mead could drop to or 
below 1075 feet, resulting in a first-level shortage declaration in 2016. While this level of shortage 
(320 KAF) would not prompt a firming obligation, it would mean excess CAP water would not be 
available to the AWBA and other CAP customers, and agricultural supplies would be reduced by 
nearly half (400 KAF to155 KAF). 

The AWBA Plan of Operation for 2013 (Plan) identified 52,546 acre-feet of water available for delivery 
under CAWCD's Access to Excess policy adopted in 2009. This was the lowest volume of water 
available to the AWBA since its inception in 1996. During the year however, an additional 25,870 
acre-feet of water became available through CAWCD's process for remarketing previously allocated 
CAP supplies. At year's end, AWBA deliveries totaled 78,230 acre-feet, which included 1,000 acre
feet of direct deliveries to the Southside Replenishment Bank. The quantity of water that was 
delivered to each storage facility is described in Appendix A and totaled 31,027 acre-feet in the 
Phoenix AMA, 19,628 acre-feet in the Pinal AMA, and 26,575 acre-feet in the Tucson AMA. The Plan 
did not include an interstate water banking component. 

Based on the Decree accounting data, total consumptive use of Colorado River water by Arizona for 
2013 was 2. 78 MAF. Distribution of the 2. 78 MAF was approximately 1.13 MAF for direct uses along 
the Colorado River and CAP diversions of 1.65 MAF (U.S. Bureau of Reclamation, Lower Colorado 
River Operations, Colorado River Accounting and Water Use Report Arizona, California, Nevada -
Calendar Year 2013, dated May 2014). Arizona did not use its full entitlement of 2.8 MAF in 2013, 
leaving just over 20,600 acre-feet in Lake Mead. CAWCD joined with the Southern Nevada Water 
Authority (SNWA) and the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) to ask the 
Secretary to leave unused apportionment in Lake Mead as a benefit to the system. To date, the 
Secretary has granted this request. 

The AWBA continued its quarterly meeting schedule in 2013 with meetings on March 20, June 19, 
September 4, and December 4. There were two special meetings held by the AWBA on April 24, 
2013 and October 16, 2013. The first addressed CAWCD's proposal to use 4¢ ad valorem tax monies 
to replenish shortfalls to its strategic reserves and the second involved conducting an environmental 
scan for an action planning effort conducted by the AWBA during 2013. 

AWBA staff attended various workgroup meetings that continued throughout the year. These 
workgroups included the CAWCD, ADWR, and AWBA lnteragency Recovery Planning Group, 
ADWR's Ad Hoc Recovery Planning Group, and the ADWR, CAWCD, AWBA staff workgroup 
meetings on developing Arizona Colorado River baseline modeling assumptions and ADWR Fourth 
Management Plan Enhanced Aquifer Management concepts. 

10 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Activities and Projects - 2013 

Interstate Banking 

In December 2010, the AWBA and SNWA executed a letter agreement that temporarily ame_nded 
certain provisions of tne Second Amended Interstate Water Banking Agreement. After the execution 
of the letter agreement SNWA, CRCN, CAWCD, and AWBA staff continued to meet to discuss all 
aspects of the overall agreement and as a result of those discussions, a draft Third Amended and 
Restated Agreement for Interstate Water Banking (Third Amended Agreement) was presented to the 
AWBA Commission in December of 2012. The proposed changes included the removal of the 
AWBA's obligation to accrue 1.25 maf of long-term storage credits on behalf of SNWA and 
considered payments previously made by SNWA ($123 million) to be payment in full for the 
600,651acre-feet of credits accrued to date. Any future storage, including the use of Nevada's unused 
apportionment, would be determined annually and associated costs would be billed directly to SNWA. 
In addition, SNWA's costs for administrative services would be reduced to $20,000 per year in years 
when the AWBA does not store water for SNWA. 

The AWBA Commission had elected to postpone action on the draft agreement until the next 
quarterly meeting scheduled for March 2013 to allow ample time to consider the proposed changes 
and to seek public comments. The Third Amended Agreement was subsequently executed May 20, 
2013 with three additional changes. These changes provided additional clarification on the terms for 
recovery of the existing credits, clarification on CAWCD's rate setting provisions, and recognition that 
any opportunities for cost reductions associated with the recovery of the credits will not burden 
Arizona water users. 

Interstate Water Banking Report 

Since 2006, the AWBA has been required to submit a report to the Joint Legislative Budget 
Committee (JLBC) pursuant to A.R.S. § 45-2473. This report must be submitted by October 1 for the 
previous fiscal year if the AWBA was owed or received any monies pursuant to an interstate water 
banking agreement . The report must account for all monies received or disbursed pursuant to that 
agreement. Under the current Third Amended Agreement, SNWA is no longer required to make 
scheduled payments to the AWBA for interstate storage. Rather, storage costs are billed directly to 
SNWA on a pay-as-you-go basis. Because there was no interstate storage, the AWBA was not 
required to transmit an Interstate Water Banking Report to the JLBC for Fiscal Year 2012-2013. The 
AWBA will submit a report if water is stored for interstate purposes in future years. 

Indian Firming Program 

In 2013, AWBA staff initiated discussions with representatives for the Gila River Indian Community 
(GRIC) to evaluate opportunities for developing a firming plan. Staff also participated in discussions of 
the Hualapai Tribe Indian water settlements and kept apprised of the status of other ongoing 
settlements. The AWBA concerns were mainly related to the need to firm water supplies resulting 
from the settlements. 

11 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Gila River Indian Community 

Under the Arizona Water Settlements Act (AWSA), the AWBA, as agent for the state, is required to 
firm up to15,000 acre-feet per year of CAP NIA Priority water for the GRIC when supplies are 
insufficient to meet the demands of the Community. The Agreement between the Secretary and the 
State of Arizona for the Firming of CAP Indian Water, exectJted on November 15, 2007, defines the 
AWBA's firming responsibilities, but also includes a provision that allows the AWBA to enter into a 
separate agreement with the GRIC to carry out its firming obligation. In 2013, AWBA staff began 
discussions with the GAIC on the potential for developing such an agreement. The intent of the 
parties is to structure a firming plan that is flexible by offering alternative firming options. 

White Mountain Apache Tribe 

The Claims Resolution Act of 2010, which includes the White Mountain Apache Tribe Water Rights 
Quantification Agreement (Quantification Agreement), was signed by the President on December 8, 
2010. Under this settlement, the AWBA is required to firm up to 3,750 acre-feet per year of non
Indian agricultural (NIA) CAP water until 2108. This obligation is part of the 8,724 acre-feet per year 
firming requirement identified for future settlements under the Arizona Water Settlements Act 
(AWSA). There are several activities that need to be completed to meet the enforceability date of 
April 30, 2021. These include: 1) revising the Quantification Agreement to conform to the federal 
legislation and execution of the revised agreement by the parties; 2) approval of the Quantification 
Agreement by the Gila River and Little Colorado River adjudication courts; and 3) a contribution of $2 
million from the State of Arizona toward the construction of the White Mountain Apache Tribe Rural 
Water System. In 2012, the Arizona Legislature appropriated $2 million toward the settlement. In 
addition, the parties completed the revisions to the Quantification Agreement and by July 2013, all 
Arizona parties, including the governor, had signed the agreement. [An application to approve the 
amended and restated agreement was filed with the adjudication court on April 29, 2014] 

Navajo Nation/Hopi Tribe 

On February 14, 2012, Senator Jon Kyl introduced legislation in Congress authorizing a Little 
Colorado River Settlement. The parties finalized language for a proposed settlement in March and 
agreed to submit the settlement agreement to their principals for approval. The settlement included 
an allocation of NIA CAP water to the Navajo Nation for use at Window Rock that would have an 
AWBA firming obligation of up to 3,205.5 acre-feet per year. This obligation would have been part of 
the firming obligation for future settlements identified in the AWSA and would therefore not have 
resulted in an increase the AWBA's firming obligations. In June of 2012, the Hopi Tribal Council 
voted to reject the legislation and in July, the Navajo Nation Council voted to reject the settlement. 
Final efforts among the parties to continue negotiations to try to resolve the outstanding issues were 
unsuccessful. 

The Navajo Nation decided it would not request another stay, opting instead to litigate the lawsuit it 
filed against the Secretary of Interior in 2003. On June 3, 2013, the Nation filed an amended 
complaint with the U.S. District Court for the District of Arizona that asserts the Department of the 
Interior breached its fiduciary duty to the Nation by failing to determine the Nation's rights to the 
waters of the Lower Colorado River. The Nation is requesting the court hold unlawful and set aside 
certain operations of the Lower Colorado River, including interstate banking regulations and the 
Storage and Interstate Release Agreement, because the Secretary failed to consider the needs of the 
Nation for Colorado River water. ADWR has intervened as a defendant in the lawsuit on behalf of the 

12 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

State of Arizona. Other interveners include CAWCD and SRP, the Arizona Power Authority, Nevada, 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, Imperial Irrigation District and the Coachella Valley 
Water District. Motions to dismiss the lawsuit were file and the parties are currently awaiting a 
decision by the judge on those motions. 

Southside Replenishment Bank 

In 2009, the AWBA executed an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with the Gila River Indian 
Community for the purpose of establishing the Southside Replenishment Bank (SSRB) as mandated 
by the AWSA. The AWBA must schedule the delivery of at least 1,000 acre-feet per year to the 
SSAB until 15,000 acre-feet have been delivered. The first delivery was made in 2009. Since then, 
the AWBA has scheduled the delivery of 1,000 acre-feet of water each year bringing the total volume 
of the SSRB to 5,000 acre-feet in 2013. 

By memorandum dated September 23, 2013, the AWBA was informed by ADWR that there were no 
irrigation replenishment obligations for the 2012 reporting year. It is not anticipated that there will be 
irrigation replenishment obligations for the 2013 reporting year, but that information will not be 
available until October of 2014 and will be reported in the 2014 Annual Report. 

Action Planning 

The amount of Excess CAP water available to the AWBA under the 2013 Ten-Year Plan (2014 
through 2024) showed nearly half the amount of water available from the previous year's Ten-Year 
Plan with projected volumes decreasing from 1.2 MAF to approximately 690 KAF. Projected water 
delivery rates also increased, further limiting the amount of credits the AWBA can accrue using 
certain funding sources. The decrease in available supplies combined with increasing costs have put 
the AWBA further behind in achieving its firming goals, particularly in the Tucson AMA, where current 
funding sources are already determined insufficient for meeting the firming goal. Moreover, there are 
multiple AWBA objectives competing for the same limited resources. 

To begin addressing these issues, the AWBA initiated two solutions. In September, the AWBA 
approved a proposal to amend AWBA statutes to expand the AWBA's authority to purchase long-term 
storage credits for water banking purposes using any funding source available to the AWBA. This 
authority would give the AWBA additional flexibility in achieving its goals and obligations, by allowing 
the accrual of credits when supplies are unavailable or limited, accrual of additional credits at or near 
current costs, and the replacement of general fund credits when they are used for firming. 

At a special meeting in October, the AWBA also approved a request for a general fund appropriation 
for $664,000 to pay for the delivery of 4,000 acre-feet of Excess CAP water to the Southside 
Replenishment Bank in 2014. Given the projections for a potential shortage in 2016, the AWBA 
planned to deliver the remaining balance of 10,000 acre-feet of water to the SSRB in 2014 and 2015 
to ensure its obligation was met in the event water was not available to the AWBA. The AWBA also 
reserved the option to request an appropriation to pay for an additional 4,000 acre-feet of deliveries to 
the Replenishment Bank in 2015, subject to hydrologic conditions at that time. 

Furthermore, staff was directed to begin developing an action plan that prioritizes the AWBA's. 
responsibilities and identifies specific actions that can be taken to address the diminishing water 
supplies and financial resources available to the AWBA. In response, staff proposed a four-step 
facilitated process. These steps included an environmental scan, vision and commitments, 

13 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

stakeholder feedback, and final decisions to be made by the AWBA. The process was facilitated by 
Terri Sue Rossi, AWBA Technical Administrator, trained in Technology of Participation methods. 

The environmental scan was conducted at the October special meeting. Participants included AWBA 
Commission members and staff, staff from ADWR and CAWCD, and several stakeholders. The 
purpose of the environmental scan was to seek input from the participants on the following question, 
"What are the actions, trends, paradigms and approaches emerging for the AWBA and others relative 
to protecting against the impact of shortages?"The question was evaluated from the perspective of 
emerging, established, and dying concepts. Some of the resulting implications included: 

• Increasing competition for diminishing resources, including water and money
• Possibility of near term shortage and falling below the 1025 ft. elevation in Lake Mead
• Potential for major changes in Colorado River operations
• Uncertainty
• Need to make tough decisions on priorities
• Recovery component of the program must still be accomplished
• Celebrate success of AWBA and others in accomplishing what has been achieved to date
• Need for public outreach, education and political support
• Energy water nexus

The second step of the process was conducted at the December quarterly meeting. Participation was 
limited to AWBA Commission members and staff. The focus was the following question, 'What 
potential roles, responsibilities and functions should the AWBA pursue in the future to assist the water 
community in managing water resources in Arizona?" The objective was to determine what 
accomplishments the AWBA would .like to see in place in the next 3-5 years. These included: 

• Acquired new water supplies
• Access to and flexibility of funding streams
• Indian firming agreements finalized
• Adopted, implementable recovery plan
• Imp.roved storage plan
• Alternative shortage management strategies
• Decision on AWBA statewide role
• Outreach efforts incorporated into annual reports

The third step of the action planning process, public review and development of implementation plans 
for projected accomplishments, was scheduled for the following year with results to be discussed at 
the first AWBA quarterly meeting in 2014. 

Modeling 

AWBA staff continued meeting with staff from ADWR's Colorado River Management section and 
CAWCD to develop consistent baseline assumptions for the Arizona CASS model for all the agencies 
to use. The model is one of the planning tools available to the AWBA to determine when shortages 
might occur, how deep they might be, and the volume.of water the AWBA may need to firm in the 
future. A draft table of assumptions was presented to the AWBA in September. The modeling process 
is dynamic and will continue evolving as new information becomes available. 

14 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Re-evaluation of AWBA firming goals 

As part of the AWBA's action planning initiative, staff was also directed to re-evaluate the firming 
goals originally developed in 1997. The goals were developed using the modeling tools and 
assumptions available at that time. Since then, there have been several changes both in how the 
Colorado River is operated and how it is modeled. 

Beginning with the consensus Arizona baseline assumptions, staff proposed two modeling scenarios: 

1. Interim Guidelines Extended - extending the operating rules beyond their expiration in 2026.
2. Interim Guidelines Preferred Alternative - utilizing the Interim Guidelines through 2026

followed by BOP 1 050 operating criteria, which is a probabilistic protection of Lake Mead at an
elevation of 1 ,050 feet.

Each scenario contained two additional modeling variables: 

1. Utilization of the Director's Recommended Arizona Shortage Sharing Guidelines - prorating
shortage amounts based on entitlements.

2. Utilizing Arizona shortage sharing based on a pro rata share of shortage amounts centered on
annual uses.

AWBA staff planned to work in conjunction with ADWR's Colorado River Management section and 
present the modeling results to AWBA Commission members when completed. [The results were 
presented at the AWBA's April 16, 2014 meeting and are discussed in the Ten-Year Plan section.] 

Joint Recovery Planning 

During 2013, AWBA, ADWR, and CAWCD staff continued to work collaboratively on the development 
of a joint recovery plan as part of the lnteragency Recovery Planning Group (lnteragency Group). 
The objective of the recovery plan is to provide a framework for how recovery of AWBA credits may 
be accomplished in the future._ Through this process, the lnteragency Group solicited feedback from_ 
stakeholder representatives, known as the Ad Hoc Recovery Group. As various sections of the 
recovery plan were completed they were presented to the both the AWBA Commission and CAWCD 
Board of Directors for additional comment and public input. 

The recovery plan touches on the roles and responsibilities of the entities involved in the recovery of 
AWBA credits. It also looks at the types of credits that have been accrued, where they are located, 
different methods for how they can be recovered, and the estimated costs components associated 
with those recovery methods. To evaluate when recovery may be needed and to what extent, the 
lnteragency Group used Reclamation's Colorado River System Simulation (CASS), using Arizona 
baseline assumptions, to generate a range of future Colorado River supplies available to Arizona. 
The results were further analyzed using a recovery model to calculate the probability of specific 
recovery volumes under the various supply and demand conditions through the 2045 planning period. 

The results of these efforts indicated that recovery in the near and mid-term timeframes would be 
primarily to firm Indian and on-River supplies. While there might be shortages to Excess CAP water 
supplies in the near-term, the probability of triggering a recovery requirement was relatively low, with 
a less than 35 percent chance that recovery would be needed before 2024. Recovery for firming CAP 
M&I priority supplies was not projected to occur before 2035. These results will need to be re-

15 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

evaluated periodically for reassessment due to continually changing hydrologic conditions and 
reservoir status. A key component, however, will be the timing of requests by SNWA for the 
development of intentionally created unused apportionment and the amounts that will be requested. 
The location of the AWBA's credits for meeting near and mid tem, recovery needs between now and 
2045, including recovery for interstate purposes, could also pose a challenge since a majority of the 
credits available for those purposes are in the Pinal AMA where recovery methods are limited. 

The lnteragency Group provided a draft recovery plan with its final sections regarding implementation 
and future activities and commitments, to the Ad Hoc Recovery Group for review and comment in 
mid-December. Release of the final draft was scheduled for mid-January 2014. [A Preface to the Joint 
Recovery Plan that acknowledges that the plan advances the objectives of the IGA among ADWR, 
AWBA, and CAWCD, was executed on May 6, 2014 and incorporated into the final plan. The 
agencies continue to work cooperatively on the future steps outlined in the plan.] 

2014 Plan of Operation 

The AWBA 2014 Plan of Operation (Plan) was adopted on December 4, 2013. Water availability was 
again the primary limiting factor in developing the Plan. The volume of water available to the excess 
CAP pool that is shared by the AWBA, CAGRD, and the Federal government was limited to 84,400 
acre-feet. The portion available for use by the AWBA was 64,753 acre-feet. 

Under the Plan, 59,753 acre-feet will be delivered for recharge and includes 15,Bn acre-feet of 
storage in the Phoenix AMA, 17,100 acre-feet in the Pinal AMA, and 26,776 acre-feet in the Tucson 
AMA. Additionally, 5,000 acre-feet will be delivered directly to the GRIC for the SSAB. There is no 
interstate storage planned for 2014. 

ADWR Fourth Management Plan 

During 2013, AWBA staff attended several ADWR stakeholder meetings on enhanced aquifer 
management (EAM), a goal for the Fourth Management Plan. ADWR is seeking feedback from 
stakeholders on its conceptual proposal that aims to reduce the disparity between storage and 
recovery locations by modifying the "cut to the aquifer", the volume of recharged water that is 
determined to be non-recoverable. The proposal aims to encourage recovery within areas of storage 
by increasing the cut to the aquifer, or decreasing the volume that can be recovered remotely from 
where it was originally stored. The objective is to improve aquifer health across the AMAs. The 
proposal would only apply to future long-term storage. 

The proposal indicates there could be some allowances for entities recharging and recovering for 
drought purposes. The AWBA has requested that ADWR consider exempting the recovery of AWBA 
credits for this reason, particularly because the AWBA is not authorized to recover its credits and 
must rely on others for this activity. At a time when additional flexibility may be needed, the concept 
proposed could result in unintentional uncertainty with regard to the amount of credits that may be 
needed to firm future supplies. It could also further complicate accounting requirements for interstate 
storage. 

ADWR scheduled additional meetings for 2014 and will evaluate comments received on its proposal. 

16 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Website 

Staff continues to utilize the AWBA website in an effort to provide timely and accurate information to 
the water community regarding the AWBA's activities: www.azwaterbank.gov. The web page 
contains information about the AWBA, its Commission members and staff, announcements, 
meetings, storage facilities, water deliveries and long-term storage credits accrued. The webpage 
also contains documents that may be downloaded and provides links to other water-related websites. 

For additional information regarding the AWBA, please contact Virginia O'Connell 
(voconnell@azwater.gov) or Terri Sue Rossi (tsrossi@azwater.gov) or by phone at 602-771-8487. 

17 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Monies Expended from the Banking Fund 

Arizona Revised Statutes §45-2425 mandates the various sources of monies for the Arizona Water 
Banking (AWB) Fund. The AWB Fund is administered by the AWBA. In 2013, the AWBA obtained its 
funding from the following sources: 

1. Fees for groundwater pumping are collected within the Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson AMAs. Fees
for water banking purposes are charged at $2.50 per acre-foot. Legislative changes allow for
groundwater withdrawal fees to be collected and available to the AWBA beyond 2016 (A.R.S. §45-
611 (c)(3)). Long-term storage credits accrued with these monies must be used to benefit the
AMA in which the monies were collected.

2. No ad valoremtax revenues were deposited into the AWB Fund in 2013. In June of 2013, the
CAWCD Board again resolved that all taxes to be levied for the following tax year would be
retained by CAWCD. All ad valorem monies previously held in the AWB Fund were expended by
2007. Money from this source must be used to benefit the county in which it was collected.

3. No general fund appropriation money was deposited in the AWB Fund in 2013.

4. Pursuant to the Agreement to Firm Future Supplies (Agreement to Firm), Mohave County Water
Authority (MCWA) agreed to prepay the AWBA to set aside 230,280 acre-feet of credits that were
transferred to the MCWA sub-account. Once the credits were identified for use by an entity
outside of the three-county service area, CAWCD was required to charge the AWBA a fee in lieu
of the 4¢ ad valorem tax. Monies collected from MCWA are used to offset the CAWCD fees which
are charged at the same rate and on the same quarterly schedule as MCWA's prepayments to the
AWBA. The final payment due under the Amended Agreement to Firm was made by MCWA in
November of 201 O for the first quarter of 2011. The first prepayment under the Amended
Agreement to Firm that sets aside an additional 25,894 acre-feet of credits was made in
September of 2011 for the quarter beginning on October 1. To date, MCWA has made twelve out
of the twenty payments required.

Table 1 shows the money the AWBA collected and the money that was expended for delivery and 
storage of water in 2013 by source of funds. Table 2 shows the total money received, expended and 
remaining through December 2013 by source of funds. 

18 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Table 1. Monies Collected and Expended In 2013 by Source of Funds 

Source of Funds Collected 

General Funds $0 

In-Lieu Fund - MCWA Prepayments1
- $124,590 

State Indian Firming - $0 

Interstate Water Banklng2 $6,130 

Shortage Reparations • Nevada $1,500,000 
4C Ad volorem Tax3 

Maricopa County $0 

Pinal County $0 

Pima County $0 

Subtotal for Ad valorem $0 
Groundwater Withdrawal Fees 

Phoenix AMA $2,106,520 

Pinal AMA $1,619,020 

Tucson AMA $404,110 

Subtotal for Withdrawal Fees $4,129,650 
TOTAL $5,760,370 

1 MCWA paid its remaining share of $22,920 in full, reducing future quarterly payments to $23,984. 
2 Amount collected is interest and $1,218 in monies recovered from Lehman Brothers bankruptcy. 
3 Money expended by CAWCD to offset AWBA delive,y and storage costs. 

---

Exoended 

$0 

$124,590 

$0 

$0 

$1,500,000 

$3,903,720 

$1,305,480 

$2,299,540 

$ 7,508,740 

$728,000 

$997,600 

$373,550 

$2,099,150 
$11,232,480 

Table 2. Monies Collected and Expended through December 2013 for Water Banking 
Activities and Monies Remaining Available 

Source of Funds Collected Expended Available1 

General Funds $11,100,870 $11,100,870 $0 
In-Lieu Fund - MCWA Pre-payments $4,859,660 $4,859,660 $0 

State Indian Firming 2 $2,338,170 $2,338,170 .. $0 

Interstate Water Banking-NV 2' 
3 $109,317,260 $109,087,820 $229,440 

Shortage Reparations - NV $4,499,750 $4,499,750 $0 
4C Ad valarem Tax 4 

Maricopa County 5 
$226,518,370 $91,334,970 $90,183,400 

Pinal County $10,949,140 $10,450,160 $498,980 
Pima County $45,849,150 $42,451,870 $3,397,280 

Subtotal for Ad valorem $283,316,660 $144,237,000 $94,079,660 
Groundwater Withdrawal Fees2 

Phoenix AMA $21,071,720 $19,648,240 $1,423,480 
Pinal AMA $17,814,330 $16,993,890 $820,440 

Tucson AMA $8,347,370 $8,314,710 $32,660 
Subtotal for Withdrawal Fees $47,233,420 $44,956,840 $2,276,580 

TOTAL $462,665,790 $321,080,110 $96,585,680 
1 Money remaining in AWB Fund or collected by CAWCD; includes monies committed for the 2014 Plan of Operation.
2 Total money collected was decreased to reflect legislative transfers in CY 2004, CY 2005, CY 2009-2011. 
3 Pursuant to the Third Amended and Restated Interstate Banking Agreement, monies remaining available are non-reconcilable for interstate 

purposes and subject to legislative authorization prior to use by the AWBA. 
4 Includes money collected and money expended by CAWCD to offset AWBA delivery and storage costs. 
5Total monies available decreased to reflect the CAWCD Board of Directors resolution adopted May 2013 to transfer $45 million to its

Strategic Reserve Fund as part of the operation, maintenance and replacement costs of the project 

19 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

The AWBA has established long-term storage credit accounts with ADWR for each AMA. After 
receiving the AWBA's annual reports, ADWR calculates and issues credits to the appropriate 
accounts. The AWBA receives credit for 95 percent of the stored water after losses are taken into 
account. After credits are issued to the account, AWBA staff allocates the credits to the appropriate 
sub-accounts based on source of funding. The number and distribution of credits for 2013 are listed 
in Table 3. Cumulative credits accrued by the AWBA through December 2013 are listed in Table 4. 

Table 3. Number and Location of Long-term Storage Credits Accrued in 2013 (AF) 

Funding Source Phoenix AMA Pinal AMA Tucson AMA Total 

4-Cent Ad Valorem Tax 24,560 10,881 13,987 49,381 

Withdrawal Fees 4,798 7,258 2,199 14,178 

General Fund - - - -

Shortage Reparation . - 8,846 8,846 

Intrastate TOTAL 29,358 18,139 25,032 72,529 

Interstate • Nevada . - . . 

TOTAL 29,358 18,139 25,032 72,529 

Table 4. Cumulative Long-term Storage Credits Accrued through December 2013 (AF) 

Fundins Source Phoenix AMA Pinal AMA Tucson AMA Total 

4-Cent Ad Valorem Tax 1,354,486 198,347 404,315 1,957,148 

Withdrawal Fees 298,429 402,155 100,995
1 

801,578 

General Fund 42,316 306,968 
2 

54,546 403,830 

Other Intrastate: 

Indian Firming Appropriation . - 28,481 28,481 

Shortage Reparation 20,642 60,507 10,072 91,221 

GSF Operator Full Cost Share . 14,125 . 14,125 

Intrastate TOTAL 1,715,872 982,101 598,409 3,296,382 

Interstate - Nevada 51,009 439,851 
3 

109,791 600,651 

TOTAL 1,766,881 1,421,952 708,200 3,897,033 

1 Includes 234 acre-feet of credits purchased from the Tohono O'odham Nation pursuant to§ 45-841.01. 
2 By resolution passed in 2002, the AWBA established on-River firming as the highest priority of use for credits 

accrued through expenditure of general fund appropriations. Pursuant to the AWBA Agreement to Firm with 
MCWA dated February 4, 2005, a total of 230,280 acre-feet of credits were transferred to the AWBA long-term 
storage subaccount for the MCWA in 2005. An additional 25,894 acre-feet of credits have been reserved under 
Exhibit C the Amended Agreement to Firm, dated December 8, 2010, for a total of 256,174 acre-feet. By resolution 
passed in·2008, the AWBA established a replacement account for 4th priority Colorado River M&I users. 

3 Includes 50,000 acre-feet of credits transferred from CAWCD pursuant to Amended Agreement for Interstate Water 
Banking. 

20 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Since inception, the AWBA has focused its efforts on developing long-term storage credits tor firming 
purposes. The AWBA has identified 2,700,000 acre-feet of credits as a reasonable amount of credits 
to firm the CAP M&I subcontracts over the next 100 years. This volume is divided based on a pro
rata distribution by county based on CAP M&I subcontracts as follows: 58 percent Maricopa County, 
32 percent Pima County, and 9 percent Pinal County. 

The AWBA has also identified 420,000 acre-feet of credits as a reasonable amount of credits to firm 
the on-River communities over the next 100 years. In 2002, the AWBA adopted a resolution that 
identified on-River firming as the highest priority of use for the general fund credits and established 
priorities for other uses (Indian settlements, etc.). Consequently, all or part of the general fund credits 
could be utilized to firm on-River M&I users. It should be noted that the AWBA will collect 
reimbursement for the replacement cost of credits used for on-River firming. In 2008, the AWBA 
executed Resolution 2008-1 that established a long-term storage credit replacement account for 4th

priority Colorado River M&I users. As credits are used and replaced, these replacement credits will 
be placed in a separate replacement subaccount and earmarked for the entity that reimburses the 
AWBA for the replacement of those credits. Table 5 illustrates the progress made by the AWBA 
towards meeting its established goals. 

Table 5 also identifies the estimated remaining costs for meeting the AWBA's goals and obligations. 
These estimates are based on the assumptions contained in the AWBA's Ten-Year Plan for 2015-
2024 and are subject to potential shortages discussed under the recovery section. For obligations 
that are not met in the Ten-Year Plan, 2025 estimated costs were assumed when calculating the 
amount remaining to meet the goals. 

As described in the Ten-Year Plan section of this report, most of the firming goals could be met 
during the next ten years. The M&I firming goal for the Phoenix AMA could be met completely with ad 
valorem tax credits. In the Pinal AMA, 90 percent of the M&I firming goal could be met with ad

valorem tax credits. The remaining ten percent could be met using existing withdrawal fee credits and 
would not require additional costs. Those goals not met include the Tucson AMA and on-River M&I 
firming goals. Approximately 68 percent of the Tucson AMA firming goal will have been met by 2024. 
Since all of the ad va/oremtax monies will have been expended by 2017, withdrawal fees will be 
needed to meet the remainder of this firming goal. Because revenue from withdrawal fees is limited 
in the Tucson AMA (about $400,000 per year), the firming goal would not be met until well beyond 
2024. The total estimated cost for meeting the Tucson AMA firming goal is nearly $92.5 million. 
Estimated expenditures under the Ten-Year Plan total $14.5 million: $10.3 million in ad valoremtax

monies and $4.2 million in withdrawal fees. The cost to accrue the credits needed to meet the 
remaining firming goal (32%) is estimated at $78 million. 

Lastly, the remaining costs for meeting the Indian firming goals were estimated by assuming that all 
withdrawal fee credits accrued in the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs in the next ten years would be applied 
toward meeting these goals since the M&I firming goals could be met primarily with ad valorem taxes. 
Existing Pinal AMA withdrawal fee credits in addition to those accrued from storage at the Gila River 
Indian Irrigation and Drainage District (GRIDD) GSF, could be used to meet the remaining firming 
goal. Existing Phoenix AMA withdrawal fee credits could be used to meet the firming goal for future 
Indian settlements. Because funding has already been expended for these credits, they were not 
included in the calculation for remaining costs. 

While not included in the assumptions, credits accrued from shortage reparation funds could also be 
used to assist the AWBA in firming supplies when necessary. 

21 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Table 5. Identified Uses of Long-term Storage Credits Accrued through December 2013 
and Percentage of AWBA Goals Achieved 

Non-
Credits 

Estimated1 

Location and Objective Funding Source 
Estimated Credit 

Accrued 
Goal Remaining 

Goal Goal Achieved Costs 
Achieved (AF) ($ MIiiion) 

CAP M&I Firming Water Storage Tax 
Phoenix AMA (4C Ad valorem) 1,566,000 AF 1,354,480 86% $39 
PlnalAMA collected by 243,000AF 198,350 82% $2.4 
Tucson AMA County 864,000AF 404,320 47% $92.5 

On-River M&I Firming2 General Fund 420,000AF 403,830 96% $4.4 

Indian Settlement Obligations: 

GRIC Firming 350,000Af 105,390_½ 30% $10.4 
up to 15 KAF/yr General Fund 0 

Withdrawal Fees 105,390 

Future Settlements 200,000AF3 0 N/A $15.6 
up to 8. 7 KAF/yr General Fund 0 

Withdrawal Fees 0 

Federal Assistance (SAWR SA)- $3,000,000 34,102 100% $0 

$3million General Fund $2,338,171 28,481 

Tucson W/Fees $630,490 5,621 

Cost of Services5 
$31,339 n/a 

Southside Replenishment Bank 5,000 33% $1.7 
15 KAF direct delivery General Fund D 

Pinal W/Fees 5,000 

Groundwater Management6 

Phoenix AMA Withdrawal Fees 121,800 
Pinal AMA collected by AMA 368,000 
Tucson AMA 95,370 

Other: 
Agreement with 

Shortage Reparations Nevada $8,000,000 $4,500,000 91,220 56% $3.5 

Pinal Redirect Credits7 N/A 14,125 N/A N/A 
1 Based on the Ten-Year Plan and an assumed rate escalation of 3% for water storage costs after 2020. 
2 By resolution passed in 2002, the AWBA established on-River firming as the highest priority of use tor credits accrued 

through expenditure of general fund appropriations. Pursuant to the Agreement to Firm dated February 4, 2005, a total 
of 230,280 acre-feet of credits were transferred to the AWBA long-term storage subaccount for MCWA in 2005. An 
adcltional 25,894 acre-feet of credits have been reserved under Exhibit C the Amended Agreement to Firm, dated 
December 8, 2010, for a total of 256,174 acre-feel 

3 Based on estimates from the Indian Firming Study Commission Report dated January 6, 2006. 
4 Credits accrued and reserved for firming pursuant to the Agreement between the AWBA and the Gila River Indian 

Irrigation and Drainage District of the Gila River Indian Community for storage of Central Arizona Project Water at a 
GSF, executed June 16, 2006. Credits include 88,313 AF accrued in the Phoenix AMA and 17,0n AF accrued in thej 
Pinal AMA Credits available for water management have been adjusted accordingly. 

5 Expenditures include $14,883 and $16,456 deducted for payment of cost of services for FY 08 and FY 09, respectively.

6 Withdrawal fees could be utilized in addition to 41/l ad valorem tax revenues for M&I firming if needed to reach firming 
goals and for Indian settlement obligations in the absence of general fund appropriations. 

7 Credits accrued from AWBA water provided to Pinal AMA GSFs at full cost to the GSF operators. These credits are
currently identified for use in the Tucson AMA. 

22 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

The average annual cost for the AWBA to obtain one acre-foot of long-tenn storage credit for 
intrastate and interstate storage is presented in Tables 6a and 6b, respectively. Table 6a illustrates 
that the unit cost per credit for intrastate storage fluctuates yearly primarily based on water delivery 
and storage facility costs. For example, the sigificant increase beginning 201 0 is due to CAWCD 
eliminating the incentive recharge cost structure. 

Table &a: Average Annual Cost for the AWBA to Obtain a Long-term Storage Credit for 
Intrastate Storage 

Vear Credits
1 

Funds Expended 
Average Cost 

Ratio of GSF to USF 
(per acre-foot) 

1997 296,987 $6,387,000 $21.51 85:15 

1998 202,542 $7,143,000 $35.27 68:32 

1999 232,142 $8,733,000 $37.61 68:32 

2000 272,123 $11, 163,000 $41.02 60:40 

2001 275,406 $10,893,590 $39.55 62:38 

2002 262,317 $13,700,300 $52.23 64:36 

2003 200,168 $11,077,666 $55.34 47:53 

2004 251,456 $17,855,997 $71.01 41:59 

2005 85,782 $5,615,201 $65.46 58:42 

2006 162,342 $14,720,277 $90.67 17:83 

2007 245,221 $14,589,390 $59.49 37:63 

2008 203,373 $8,168,100 $40.16 65:35 

2009
2 

99,453 $6,977,590 $70.16 76:24 

2010 181,214 $26,027,947 $143.63 21:79 

2011 127,605 $16,543,540 $129.65 33:67 

2012 125,503 $17,314,052 $137.96 42:58 

2013 72,404 $10,963,900 $151.43 31:69 

' Information in this table is reconciled on an annual basis. 
2 Does not include credits purchased pursuant to § 45-841.01. 

Table 6b illustrates the unit cost per long-term storage credit for interstate also fluctuates yearly. 
Pursuant to the Letter Agreement, no interstate storage occurred in 2011 or 2012. 

Table 6b. Average Annual Cost for the AWBA to Obtain a Long-term Storage Credit for 
Storage on Behalf of Nevada 

Vear Credits Funds Expended 
Average Cost 

Ratio of GSF to USF 
(per acre-foot) 

2002 61,098 $8,617,393 $141.04 100:0 

2003 50,000
1 

2004 14,162 $2,899,647 $204.75 66:34 

2005 111,805 $25,723,366 $230.07 65:35 

2006 175,569 $35,386,306 $201.55 68:32 

2007 114,886 $21,853,906 $190.22 91:09 

2008 None None $0 0:0 

2009 55,252 $10,781,853 $195.14 45:55 

2010 17,879 $3,825,350 $213.96 0:100 

1 Long-term Storage Credits transferred from CAWCD. 

23 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Long-term Storage Credits Distributed or Extinguished by the Authority 

The long-term storage credits developed by the AWBA to date have been identified for five purposes: 

• Firming CAP M&I entitlements;
• Firming the post-1968 M&I entitlements for entities outside the CAP service area;
• Firming for the States obligation under the AWSA, including the State's Federal obligation;
• Assisting in fulfilling the water management objectives set forth in Chapter 2 of Title 45

(Arizona Revised Statutes); and
• Interstate water banking purposes pursuant to agreements with Nevada.

Credits created by the AWBA for firming purposes may be distributed or extinguished when the 
Colorado River system is deemed to be in a shortage, if there is a water shortage as defined under 
the AWSA, or if there is an operational disruption of the CAP. There were no shortages or unplanned 
CAP outages, therefore, no credits were distributed or extinguished for these purposes in 2013. No 
credits were distributed or extinguished in 2013 for water management purposes. 

Under the 1999 amendments to the AWBA legislation, the AWBA is authorized to develop credits with 
monies collected pursuant to water banking services agreements. In 2013, no credits were 
developed or distributed under such agreements. Additionally, there was no recovery of credits for 
interstate purposes. 

24 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Ten-Vear Plan 

Introduction 

-Pursuant to A.R.S. §45-2426, the AWBA is required to prepare a Ten-Year Plan. The Ten-Year Plan
must include a description of any water banking activities the AWBA intends to undertake in addition
to the three primary AWBA functions of firming for M&I supplies, assisting in Indian water rights
settlements, and fulfilling state water management objectives. The Ten-Year Plan is presented in
Table 7. The Ten-Year Plan must also provide an analysis of the AWBA's ability to complete those
activities. This analysis is provided in Table 8. The Ten-Year Plan is not a guarantee of future
storage activities and is completed for planning purposes only. In any given year, the AWBA's
activities are governed by the annual Plan of Operation. This Ten-Year Plan projects nearly 480,000
acre-feet of long-term storage credits will be developed.

The Ten-Year Plan (Table 7) analyzes activity for the period 2015-2024 and was derived using the
information found in Appendices A through I. AWBA accounting for previous years can be found in
the 2012 Annual Report and 2014 Plan of Operation. The plan is an important tool to be utilized in
development of 1) the next year's annual Plan of Operation and 2) policy guidelines for future AWBA
activities. AWBA staff developed the Ten-Year Plan based on the following guiding principles:

1. The Ten-Year Plan covers a ten-year time period beginning with the next calendar year. For
example, this Ten-Year Plan covers the time period 2015-2024.

2. The Ten-Year Plan incorporates:

a. CAWCD's adopted 2014-2015 rate schedule and assumes a 3o/o1 increase in such rates from
2021 through 2024.

b. Current priorities and limitations of AWBA. Specifically, Plan continues to maximize amount of
water stored in Tucson AMA, while strategically storing water for future recovery, in order to
move closer to finning goals_ in Tucson.

3. The Ten-Year Plan assumes the following:

a. No legislative transfers from Arizona Water Banking Fund.

b. 4¢ water storage tax only used for water storage purposes.

c. CAWCD's CAP Recharge Facility Priority Policy adopted May 2, 2013 and CAWCD's
Procedure for Distributing Excess CAP Water for the Period of 2015 through 2019 adopted
March 6, 2014 continue through 2024.

d. No hydrologic conditions eliminating availability of Excess CAP Water for AWBA and/or
requiring recovery.

e. All Wwithdrawal fees accrued in Tucson AMA applied to M&I firming in Tucson AMAr;. 

e:-L_-wWithdrawal fees accrued in Phoenix and Pinal AMAs since 2008 applied to Indian firming
and any withdrawal fees accrued at the GRIIDD prior to 2008 are also applied to Indian 
firming. 

The 3% increase from 2021 through 2024 is consistent with current financial analyses prepared by CAWCD. 
25 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Table 7. Ten-Year Plan 

(a) 

CAP Water 
YEAR AvaUable for 

AWBA 

Pre-Plan°'1 rJa 

2015 54,100 
2011 38,600 
201, 87,900 
2011 77,'l!AX 

2019 64,700 
2020 51,800 
2021 39,10(; 
202', 29,700 

2l1l: 14,200 
2024 64,300 

lOTAL 522,20C 

(a) See Appendix B.

(b) See Appendix D. 

(b) 

CAP M&I Firming 
(4¢ tax) 

Delivery Credits 

1,989,46: 

36,960 34,37:1 

'D,1'£ 25,847 
56,716 52,746 

53,338 49,604 
43,017 40,006 

33,691 31,332 
23,821 22,15' 
16,571 15,411 
4,422 4,m 

44,736 41,605 
2,306,� 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY-Ten-Year Plan 

2015-2024 

(Acre-feet) 

(C) (d) (e) (f) (g) 

Water Management Appropriation from 
Shortage 

Reparations ($8 Indian Settlement Interstate Banking 
(Wilhdrawal Fees) GeneralRmd 

Million) 

Delivery CllldG Delivery Credi& Delivery C18Cit; Delivery Credim 
Waler 

Deivery Credl5 ICUA 
Rema!� 

Available Credils 
579,551 403,831l 98,981 236.� 600,651 600,651 

5.axl 0 0 0 5,113 4,755 7,028 6,536 0 0 0 600,651 

0 0 0 0 4,973 4,625 5,834 5,426 C 0 I 0 600,651 
6,818 6,341 0 0 0 0 24.366 22,660 0 0 0 0 600,651 
1,868 1,737 0 0 0 0 22,594 21,012 0 0 0 0 600,651 

1,838 1,709 0 0 0 0 19,845 18,456 0 0 0 0 600,651 
1,665 1,549 0 0 0 0 16,444 15,29:l C 0 0 0 600,651 
1,611 1,498 0 0 0 ( 13,668 12,711 0 ( ( 600,651 

1,560 1,451 0 0 0 0 11,569 10,759 0 0 0 600,651 

1,512 1,406 0 0 0 0 8,266 7,6lf/ C 0 0 600,651 

1,467 1,365 D D 0 0 18,097 16,8:lC 0 0 0 600,651 

596,607 403,830 108,361 374,294 600,651 0 

(c) See Appendix E. Includes direct delivery of 5,000 acre-feet of water for 20·15·1O Southside Replenishment Bank wliich does not result m credits being accrued. Only includes credits accrued m Tucson 
AM4\ going forward e,ccept m 2016 when all costs are covered usmg water storage tax revenues. Pre-plan amount includes all withdrawal fee credits accrued In Tucson and only those accrued in Pinal and
PhoenlxAMA.s through 2007
(d) See Appendix F. 

(e) See AppendixG. 

(f) See Appendix H. A.R.S. §45-2491 (8)(2) allows for the use of withdrawal fees after legislative appropriations for Indian firming have been e>ipended. Withdrawal fee credits accrued in the Phoenix and 
Pinal IWtAs could be utilized to meet this obligation. The pre-plan amount includes credits accrued from storage at the GRIIDD GSF and withdrawal fee credits accrued in the Phoenix and Pinal AMA.s since
2008. The State's Indian firming obligation is estimated at 550,000 acre-feet In addition, 34,102 acre-feet of credits have been accrued to meet the State's obligation under Section 306 of the AWSA ($3 
million for Federal assistance).

(g) See Appendix I. 

(h) Cumulath1e credit totals for 1997-2013 are actual; 2014 credits are estimated based on projected deliveries.

26 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

T able 8. AWBAP ercentage o fG oas C 1eve A h" d h t roug h2024

Non-Credit 
Location and Objective Funding Soura! Estimated Goal Obligation Goal/Oblig. 

Achieved 

CAP M&I Firming 
Water Storage Tax -

Phoenix AMA2 (4C Ad valorem) 1,566,000 AF 

Pinal AMA3 
and withdrawal 

AF 
fees 243,000 

Tucson AMA4 864,000 AF 

On-River M&I Firming5 General Fund 420,000 AF 

Indian Settlement Obligations:' 

GRIC Firming Withdrawal Fees 350,000 AF 
up to 1S,000 

AF/YR 

Phoenix AM/l 

Pinal AMA 

Future Settlements Withdrawal Fees 200,000 AF
up to 8,724 

AF/YR 
Federal Assistance $3,000,000 $3,000,000 

Tucson AMA Appropriation $2,338,171 

Withdrawa I Fees $630,490 

Cost of Services $31,339 

Pinal AMA 15,000 AF 
Southside Replenishment Bank Withdrawal Fees 

Direct 
Deliverv 

Groundwater Management 

Phoenix AMA Withdrawal Fees 
Pinal AMA3 collected by AMA 

Tucson AMA4 

Othar: 

Shortage Reparations-Nevada 
Agreement with 

$8,000,000 
Nevada 

Pinal Redirect Credits7 n/a 
11997-2014; actual credits through 2013 and estimated credits for 2014 based on projected deliveries.
2 100% of the numeric M&I firming goal for the Phoenix AMA is met in 2021. 

Credits1 Percent 
Goal/Oblig. 

Accrued (AF) Achieved 

1,619,862 103% 
,_ 

243,000 100% 
,� 

586,850 68% 

403,830 96% 

350,000 100% 

88,313 

261,687 

200,000 100% 

34,102 100% 
28,481 

5,621 

n/a 

15,000 100% 

77,6S5 

200,187 

0 

108,361 100% 

14,12S 

3 M&I firming has been statutorily identified as a water management objective. This Plan assumes 24,192 acre-feet of Pinal AMA 
withdrawal fee credits a re applied to M&I firming. Without these additional credits, the Pinal AMA M&I firming goal will only reach 90% 
of the numeric goal during the planning period. 

4 M&I firming has been statutorily identified as a water management objective. This Plan assumes all of the 118,914 acre-feet of 
Tucson AMA withdrawal fee credits are applied to M&I firming. Without applying these additional credits, the Tucson AMA M&I firming 
goal will only reach 54% of the numeric goal during the planning period. 

5 By resolution passed In 2002, AWBA established on-river firming as the highest priority of use for credits accrued through expenditure
of general fund a pproprlations. A total of 256,174 acre-feet of credits have been reserved pursuant to AWBA's contract with MCINA. 

'A.R.S. §45-2491(8}(2} allows for use of withdrawal fees after legislative appropriations for Indian firming have been expended. 105,390 
acre-feet of credits stored at GRIIDD are already dedicated through agreement to Indian firming. Additionally, the Ten-Year Plan 
assumes credits accrued from withdrawal fees in the Pinal and Phoenix AMAs in this Ten-Year Plan are applied to Indian firming. Given 
this assumption, 51% of the GRICand 32% of the future settlement firming goals are estimated to be met in 2024. Existing withdrawal 
fee credits from Pinal and Phoenix AMAs are used to meet remainder of firming goals forGRIC and future settlements, respectively. 
7 Credits currently identified for use in Tucson AMA would meet 1.6% of the Tucson AMA M&I firming goal. 

27 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Ten-Year Plan Components 

The following components are recognized to be important in developing the Ten-Year Plan. Inclusion 
or exclusion of a specific component was based on whether the component's effect could be 
predicted over the planning period, the magnitude of the effect and whether the component was 
anticipated to be an issue. Three components are always considered: water availability, funding and 
storage capacity. Other components specific to this plan include: re-evaluation of firming targets, 
participation in Indian settlements, shortage and surplus, intrastate recovery and requests for 
Intentionally Created Unused Apportionment (ICUA), water management objectives and interstate 
banking. 

1. Water Available to the AWBA

The volume of water available to the AWBA has been decreasing since 2010 when over 200,000 
acre-feet were available to the AWBA. In 2013, the AWBA stored just over 75,000 acre-feet. In 
its 2014 Plan of Operation, the AWBA expects to store around 60,000 acre-feet and deliver 
another 5,000 acre-feet to the Southside Replenishment Bank. In 2014, its lowest storage year 
since inception, the AWBA will store approximately 30% of the volume stored in 2010 and about 
15% of the volume stored in the AWBA's highest storage year in 2007. 

Based on the water availability estimates in Appendix B provided by CAWCD, the volume of 
excess CAP water projected to be available to the AWBA during this Ten-Year Plan is roughly 
525,000 acre-feet approximately 165,000 acre-feet less than what was projected in last year's 
Plan. Last year's Ten-Year Plan showed 38,100 acre-feet in the lowest year (i.e. 2023) and over 
110,000 acre-feet in the highest year (i.e. 2017) when the Excess Agricultural Pool decreases to 
300,000 acre-feet. This Ten-Year Plan projects ari even lower volume in 2023 (i.e. around 14,000 
acre-feet) and a substantially decreased high volume in 2017 (i.e. just over 52,000 acre-feet). 

CAWCD staff recently presented an analysis2 showing a high likelihood of a shortage declaration 
in 2017 due to drought conditions that have been experienced in the Colorado River Basin and 
what CAWCD staff described as a structural deficit (annual uses exceeding available supplies in 
the Lower Basin by 1.2 MAF). CAWCD staff further explained that Arizona could enter a period of 
sustained shortage, and within 5-8 years, Lake Mead could drop to the critical 1,000 foot elevation 
level. To recover from this condition in the Lower Basin, 19 to 24 MAF of inflow would need to 
enter Lake Powell to trigger equalization releases into Lake Mead. Indications are that once Lake 
Mead is at the critical 1,000 foot elevation, the system would need up to 15 years for Lake Mead 
to recover to the 1,075 foot elevation level, the point at which normal operating conditions could 
once again be declared. Under these scenarios, there would be no excess CAP water available to 
the AWBA. Additionally, the AWBA would need to accelerate implementation of its joint recovery 
plan with CAWCD and ADWR as significant demand for recovery could be anticipated. 

CAWCD 2014-2015 rate schedule continues to reflect a significant increase over rate schedules 
prior to 2013 due to a weak energy market and rising costs at the Navajo Generating Station. 
Between 2013 and 2020, CAWCD projects an increase of $77 per acre-foot, a 53% in water rates. 
While some speculate that additional water could become available to the AWBA as users storing_ 
in the past are affected by price elasticity, orders for CAP have not reflected this in 2013 or 2014, 

2 Presentation by T. Mccann and C Cullom dated June 5, 2014 to CAP Board called "Colorado River Drought Response 
and System Sustainability" 

28 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

If this occurs later on in the Plan, because storage in the Tucson AMA is already maximized, the 
Ten-Year Plan would assume excess volumes will be shared between Pinal and Maricopa County 
until funds in Pinal are exhausted. After which, any remaining water will be stored in Maricopa. 

2. Funding

Funding for water storage that benefits Arizona (intrastate storage) comes from three sources:
water storage taxes (i.e. 4¢ ad valorem tax), groundwater withdrawal fees and general fund
appropriations. There are restrictions on how each funding source can be used. In the past, the
AWBA has also received funding from the Southern Nevada Water Authority for interstate water
banking and shortage reparation.

Water Storage Tax (4¢ ad valorem tax) 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §48-3715.03(8), 4¢ ad valorem taxes levied and collected by CAWCD not 
deposited in the CAWCD fund, shall be deposited into subaccounts held by the AWBA: one for 
each of the three counties in which the taxes were collected. CAWCD has not deposited monies 
collected into these AWBA subaccounts since 2003. The AWBA expended all of the funds that 
remained in the subaccounts for Pinal and Pima Counties in 2004 and Maricopa County in 2007. 
CAWCD has however offset AWBA water delivery and storage costs using the 4¢ ad valorem tax 
held in CAWCD accounts. This Ten-Year Plan relies on the continuation of CAWCD offsetting a 
portion of the AWBA's costs. The Plan assumes the 4¢ ad valorem tax will generate 
approximately $17.5 million annually with approximately $13.5 million in the Phoenix AMA, 
$850,000 in the Pinal AMA and around $3 million in the Tucson AMA. It is important to note, 
however, that A.R.S. §48-3715.02, which provides CAWCD the authority to levy the ad valorem 
tax for water storage, will be repealed effective January 2, 2017. Therefore, this Ten-Year Plan 
does not include collection of the ad va/orem tax beyond 2016. 

This plan assumes interest from ad valorem tax monies held by CAWCD (i.e. funds historically set 
aside for AWBA Administration purposes) for Pima and Pinal Counties are used to store water for 
these counties once the principal amount is exhausted. Based on the Plan,. there will only be ad 
valoremtax monies remaining at the end of the Ten-Year Plan for Maricopa County. The ad 
valorem tax monies including interest are expected to be exhausted in both Pinal and Pima 
Counties by 2017. 

Groundwater Withdrawal Fees 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §45-611 (3), the Director of Water Resources levies and collects a groundwater 
withdrawal fee for water banking purposes in the three AMAs equal to $2.50 per acre-foot per 
year. This Plan assumes $3.6 million in withdrawal fees is collected annually with $1.7 million 
collected in the Phoenix AMA, 1.5 million collected in the Pinal AMA and $400,000 collected in the 
Tucson AMA3

• The AWBA can utilize withdrawal fees to firm M&I CAP subcontract supplies, to 
implement the settlement of water rights claims by Indian communities in Arizona and to meet the 
water management objectives of the AMAs in which the fees were collected. In addition, 
withdrawal fees collected in the Pinal AMA can be used to meet the AWBA Southside 

3 
Withdrawal fees collected varies from year to year. The assumed collections for the Ten-Year Plan are based on an 

average of collections between 2009 and 2013. 

29 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Replenishment Bank (SSRB) obligation. When distributed or extinguished, these credits can only 
be used for the benefit of the AMA in which the monies were collected. 

To this end, credits accrued using withdrawal fees in the Tucson AMA are assumed to be applied 
to M&I firming in that AMA. The Ten-Year Plan further assumes withdrawal fees credits accrued 
in the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs, including those accrued at the GRIID GSF, could be applied to 
Indian firming obligations if the AWBA does not receive a general fund appropriation for this 
purpose. Finally, this Plan assumes withdrawal fees are used to purchase CAP water for delivery 
to the SSAB. 

A WBA General Fund Appropriation 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §45-2423.8.10, the AWBA can submit a request for a general fund 
appropriation each year. While the AWBA may request general fund appropriations during this 
planning period, receipt of an appropriation cannot be expected. In 2013, the AWBA made a 
request for a general fund appropriation to pay for the accelerated deliveries to the Southside 
Replenishment Bank in 2014. The request did not result in an appropriation. Consequently, the 
Ten-Year Plan reflects a reduction in water storage expenditures in the Pinal AMA for 2015. 
Absent future general fund appropriations, any storage needed to meet the AWBA's Indian firming 
obligation may require the use withdrawal fees. 

Funding for Interstate Banking 

Pursuant to earlier interstate water banking agreements, 600,651 acre-feet of credits are already 
held in the Southern Nevada Water Authority (SNWA) account. SNWA paid nearly $123 million for 
these credits. Under the Third Amended and Restated Agreement for Interstate Water Banking, 
the AWBA no longer has an obligation to accrue future long-term storage credits to be held in the 
SNWA account. As in the original agreement, all future delivery and storage costs are born by 
SNWA and are on a "pay-as-you-go" basis. 

Shortage Reparation Funds 

Pursuant to the Arizona-Nevada Shortage-Sharing Agreement, Nevada will provide to the AWBA 
$8 million in order to assist Arizona in offsetting impacts that may occur during the "Interim 
Periodn4. By the end of 2014, the AWBA will have expended approximately $6 million of these 
funds for the purchase and storage of CAP water. While a final plan for the use of the credits 
accrued using these funds has not yet been adopted by the Authority, expenditure of the 
remaining $2 million has been included in this Ten-Year Plan. In the Ten-Year Plan, expenditure 
of these funds has been focused in the Tucson AMA in order to distribute use of the funds among 
the three AMAs since funds have already been expended in the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs. 

4 The Interim Period is the period beginning on the date the Secretary issued the Colorado River Interim Guidelines for the 
Lower Basin Shortages and the Coordinated Operations for Lake Powell and Lake Mead, December 13, 2007, and ending 
on December 31, 2025 (through preparation 9f the 2026 Annual Operating Plan). 

30 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

3. Storage Partners and Storage Capacity

Groundwater Savings Facilities 

The AWBA currently has nine water storage permits for GSFs with a total permitted storage 
capacity of 412,547 acre-feet per year. Storage at these facilities under this Ten-Year Plan is 
restricted due to a limited volume of capacity made available to the AWBA because of local 
priorities on where to store water and storage by other GSF partners. Tucson AMA interests 
requested that any water available for the Tucson AMA be stored at certain USFs before 
considering local GSFs. 

One faoility pormit6 assooiatoel with The water storage permit associated with the Hohokam 
Irrigation and Drainage District shows an expiration date of October 1, 2012, buts held by the 
MAJBA has e*pirod, but this facility the District has a renewal pending. This plan assumes this 
facility will be successful in the renewal process. The remaining facility permits associated with 
the GSFs will expire during this Ten-Year Plan. Any difficulty in obtaining new permits could 
impact the capacity available to the AWBA. However, because impacts of this nature cannot be 
predicted, this Ten-Year Plan assumes the permits will also be renewed. The AWBA has 
renewed water storage agreements with its GSF partners. The new agreements will expire 
December 31, 2021. The Ten-Year Plan assumes the agreements will be renewed and that the 
AWBA will continue to participate with these GSF partners throughout this Ten-Year Plan. 

Underground Storage Facilities 

The AWBA currently has nine water storage permits for USFs with a total permitted storage 
capacity of 561,000 acre-feet per year. Storage capacity available to the AWBA, primafily at both 
CAWCD operated facilities and privately operated ones, has decreased over the last few years 
because of storage by other participants. Storage capacity could continue to decline as additional 
entities contract with CAWCD and are issued water storage permits by ADWR. However, the 
actual capacity used by these entities could be limited by the availability of water to those entities. 

Four of the USF permits will expire within this Ten-Year Plan. Like the GSF permits, any difficulty 
in obtaining new permits could impact the capacity available to the AWBA. However, because 
impacts of this nature cannot be predicted, this Ten-Year Plan assumes the permits will be 
renewed. 

The AWBA's water storage agreement with the Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District 
for storage at the Avra Valley Recharge Project will expire on December 31, 2015. Likewise, the 
AWBA's Master Water Storage Agreement with CAWCD for storage at its six facilities will expire 
December 31, 2016. Renewal of these agreements is anticipated therefore storage at these 
facilities was included for the full ten-year planning period. 

The AWBA updated its Storage Facility Inventory in March of 2011 and used it to develop this 
Ten-Year Plan. Since the inventory was updated, no additional permit capacity has been 
developed that would increase the capacity available to the AWBA. 

CortaFo MaF311a lrFigatioA Oislrist'e �SF facility permit eMpired oA November 9, ao13. 
31 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

Appendix C describes the storage partners, storage permits, and capacity available for use by the 
AWBA. This plan identifies 154,000 acre-feet of storage capacity available to the AWBA at GSFs 
and 186,000 acre-feet of capacity available to the AWBA at USFs. Therefore, the Ten-Year Plan 
has sufficient storage capacity to store the amount of water assumed to be available to the AWBA 
under CAWCD's policy for distributing Excess CAP water. However, it is possible the location of 
AWBA storage could be affected in the future. 

4. Re-evaluation of Firming Targets

In March of 2014, the AWBA, based on updated modeling conducted by ADWR6
, re-evaluated its

firming targets originally established based on data from 1997 for M&I firming and in 2006 for
Indian firming. The AWBA conducted numerous scenarios that resulted in a range of volumes for
each firming category. With the exception of the range of volumes for Indian firming, the other
firming categories fell within their respective range of volumes. Specifically for Indian firming, the
re-evaluation showed the amount of storage needed for Indian firming ranges from 778,000 acre
feet in the most likely scenario to nearly 1.3 million acre-feet in a severe scenario. The bottom of
the range is nearly 230,000 acre-feet higher than the 550,000 acre-foot goal established for Indian
firming in 2006. This difference is caused mainly by how a water shortage for Indian firming is
defined pursuant to the AWSA. The AWBA will continue to re-evaluate its firming targets as new
data becomes available.

5. Participation in Indian Settlements

One objective of the AWBA is assisting with the settlement of water rights claims by Indian
communities within Arizona. The State of Arizona has a 100-year firming obligation under the
Arizona Water Settlements Act. The AWBA also has statutorily mandated responsibilities for the
Southside Replenishment Bank.

This Ten-Year Plan includes a component for meeting the State's Indian settlement firming 
obligation. As shown in Table 8, withdrawal fee credits, already accrued in the Phoenix and Pinal 
AMAs, could be used to meet this obligation while still maintaining credits for other water 
management purposes. This includes credits that were previously accrued from water stored at 
the GRIIDD GSF. The AWBA retains full rights to the credits developed at the GSF until such 
time the credits are utilized to meet the State's Indian firming obligation. 

This Ten-Year Plan also includes a component for meeting the initial SSAB obligation of 15,000 
acre-feet. The AWBA will have delivered 10,000 acre-feet for this purpose by the end of 2014. 
Because projections in 2013 indicated a high probability of shortage by 2016 and 2017, the AWBA

made a decision to accelerate deliveries to the SSAB in 2014 and 2015. Consistent with that, 
this plan assumes 5,000 acre-feet will be delivered in 2015 completing the State's obligation. 

6. Shortages and Surplus

In its August 2013 24-Month Study7
, the LISBOA projected, for the first time, elevations in Lake

Mead dropping below 1,075 feet sparking concerns that a potential Tier 1 shortage8 could be

6 Arizona Department of Water Resources. March 2014. AWBA Results Scenario A2. 
7 

U.S. Bureau of Reclamation. Operation Plan for Colorado River System Reservoirs: August 2013 24-Month Study 
(August 12, 2013), page 12. 

32 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

declared in the next few years. In its April 2014 24-Month Study9
, however, elevations showed 

improvement easing concerns that a Tier 1 shortage could possibly be declared as early as 2015. 
While the Ten-Year Plan assumes normal water supply conditions (Appendix B), in the most 
recent modeling run conducted by ADWR10 for the AWBA as part of an evaluation of the AWBA's 
firming goals, there is a range of 40% to 55% probability that a shortage could occur on the 
Colorado River during the planning period, with the average probability being 46%. Still more 
recently, CAWCD conducted an analysis that indicates there is a high likelihood a sh·ortage could 
be declared in 2017. 11 

Should a shortage be declared, Excess CAP water would not be available for the AWBA. During 
such an event, the AWBA might want to consider finding other sources of water to develop credits. 
One such option, due to legislation passing in 2014, is to purchase long-tenn storage credits. The 
decision to acquire other sources of water would be made annually under the Plan of Operation. 
Additionally, the AWBA could also decide to supplement Excess CAP water supplies in years 
when available volumes are low. 

Although the Ten-Year Plan assumes a modest amount of excess CAP water available to the 
AWBA (Appendix B), model runs for this period show a low probability, 4 % to 30% 12, that a
surplus condition could occur with average probability being 18%. If a surplus year is determined, 
then the AWBA would attempt to store any available water. Additional storage, over what is 
currently planned in the Ten-Year Plan for that year, could be limited based on funding, canal, and 
storage capacities available to the AWBA. 

7. Intrastate Recovery and Requests for Intentionally Created Unused Apportionment (ICUA)

Intrastate Recovery 

In the Joint Recovery Plan prepared by CAWCD, ADWR and the AWBA, the earliest intrastate 
recovery is expected to occur is in 2017 and the probability is 1 %. Such an event would only 
affect the AWBA's Indian and on-River obligations and responsibilities. According to this same 

_plan, there is only a 36% probability or less of needing to recover in any given year during the 
Near-Term planning period (2013 to 2023) and a 55% probability or less in the Mid-Tenn planning 
period (2024 to 2034). 

Based on the most recent modeling run conducted by ADWR using 2014 starting elevations 13, the
earliest recovery event could be in 2018 when modeling predicts a 3% probability of shortage to 
the NIA priority pool resulting in an Indian finning obligation of a little over 100 acre-feet. This 
probability increases in 2020 to around 27% and then again in 2025 to around 50% with the 
volume ranging from between 1,000 to 3,500 acre-feet. For on-River impacts, the modeling 

8 A Tier 1 shortage is a 320,000 acre-foot reduction to Arizona's apportionment of 2.8 MAF. 
9 U.S. Bureau of Reclamation. Operation Plan for Colorado River System Reservoirs: February 2014 24-Month Study 
{April B, 2014), page 11 
0 Arizona Department of Water Resources. March 2014. Arizona Water Banking Authority: 2014 Firming Update. 

AWBA Results Scenario A2. 
1� Presentation byT. Mccann and C Cullom dated June 5, 2014 to CAP Board called "Colorado River Drought Response 
and System Sustainability.' 
12 Arizona Department of Water Resources. March 2014. Arizona Water Banking Authority: 2014 Firming Update. 
AWBA Results Scenario A2.13 Arizona Department of Water Resources. March 2014. AWBA Results Scenario A2.. 

33 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

shows a probability of a shortage of 11 % in 2021 ramping up to 30-40% between 2030 and 2044. 
Starting in 2045, the probability increases again to nearly 47% with expected impacts between 
1,300 and 3,000 acre-feet. For M&I Priority firming, the modeling shows a probability of shortage 
of 12%, but not until 2042. The probability increases by 2045 to around 29% with expected 
volumes from 250 acre-feet to nearly 8,000 acre-feet. 

Development of /CUA 

This Ten-Year Plan assumes that SNWA will not request ICUA during the planning period14
• The 

Third Amended and Restated Agreement for Interstate Water Banking authorizes Nevada to 
request development of ICUA, as follows: in the initial year, an amount not exceeding 20,000 
acre-feet; the second year, an amount not exceeding 30,000 acre-feet and in all subsequent 
years, an amount not exceeding 40,000 acre-feet. Existing credits must be recovered by 
December 31, 2063. Future credits must be recovered within 50 years of the date of storage with 
the oldest credits recovered first. The agreement terminates when all credits (i.e. existing and 
future) have been recovered. 

8. Water Management Objectives

The early activities of the AWBA were focused on achieving the goal of full utilization of Arizona's
Colorado River entitlement. With the exception of 2005, Arizona has been meeting this goal since
2002. As the probability of shortage has increased, the Lower Basin states have worked together
to implement a strategy that would keep lake elevations in Mead high enough to avoid a shortage
declaration 15

• As a result of this, Arizona left water on the River in 2012 and in 2013 to help
mitigate further declines.

Another primary objective of the AWBA is meeting the numeric M&I firming goals. Even with
considerably less water available from CAWCD, this Ten-Year Plan projects the AWBA will store
enough water to meet 90% of the numeric goal in the Pinal AMA and 103% of the goal in the
Phoenix AMA using 4¢ ad valorem tax monies alone. If credits accrued using withdrawals fees
are included, the AWBA also expects to meet the goal for the Pinal AMA as well during the Ten
Year Plan. Except for the 5,621 acre-feet of withdrawal fee credits set aside for meeting the
State's obligation to the Federal government under the AWSA and the 105,000 acre-feet accrued
at the GRIIDD, the AWBA has not applied any withdrawal fee credits to any of its stated purposes
to date.

For the Tucson AMA, including withdrawal fee credits, the AWBA expects to only reach 68% of
the numeric goal for the Tucson AMA. Because the AWBA is further behind in achieving its goal
for the Tucson AMA than the other AMAs, the AWBA directed staff to focus on storing as much
water as possible in the Tucson area. Other water management objectives have also become
more important in the Tucson AMA over time. The AWBA continues to implement the facility
prioritization strategy requested by Tucson area interests to store water at Tucson Water's
SAVSARP as a first priority, followed by the Pima Mine Road Recharge Project, followed by the
Avra Valley Recharge Project before storing water at the Lower Santa Cruz Recharge Project or
any of the GSFs located in the AMA.

14 Communication with Southern Nevada Water Authority dated May 22, 2014. 
15 Modeer, Kightlinger and Mulroy. Correspondence dated October 31, 2013. A similar letter was sent in 2012. 

34 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

It is important to note that while M&I and Indian firming are both identified as water management 
objectives, Indian firming is an obligation under the AWSA. In its recent re-evaluation of its firming 
goals, the AWBA determined that Indian firming would require 778,000 to 1.3 MAF of credits to 
satisfy Indian firming requirements. By the end of this Ten-Year Plan, the AWBA expects to 
accrue 970,000 acre-feet of withdrawal fee credits. Absent general fund appropriations, the AWBA 
would need to rely on-withdrawal fee credits to meet its Indian firming requirements. Shouldlhe 
Indian firming obligations exhaust all withdrawal fee credits, then no credits would be available for 
M&I firming or any other water management objective. 

9. Interstate Banking

In May of 2013, the AWBA, SNWA and the CRCN signed the Third Amended and Restated
Agreement for Interstate Water Banking. To date, 600,651 acre-feet of credits are already held in
the SNWA account. Under the new agreement, the AWBA no longer has an obligation to accrue
future long-term storage credits to be held in the SNWA account. The parties can mutually agree
to future accrual of long-term storage credits including authorizing the use of Nevada's unused
apportionment as the source water. Because water available to AWBA is low during this planning
period, the Ten-Year Plan assumes no storage for Nevada. If additional water becomes available
and Arizona's uses are met, then the AWBA and SNWA can agree to accrue long-term storage
credits for Nevada. If unused apportionment from Nevada becomes available, then the AWBA
would need to consider available capacity.

Conclusions and Recommendations 

The Ten-Year Plan is intended to serve as a guide to assist the AWBA in the development of its 
Annual Plan of Operation in which the AWBA is required to plan its activities for the following calendar 
year. As part of the Annual Report, the Ten-Year Plan is reviewed and updated annually. Therefore, 
it is possible that the Ten-Year Plan may change significantly depending on the goals set by the 
AWBA and the funding and water supply available to the AWBA. Several conclusions can be 
reached given this Ten-Year Plan: 

1) The region is moving close to hydrologic conditions where water availability will be a limiting factor
in this planning period; approximately 480,000 acre-feet of credits could be created as a result of
this Plan.

2) The region is moving closer to hydrologic conditions where recovery could be triggered. If a
shortage is declared, the AWBA will be without water to store during that water year. If recovery is
triggered, then Indian obligations will be impacted first followed closely by on-River
responsibilities.

3) Funding becomes a limiting factor in both Pinal and Pima Counties as the water storage tax
expires; withdrawal fees carried forward from previous years and the remaining water storage tax
monies will be exhausted in the Pinal and Tucson AMAs by 2017; starting in 2018 withdrawal fees
will be spent as quickly as they are collected.

4) Maricopa County is the only county projected to have revenues remaining in water storage tax
fund at the end of the Ten-Year Plan.

5) Absent future appropriations, withdrawal fees credits will become the principle source for meeting
the State's obligation for Indian firming thus limiting the AWBA's ability to assist in other water
management objectives.

35 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

6) Status of numeric firming goals:

a. The Phoenix AMA goal is attained during this planning period.

b. The Pinal AMA goal is attainable during the planning period if withdrawal fee credits are
applied to this objective.

c. The Tucson AMA goal is not attainable during the planning period.

7) Updated modeling results shows Indian firming volumes range from na,ooo acre-feet in the most
likely scenario to nearly 1.3 million acre-feet in a severe scenario, an increase of nearly 230,000
acre-feet over the existing goal.

8) The initial Southside Replenishment Bank is fully subscribed by 2015 and will have been paid for
using withdrawal fees unless an appropriation is secured in the 2015 legislative session.

9) Interstate storage using Arizona's entitlement is unlikely during this planning period.

10)Requests for ICUA are also unlikely during this planning period.

Based on these conclusions, staff recommends the following potential actions: 

1) In response to recent modeling results, focus heavily on making progress on Indian firming
specifically by:

a. Developing agreements for satisfying Indian firming obligations (e.g. finalize agreements with
GRIC and initiate discussions with WMAT and its lessees).

b. Completing delivery requirements to Southside Replenishment Bank.

c. Assigning withdrawal fee credits stored at Phoenix AMA and Pinal AMA GRIIDD to firming
GRIC NIA supply.

d. Seeking general fund appropriations to support Indian firming.

2) Continue working with CAWCD and ADWR to implement the next steps in the Joint Recovery•
Plan. 

2-tfil._Decide if numeric Indian firming goal should be adjusted, based on new modeling results, and 
if so how. 

�_l_Establish policy on how shortage reparation credits will be used. 

fil_Apply withdrawal fee credits stored in the Tucson AMA to M&I firming in Tucson. 

4j6) Continue to evaluate the Inter-AMA storage proposal prepared by the Arizona Municipal Water 
Users Association and the Southern Arizona Water Users Association. 

§jlL._ Consider supplementing deliveries of Excess CAP water with purchase of long-term storage 
credits to take advantage of lower water delivery and storage costs through 2019. 

e}§L_Engage in discussion regarding the continuation of the water storage tax beyond 2016.

&_Develop a public outreach program to support AWBA future operations. 

7)10) Revised Action Plan Year-One Accomelishments to align with the recommended actions in this
if en-Year Plan. 

36 



REVISED DRAFT 6-16-14 

37 



APPENDICES 



APPENDIX A 

Colorado River Water Deliveries for Water Banking Purposes 

for Calendar Year 2013 by Partner and Active Management Area 
- Quantity of Water

Partner (Acre-feet) 

< Intrastate Interstate 
:& Agua Fria Recharge Project 10,210 0 < 

)( Hieroglyphics Mountain Recharge Project 1,054 0 

Superstition Mountains Recharge Project 4,857 

Tonopah Desert Recharge Project 12,897 

Queen Creek Irrigation District 2,009 0 

Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 31,027 0 

Phoenix AMA Subtotal 31,027 

Central Arizona Irrigation & Drainage District 6,695 0 
< Hohokam Irrigation & Drainage District 6,333 0 
< Maricopa-Stanfield Irrigation & Drainage District 6,600 0 

Southside Replenishment Bank 1,000 0 < 
z 

Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 20,628 0 � 
Pinal AMA Subtotal 20,628 

Avra Valley Recharge Project 0 0 

< Lower Santa Cruz Recharge Project 9,300 0 
< SAVSARP 13,255 
z Cortaro-Marana Irrigation District 1,953 0 

Pima Mine Road 2067 0 

Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 26,575 0 I-

Tucson AMA Subtotal 26,575 

TOTAL INTRASTATE & INTERSTATE DELIVERIES 78,230 0 

TOTAL DELIVERIES 1a;2ao 

'1 



AppendbcB 

CAP Delivery Schedule 

(Acre-Feet) 
-

Federal and Ag 
Statutory Firming Pool2 

Total CAP M&I Settlement Federal & 

Year Dellveries1 Deliveries Pool CAGRDRR AWBA 

2015 1,565,000 1,092,300 400,000 18,600 54,100 

2016 1,560,000 1,104,100 400,000 17,300 38,600 

2017 1,555,000 1,146,800 300,000 20,300 87,900 

2018 1,550,000 1,152,300 300,000 19,900 77,800 

2019 1,550,000 1,166,000 300,000 19,300 64,700 

2020 1,550,000 1,179,800 300,000 18,400 51,800 

2021 1,550,000 1,193,600 300,000 17,300 39,100 

2022 1,550,000 1,204,100 300,000 16,200 29,700 

2023 1,550,000 1,222,800 300,000 13,000 14,200 

2024 1,550,000 1,241,500 225,000 19,200 64,300 

1 Based on average deliveries and remaining use of SAP exchange water. Assumes non-shortage CAP supply.

2 Based on current and extended (through 2019) CAWCD Access to Excess distribution procedure.



APPENDIX C 

STORAGE FACILITIES AVAILABLE TO THE AWBA 

(as used in the Ten-Year P lan) 

Facility 
Facility Capacity Volume of 

Name of Facility1 Permit 
Permitted Available to Year Water Water Last 
Capacity AWBA2 Last Stored Stored 

Expiration 
(AF) (AF) (AF) 

PHOENIX - GSF3 

Queen Creek Irrigation District Dec-15 28,000 6,000 2013 2,009 
New Magma Irrigation & Drainage District Jul-17 54,000 0 2012 23,866 

Subtotal far Phoenix AMA - GSF 82,000 6,000 

PHOENIX -USF 

Agua Fria Recharge Project May-19 100,000 15,000 2013 10,210 
Hieroglyphic Mountains Recharge Project Dec-21 35,000 15,000 2013 1,054 
Tonopah Desert Recharge Project Sep-25 150,000 100,000 2013 12,897 
Superstition Mountains Recharge Project Jan-28 25,000 8,000 2013 4,857 

Subtotal for Phoenix AMA • USF 310,000 138,000 

PINAL-GSF 

Central Arizona Irrigation & Drainage District Dec-17 110,000 60,000 2013 6,695 
Hohokam Irrigation & Drainage Distrlct4 Oct-12 55,000 20,000 2013 6,333 
Maricopa-Stanfield Irrigation &Drainage District Dec-19 120,000 60,000 2013 6,600 

Subtotal for Pinal AMA - GSF 285,000 140,000 

TUCSON-GSF 

BK WFarms Sep-14 14,316 1,000 2012 200 
Cortaro-Marana Irrigation District Mar-19 20,000 5,000 2013 1,953 
Kai-Farms - Red Rock Nov-16 11,231 2,000 2012 1,851 

Subtotal far Tucson AMA • GSF 45,547 B,000 

TUCSON-USF 

Avra Valley Recharge Project Mar-18 11,000 1,000 2012 774 
CAVSARP Dec-28 100,000 0 2012 51 
Lower Santa Cruz Recharge Project Feb-19 50,000 25,000 2013 9,300 
Pima Mine Road Recharge Project Sep-20 30,000 7,000 2013 2067 
SAVSARP Jan-28 60,000 15,000 2013 13,255 

Subtotal for Tucson AMA • USF 251,000 48,000 

ALL AM As• GSF 412,547 154,000 

ALL AMAs · USF 561,000 186,000 

1 PE, additional facilities are developed, they will be included in future plans.

2 This does not reflect the actual "permitted" wlume for these facilities; instead for the purposes of this plan, staff relied on average
historical storage \/Olumes and potential for future storage. Capacity available to the AWBAat the Avra Valley Recharge Project is based on 
the operator's estimated annual averages for the Ten-Year Planning period. 

3 The AWBAalso holds a water storage permit at Tonopah Irrigation District GS F (15,000 AF), however use of the facility was not
considered significant in this Ten-Year Plan. 
4 Permit renewal application pending with ADWR.



APPENDIX D 

Credits Developed for M&I Firming Utilizing the 4¢ Tax 1

(Acre-feet) 
Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Available4 Available4

Pre-plan3 551,200 814,015 
-2015 6,000 6,000 5580 138,000 4,944 - 4,598
2016 6,000 6,000 5580 138,000 1,720 1,600 

C( 2017 5,000 5,000 4650 138,000 30,555 28,416 
2018 4,500 4,500 4185 138,000 48,838 45,419 
2019 4,500 4,500 4185 138,000 38,517 35,821 

0 
2020 4,000 4,000 3720 138,000 29,691 27,612 
2021 4,000 4,000 3720 138,000 19,821 18,434 
2022 4,000 4,000 3720 138,000 12,571 11,691 
2023 4,000 4,000 3720 138,000 422 392 
2024 4,000 4,000 3720 138,000 40,736 37,885 

Total 593,980 1,025,883 
Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Eamed 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Available4 Avallable4 

Pre-plan3 203,923 0 
2015 138,000 6,579 6,118 - . 0 

c 
2016 138,000 5,746 5,344 . . 0 

:ii 2017 138,000 3,732 3,471 . - 0 
C( 

2018 138,000 ...I . . . . 0 
2019 138,000 - . - - 0 

ii: 2020 138,000 - - - - 0 
2021 138,000 - - - - 0 
2022 138,000 - - - - 0 
2023 138,000 - - - - 0 
2024 138,000 - - - . 0 

Total 218,856 -

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Available4 Available4

Pre-plan3 18,629 401,697 
2015 8,000 - 0 42,887 19,437 18,076 
2016 8,000 - 0 43,027 14,327 13,324 

:; 
2017 8,000 0 48,000 17,429 16,209 C( 

-

z 2018 8,000 -
0 

0 48,000 - 0 
2019 8,000 - 0 48,000 0 
2020 8,000 - 0 48,000 - 0 
2021 8,000 . 0 48,000 - 0 
2022 8,000 - 0 48,000 . 0 
2023 8,000 - 0 48,000 - 0 
2024 8,000 - 0 48,000 - 0 

Total 18,629 449,306 
1 E>ipenditure of 4¢ ad valorem tax revenues giwn highest priority in Tucson and Pinal AMAs. In Phoenix AMA, 80% of water available 
stored using 4¢ ad valorem tax revenues in each year of Ten-Year Plan except In 2023 when the volume available is so small that 
100% of the volume is stored using 4e ad valorem tax revenues. 
2 M&I firming targets are Phoenix AMA- 1.566 MAF, Pinal AMA-243,000 AF, and Tucson AMA- 864,000 AF. 
3 Cumulative totals for 1997-2013: 2014 credits estimated based on projected deliveries. 
4 Capacity available based on caoacity remalnina at facilities after all hiaher orioritv demands have been met. 



APPENDIX E 

Credits Developed for Meeting AMA Water Management Goals Utilizing Withdrawal Fees1 

(Acre-feet) 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year 
Capacity 

capacity Used Credits Earned 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Awilable4 Available4 

Pre-plan3 160,752 141,554 
N

<( 
2015 0 - - 0 133,056 2,736 2,544 

:ii 2016 0 - 0 136,280 1,930 1,795 
< 2017 0 - 0 107,445 8,889 8,267 
� 2018 0 - 0 89,162 13,335 12,401 
z 

2019 0 - 0 99,483 10,754 10,001 
0 2020 0 - 0 108,309 8,423 7,833 

2021 0 - 0 118,179 5,955 5,538 

2022 0 - 0 125,429 4,143 3,853 

2023 0 - 0 137,578 1,105 1,028 

2024 0 - 0 97,264 11,184 10,401 

Total 160,752 205,216 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year 
Capacity 

Capacity Used 
Credits Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Available4 Eamed5 Available4 

Pre-plan3 412,311 0 

2015 132,421 9,292 3,991 - - 0 
N

< 2016 133,254 3,904 3,631 - - 0 
:ii 

2017 135,268 15,4TT 14,394 0 < 
- -

-I 2018 139,000 9,259 8,611 - - 0 
< 2019 139,000 9,091 8,455 - - 0 

2020 139,000 8,021 7,460 - - 0 

2021 139,000 7,712 7,173 - - 0 

2022 139,000 7,426 6,906 - - 0 

2023 139,000 7,160 6,659 - - 0 

2024 139,000 6,913 6,429 - - 0 

Total 486,019 -

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Available4 Available4 

Pre-plan3 7,270 94,588 

� 2015 8,000 - 0 23,450 - -

:ii 2016 8,000 - 0 28,700 - -

< 2017 8,000 - 0 30,571 6,818 6,341 
z 2018 8,000 - 0 48,000 1,868 1,737 
0 

2019 8,000 - 0 48,000 1,838 1,709 
0 

2020 8,000 0 48,000 1,665 1,549 :::, .

t- 2021 8,000 - 0 48,000 1,611 1,498 

2022 8,000 - 0 48,000 1,560 1,451 

2023 8,000 - 0 48,000 1,512 1,406 

2024 8,000 - 0 48,000 1,467 1,365 

Total 7,270 111,644 
1 E)(J)enditure of withdrawal fees given second highest priority in Tucson and Pinal AMk.. In Phoenix AMA, 20% of water available
stored using withdrawal fees in each year of Ten-Year Plan. 
2 M&I firming targets are PhoenixAMA-1.566 MAF, Pinal AMA-243,000 AF, and Tucson AMA-864,000 AF.
3 Cumulatiw totals for 1997-2813; 2014 credits estimated based on projected deliveries.
4 Capacity available based on capacity remaining at facilities after all higher priority demands have been met. 
5 No credits are received for water stored at the SSAB. Remaining deliveries to SSAB are completed in 2015 .



APPENDIX F 

Credits Developed for Annual General Fund Appropriatlons1•2

(Acre-feet) 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year 
Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available4 Used Earned Available4 Used Earned 

- Pre-plan3 26,041 - 16,275 

C - 2014 0 - 0 130,320 - . 0 
:E 2015 0 - 0 134,350 0 C 

. 

� 2016 0 - 0 98,556 - 0 

z 2017 0 . 0 75,827 - 0 

2018 0 0 88,729 0 0 
- . 

:::c 2019 0 - 0 99,887 - 0 

2020 0 0 112,223 0 - -

2021 0 . 0 121,286 - 0 

2022 0 - 0 136,473 - 0 

2023 0 - 0 86,080 - 0 

Total 26,041 16,275 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Avallable

4 
Available

4 

Pre-plan3 306,968 0 

2014 123,130 . 0 . . 0 
C 2015 129,350 . 0 . - 0 

c( 2016 119,791 . 0 - - 0 
..J 2017 129,741 . 0 . - 0 
c( 2018 129,909 . 0 - - 0 

2019 130,979 . 0 - - 0 

2020 131,288 - 0 - - 0 

2021 131,574 - 0 . - 0 

2022 131,840 - 0 - - 0 

2023 132,087 - 0 . . 0 

Total - 306,968 . 

Groundwater Savi"!gs Underground Storage 

Year 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Eamed 
Available

4 Avallable4 

Pre-plan3 2,846 51,700 

C 2014 8,000 - 0 23,450 - 0 
:i 2015 8,000 . 0 28,700 - 0 
C 

2016 8,000 0 23,753 0 
z 

. . 

0 2017 8,000 - 0 46,132 - 0 

2018 8,000 - 0 46,162 - 0 

2019 8,000 - 0 46,335 - 0 

2020 8,000 . 0 46,389 - 0 

2021 8,000 . 0 46,440 . 0 

2022 8,000 - 0 46,488 . 0 

2023 8,000 . 0 46,533 . 0 

Total - 2,846 51,700 
1 This Ten-Year Plan does not include a componentforGeneral Fund appropriations.
2 Toe on-river M&I firming target Is 420,000 acre-feet. 
3 Cumulalil/8 totals for 1997 lhrough 2p13 are actuals. There are no deliveries scheduled for 2014.
4 Capacity available based on capacity remaining at facilitates after all higher priority demands have been met.



APPENDIX G 

Credits Developed for Utilizing Funds Dedicated for Shortage Reparations1 

(Acre-feet) 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Available3 Available3 

Pre-plan2 4,590 16,0.51 
2015 0 . 0 133,056 - 0 

c:( 
2016 0 . 0 136,280 - 0 
2017 0 0 107,445 0 

>< 
. -

z 2018 0 . 0 89,162 - 0 

0 2019 0 . 0 99.483 . 0 
2020 0 0 108,309 0 0. . -

2021 0 . 0 118,179 - 0 

2022 0 0 125,429 - 0 
2023 0 . 0 137,578 - 0 
2024 0 . 0 97,264 - 0 

Total 4,590 16,051 
Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Available3 Awilable3 

Pre-plan2 60,507 0 

2015 131,421 . 0 - . 0 

2016 132,254 - 0 . - 0 
c:( 

2017 134,268 . 0 - . 0 

..I 2018 138,000 . 0 . - 0 
c:( 
z 2019 138,000 . 0 - . 0 

2020 138,000 - 0 - . 0 

2021 138,000 . 0 - - 0 

2022 138,000 - 0 - - 0 

2023 138,000 . 0 . - 0 

2024 138,000 . 0 . . 0 

Total 60,507 . 

Groundwa�r Savings Underground Storage 

Year 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Available3 Available3 

Pre-plan2 937 16,895 

2015 8,000 . 0 48,000 5,113 4,755 
2016 8,000 . 0 48,000 4,973 4,625 

c:( 2017 8,000 . 0 48,000 - -

z 
2018 8,000 0 48,000 0 . - -

g 2019 8,000 . 0 48,000 - . 

� 2020 8,000 . 0 48,000 - . 

2021 8,000 . 0 48,000 - . 

2022 8,000 - 0 48,000 . . 

2023 8,000 . 0 48,000 . . 

2024 8,000 . 0 48,000 - . 

Total 937 26.275 

' $8 million received from Nevada pursuant to the Ari20na-Nevada Shortage-Sharing Agreement to assist Ari20na in offsetting the impacts of shortage 
impacts during the Interim Period. 

2 Cumula1ive totals for 1997-2013; 2014 credits estimated based on projected deliveries.

3 Capacity available based on capacity remaining at facilities after all higher priority demands have been met.



APPENDIX H 

Credits Developed for Utilizing Indian Settlement Appropriatlons1 

(Acre-feet) 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credit s Earned 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Available4 Available4 

Pre-plan3 0 0 
2014 0 . 0 - 130,320 . 0 

< 2015 0 - 0 134,350 - 0 
2016 0 . 0 98,556 - 0 
2017 0 - 0 75,827 - 0 z 

2018 0 - 0 88,729 0 
11. 2019 0 0 99,887 - 0 

2020 0 - 0 112,223 - 0 
2021 0 - 0 121,2B6 - 0 
2022 0 - 0 136,473 . 0 
2023 0 - 0 86,0B0 . 0 

Total . . 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Available4 Avallable4 

Pre-plan3 0 0 
2014 123,130 - 0 - - 0 

< 
2015 129,350 . 0 . . 0 

:i 2016 119,791 - 0 . . 0 
< 

2017 129,741 . 0 . . 0 
< 

2018 129,909 . 0 . - 0 
2019 130,979 - 0 . - 0 
2020 131,288 . 0 . - 0 
2021 131,574 . 0 . . 0 
2022 131,840 - 0 . - 0 
2023 132,087 - 0 - . 0 

Total . . 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Capacity 

Capacity Used Credits Earned 
Awilable4 Avallable4 

Pre-plan3 0 28,481 
2014 8,000 . 0 23,450 - 0 

< 2015 8,000 - 0 2B,700 - 0 
2016 8,000 - 0 23,753 . 0 

z 2017 8,000 0 46,132 0 0 - -

Cl) 
8,000 0 u 201B - 46,162 - 0 

2019 8,000 . 0 46,335 . 0 
2020 8,000 - 0 46,389 - 0 
2021 8,000 - 0 46,440 - 0 

2022 8,000 - 0 46,488 . 0 
2023 8,000 - 0 46,533 . 0 

Total . 28,481 

' The State Indian firming target is estimated at 550,000 acre-feet 
2 Credits accrued through the e�endlture of $3 million for assisting Federal government in meeting Its firming obligation under Section 306 of 
the Arizona Water Settlements Act 



APPENDIX I 

Potential Credits Developed for Interstate Water Banking 

(Acre-feet) 

Available CAP 
Available 

Interstate Interstate Remaining Supply 
Year AWBA ICUA5

Supplies1
Capaclty2 

Dellverles
3 

Credits
4 Credits 6 Avallable7 

Pre-plan8 
.. 

600,651 
2015 . 284,900 . . . 600,651 . 

2016 . 300,400 . . . 600,651 . 

2017 . 250,100 . . . 600,651 . 

2018 . 259,700 . . . 600,651 . 

2019 . 272,800 . . - 600,651 . 

2020 . 285,200 . . . 600,651 . 

2021 . 297,900 . . . 600,651 . 

2022 . 307,300 . . - 600,651 -

2023 . 322,800 . . . 600,651 . 

2024 . 272,700 - . . 600,651 . 

Total . . .

' Water available for Interstate Banking is calculated by subtracting the water delivered and stored by the AWBA for intrastate water banking 
from the total water supply available for the AWBA(see AppendixB}. 
2 Reflects unused capacity available to AWBAat USFs and GSFs in the Phoenix, Pinal, and Tucson M/,h,. Additional capacity maybe available
at indil.<idual facilities based on utilization by individual water storage permit holders. 
3 Projected delil1eries are based on the Third Amended and Restate Agreement for Interstate Water Banking dated May 20, 2013 and an 
annual limitation of 200,000 AF/YR. 
4 Calculation: Interstate deliveries multiplied by93%. 
5 Assumes SNWA will not request ICUAduring 1his planning period; consisent with the Third Amended and Restate Agreement for Interstate
Water Banking dated May 20, 2013, SNWA's requests for ICUA must ramp up from 20,000 acre-feet per acre-feet per }'ear, then 30,000 acre-

feet per year before requesting 40,000 acre-feet per }'ear. 
6 Calculation: credits a vailable minus assumed ICUAduring this Ten-Year Plan. 
7 Calculation; Available CAP Supplies minus Interstate Deliveries. 

ll Cumulati11e totals for 2002-2013 are actuals. There are no deliwries scheduled for 2014. 



AWBA Action Plan Summary 

Practical vision Current reality Commitments 

What do we want to see in place What are the resources at our disposal that What are 3-5 commitments the AWBA is serious about 

in 3-5 years as a result of our will help us reach our vision and what are the accomplishing in the next year to move the A WBA closer to its 

actions? kinks in the hose keeping us from our vision? practical vision? 

• ... moving toward meeting Resources at our disposal: 1. Meeting AWBA responsibilities (buying the tools)

AWBA responsibilities (buying Great staff, AWBA members and stakeholders 
• legislative and public outreach/support and 4C tax e><tension

• 

• Develop updated modeling to clarify M&I and tribal goals
the tools) • Statutory authority

Existing water supplies
• Institute negotiations with CAWCD on an IGA for statute

- Acquired new water supplies • 

- Access to and flexibility of funding • Storage capacity interpretation and permanent disbursement of 4C tax to AWBA
• Update augmentation options study

streams • Distribution system
Clear goals and objectives 

• Identify where differences of opinion are in statutes
- Indian firming agreements • 

• ... moving toward • Pending crisis (i.e. shortage)
2. Implementing AWBA responsibility (using the tools)

implementing AWBA • Prompt and thorough review of draft recovery plan with an eye
responsibilities (buying the Kinks in the hose: toward improving storage plans

tools}
• AWBA roles expanded Communicate our position on urgency of recovery plan to CAWCD•

• Rules of game have changed Begin incorporation information from recovery plan (process) into- Adopted Implementable recovery • 

plan.
• Uncertainty of goals AWBA annual operation plan for 2015 to assist in identifying

- Improved storage plan
• Differing interpretation of statutes storage locations

Alternative shortage
• Stretched thin • Identifying where differences of opinion are in statutes

• 
• 4C tax can only be used for M&l firming

management strategy
• Difference of opinion with CAP about how to use 3. Developing alternative shortage management strategy

• Decision on AWBA statewide the 4C tax monies to achieve goals
• Evaluate need for additional staff

role • Imbalance between funding sources relative to
Develop concept paper to explain ways AWBA could mitigate•

• Outreach efforts incorporated AWBA goals agricultural shortage and reduce groundwater pumping

into annual reports
• People growing into entitlement leaving less • Continue to monitor and comment on Enhanced Aquifer

water for AWBA Management process to maintain AWBA flexibility during
shortage

• Identify where differences of opinion are in statutes

4. Making Decision on AWBA statewide role
• Outreach - legislative/public - support
• Ask ADWR to identify opportunity outside CAP service area



PMta,:fMr.7 --- ' 
........._.,. --- -- - �

............... :.__

... ...., 

COMMITMENT: 

Implementing AWBA 

responsibilities (using 

the tools) 

YEAR-ONE ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

Current Reality First-Year Accomplishments 

• Existing 4C tax available only • Run credit purchase legislation

through 2016 • Update the AWBA goals using latest

• Collected 4¢ tax monies held by CAP Colorado River modeling

• CAP uses 4C tax monies to offset • Participate in discussions with CAP

AWBA M&I firming costs and others on extension of 4C tax

• Concern 4C tax monies might not be levy

used for AWBA purposes in future • Evaluate next steps to follow up on

• Modeling goals established in 1997 Water Supply Survey Report

• AWBA can acquire supplies only if

excess CAP water is not available

• AWBA cannot acquire long-term

storage credits except in very

limited conditions

• Draft legislation for purchase of

long-term credits prepared

• Have a Water Supply Survey Report

• Draft Joint Recovery Plan out to • Conduct Joint Recovery Plan

members and CAP Board ready for workshop

review by stakeholders and Boards • Review comments received and

• Tentative Joint Recovery Pliln incorporate into a final draft Joint

workshop scheduled for February 4 Recovery Plan

• Unclear how to adopt Joint • Decide how to adopt Joint Recovery

Recovery Plan by multiple agencies Plan by AWBA and CAP Boards and

ADWR Director

• Adopt Joint Recovery Plan

• Incorporate Joint Recovery Plan

concepts into Ten-Year Plan and

Annual Plan of Operation

Success Indicators 

• 4C tax is extended beyond 2016 for

uses including AWBA purposes

• AWBA can acquire long-term

storage credits

• Modeling goals have been re-

evaluated and updated given

current information

• Updated Water Supply Survey

Report

• Confidence 4¢ tax monies will

continue to be used for AWBA

purposes

• Adopted Joint Recovery Plan

• Incorporated Joint Recovery Plan

elements into the Plan of Operation

for 2015

• CAP has recovery partner

agreements in place

• Regular interagency coordination

• Stakeholder recognition of Joint

Recovery Plan

• In the event of shortage, AWBA

credits are distributed and

recovered



YEAR-ONE ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

Current Reality First-Year Accomplishments Success Indicators 

• 23,724 acre-foot Indian firming • Continue discussions with Gila River • Executed Indian firming agreements
obligation Indian Community to negotiate that incorporate multiple firming

• Credit recovery only method to firming agreement opportunities
mitigate shortages • Initiate discussions with White • List of ways to meet AWBA

• Can extinguish water management Mountain Apache Tribe to develop obligations in addition to recovering

COMMITMENT: credits firming agreement credits
Developln1 alternative • Ten-Year Plan that evaluates water • Prepare preliminary list of ways to • Multiple firming opportunities

shortage manasement availability meet AWBA obligations in addition incorporated into Ten-Vear Plan

strategy • Potential ways CAP can meet to recovering credits • Operational flexibility is maintained
shortfalls during shortage • Effectively communicate AWBA's for AWBA under Fourth

• Recovery is limited by Third position on Enhanced Aquifer Management Plan including
Management Plan Management enhanced aquifer management

• Enhanced Aquifer Management • Initiate discussions with CAP • Efficient and effective use of AWBA
process is underway that could regarding CAP based alternative credits
affect accrual ·and recovery of shortage management strategies for • Shortage management strategies
future AWBA credits potential incorporation into Joint incorporated into Joint Recovery 

• Majority of on-river users have Recovery Plan Plan 
recovery agreement with CAP

• AWBA jurisdiction limited to CAP • Coordinate with ADWR to identify • Decision on AWBA statewide role
service area (M&I firming), certain potential statewide roles for the • Support from legislature and others
Indian settlements and on-river AWBA in the Draft Strategic Vision assuming expanded AWBA role
communities with P4 M&I contracts • Develop outreach program to • Funding available to support

CQMMIJMENT: • Funding limited to 4C tax and inform Legislature and public about potential expanded role
Maldnc Dedlfon an withdrawal fees the AWBA and its role in statewide 

AWIAstatwllderola • ADWR's Draft Strategic Vision has water management 
been released

• Unclear about how AWBA could
help those not currently within the 
AWBA jurisdiction

' 



AWBA Staff, 

CAWCD appreciates the opportunity to provide comments on the AWBA's Action Plan documents 

recently circulated for review: the Action Plan Summary and Year-One Accomplishments tables. 

Both documents include a number of goals or commitments that the AWBA may pursue, many of which 

have significant implications to CAWCD and statewide water management; therefore, we would expect 

that there will be future discussions and close coordination with CAWCD. 

There are a number of goals listed that we fully support, some of which have already been accomplished 

and still others that raise questions for us. However, the very brief descriptions are subject to 

considerable interpretation, and it is difficult for us to provide specific comment without further 

background and explanation. We trust that if the staff or Commission propose to move forward and 

take action on any of these initiatives, that there will be more detailed information shared in advance of 

those actions that will allow CAWCD to more fully evaluate the proposals. 

Again, thank you for the opportunity to comment on the AWBA's Action Planning work. We look forward 

to working in close coordination with you. Please let us know if you have any questions. 

CAWCD Staff 

Laura Grignano 

Senior Policy Analyst, Resource Ping & Analysis 

phone • (623) 869-2113 cell phone• (623) 249-8006 email • lgrignano@cap-az.com 

CAP 
'101,11 w•TEIII. YOUII Ftn11u. 

Central Arizona Project Disclaimer: 
This e-mail message from Laura Grignano and any files transmitted with it may contain confidential or privileged 
information intended solely for the individual(s) addressed in the message. Any review, use, distribution, or 
disclosure of this information by others is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, or authorized to 
receive this transmission for the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and delete all copies of 
this message and any files transmitted with it from your system. 



V. Request for General Fund Appropriation

NOTES: 

Call on Virginia O'Connell to discuss a proposal for requesting a general fund 

appropriation 

POSSIBLE ACTION: 

Move to approve a submittal for a General Fund appropriation to the Governor's 

Office in the amount of $ ____ , including funds remaining in the Arizona Water 

Banking Fund pursuant to execution of the Third Amended and Restated Interstate 

Water Banking Agreement, to be used for the purpose of ______ to assist in 

meeting the State's obligations under the Arizona Water Settlements Act,. 



June 16, 2014 DRAFT 

Proposal for General Fund Appropriation Request: 

The Arizona Water Banking Authority requests an appropriation of ____ from the State's general fund 

for the purchase and delivery of ____ acre-feet of Central Arizona Project water to assist in meeting the 

Southside Replenishment Bank obligations under the Arizona Water Settlements Act. 

Details: 

Pursuant to§ 45-2624, the AWBA, as agent of the State, is required to deliver an initial 15,000 acre-feet of 

water to the Gila River Indian Community (GRIC) to establish the Southside Replenishment Bank 

(Replenishment Bank}. The AWBA planned to deliver 1,000 acre-feet each year, the minimum allowable by 

state law. Accordingly, through 2013, the AWBA delivered 1,000 acre-feet per year for a total of 5,000 acre

feet. 

In 2013, however, the Bureau of Reclamation released Colorado River operational data raising concerns of a 

potential shortage declaration as early as 2016. In this situation, the AWBA, as an excess CAP water user, 

would not have CAP water supplies available to make its minimum deliveries to the Replenishment Bank. To 

avoid this potential risk, the AWBA decided to deliver the remaining 10,000 acre-feet of CAP water in 2014 and 

2015 when Excess CAP water is still expected to be available. Information released since this time shows the 

likelihood of shortage increasing not decreasing. 

In 2013, the AWBA approved a submittal to the Governor's Office requesting an appropriation of $664,000 for 

Replenishment Bank deliveries in 2014 to pay for 4,000 acre-feet of water. This request was unsuccessful. 

Still, in 2014, the AWBA will have delivered 5,000 acre-feet to the Replenishment Bank. Without the requested 

general fund appropriation, the AWBA could only use groundwater withdrawal fees collected in the Pinal 

Active Management Area (AMA}. Consequently, these funds will not be available for the AWBA to store water 

to meet its other responsibilities. Additionally, reducing deliveries to the Pinal AMA irrigation districts would 

likely result in increased groundwater pumping by those districts. 

In 2015, in anticipation of shortage declarations and in order to meet its responsibilities under the Act, the 

AWBA will complete its deliveries to the Replenishment Bank. The cost for the entire 2015 deliveries (5,000 

acre-feet) will be $895,000. 

Options for Requests: 

• Request $716,000 acre-feet for 4,000 acre-feet in 2015.

• Request $895,000 for 5,000 acre-feet in 2015.

• Request $1.4 million to reimburse the AWBA for 4,000 acre-feet of deliveries in 2014 and for 4,000 acre

feet of projected deliveries in 2015.

• Request $1.7 million for 5,000 acre-feet of deliveries in 2014 and 5,000 acre-feet of projected deliveries in

2015.

• Request $2.34 million for 10,000 acre-feet of deliveries through 2014 and 5,000 acre-feet of projected

deliveries in 2015.

• Request authorization to utilize funds in the Arizona Water Banking Fund (approx. $229, 440) remaining as 

a result of the Third Amended and Restated Interstate Agreement to offset or augment a request for 

general fund appropriation.



VI. Fiscal Year 2015 Administrative Budget

NOTES: 

Call on Virginia O'Connell to explain the budget proce s and outline the numbers. 

ACTION: 

Move adoption of the Arizona Water banking Authority Administration Budget for 

Fiscal Year 2015 as presented with any minor or technical changes. 



ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

FY 2014 ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET 

STAFFING 

Total FTE 

Department of Water Resources Cost of Services 

Personnel Services 

Water Bank Manager 1 

Water Bank Technical Administrator 1 

Attorney 0.5 

Employee Related Expenditures (at 44% of Personnel Services) 

Indirect Cost (at 51.7% of Personnel Service & ERE) 

Central Arizona Project Cost of Services 

Personnel Services & ERE (pursuant to IGA) 

Subtotal Staffing 

OTHER COSTS 

Professional & Outside Services 

Consultant (includes Alternate Contribution Rate of 9.2%) 

Development of Action Plan 

Travel 

Instate Travel 

Out of State Travel 

Operating Expenses 

Standard per employee 

Miscellaneous 

Equipment 

Subtotal Other Costs 

2.5 

3.0 $500 

Sheet 2014-1 

$691,388 $ 462,058 

Est. Cost Actual Cost 

$441,538 $ 411,587 

$202,125 $ 202,125 

$88,935 $75,778 

$150,478 $133,684 

$21,000 $21,000 

$21,000 $21,000 

$462,538 $432,587 

$220,000 $24,998 
$20,000 $23,378 

$200,000 $1,620 

$3,625 $1,378 
$2,625 $1,378 

$1,000 $0 

$5,225 $3,095 
$1,500 $1,000 

$3,725 $2,095 

$0 $0 

$228,850 $29,471 



ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

FY 2015 ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET 

STAFFING 

Department of Water Resources Cost of Services 

Personnel Services 

Water Bank Manager 

Water Bank Technical Administrator 

Attorney 

Total FTE 

2.5 

1 

1 

0.5 

Employee Related Expenditures (at 40% of Personnel Services) 

Indirect Cost (at 49.5% of Personnel Service & ERE) 

Central Arizona Water Conservation District Cost of Services 

Personnel Services & ERE 

Subtotal Staffing 

OTHER COSTS 

Professional & Outside Services 

Action Plan 

Travel 

Instate Travel 

Out of State Travel 

Operating Expenses 

Per employee 

Other expenses 

Equipment 

Subtotal Other Costs 

(pursuant to IGA) 

2.0 $2,000 

Sheet 2015-1 

$656,173 

Cost 

$423,048 

$202,125 

$80,850 

$140,073 

$21,000 

$21,000 

$444,048 

$200,000 

$200,000 

$4,800 

$3,800 

$1,000 

$7,325 

$4,000 

$3,325 

$0 

$212,125 



ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

FY 2015 ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET 

INSTATE TRAVEL 

Authority Members 

Michael J. Lacey 

Maureen George 

Cliff Neal 

Jim Hartdegen 

John Mawhinney 

Subtotal 

Authority Staff 

Manager 

Technical Administrator 

Other Support 

Subtotal 

Instate Total 

OUT OF STATE TRAVEL 

Meetings 

Meetings 

Sheet 2015-2 

$/Meeting Cost 

8 $0 $0 

8 $0 $0 

8 $0 $0 

8 $0 $0 

8 $125 $1,000 

$1,000 

8 $0 $0 

2 $600 $1,200 

8 $0 $0 

2 $600 $1,200 

1 $400 $400 

$2,800 

$3,800 

$/Meeting Cost 

Authority Members No out of state travel is anticipated for Authority Members 

Authority Staff 

Manager 

Technical Administrator 

Other Support 

Total Out of State 

Total Travel 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Other Expenses 

Telecomm & Web Domain 

Permits 

Supplies 

Miscellaneous 

Total Operating Expenses 

EQUIPMENT 

No anticipated equipment purchase 

Total Equipment 

1 $1,000 

0 

0 

Units Unit Cost 

1 $0 

$1,000 

$0 

$0 

$1,000 

$4,800 

Cost 

$725 

$2,000 

$500 

$100 

$3,325 

Cost 

$0 

$0 



VII. Call to the Public

Future Meeting Dates: 

Wednesday, September 17, 2014 

Wednesday, December 3, 2014 




